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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

20.1%

Added value to shareholders 20.1 per cent based on increase in adjusted* NAY
per share and distributions in the year (19.7 per cent based on statutory NAV)

+16.2%

Adjusted Net Asset Value (NAV) per share 606.9 pence, up 16.2 per cent
(Statutory NAV per share 441.9 pence, up 14.4 per cent)

+40.9%

Profit before tax £84.7 million, up 40.9 per cent, including £67.2 million of fair
value gains on property

+18.1%

Intended distribution by way of a tender offer buy-back of 1 in 42 shares at 600 pence
being 14.3 pence per share making a total distribution to sharehelders of 22.8 pence
per share for the year, up 18.1 per cent

+/.2%

Property portfolic valued at £1.1 billion, up 7.2 per cent

+2.0%

Met rental income £69.3 mittion, up 2.5 per cent

+100.9%

Year end cash £118.2 million up 105.9 per cent (December 2004: £57.4 million)
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BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

for

2000

Successful completion of our major refurbishment of Frisaren 12 at Solna and the accupation by ICA Maxi
supermarket in May 2005 and ICA headquarter offices in August 2005, in all 24,800 sq m (259,400 sq ft).

Substantial investment programme initiated in Germany with the purchase of two office properties

in Hamburg. Frohbosestrasse 12 was purchased for £2.5 million (€3.6 million) with a 15 year lease,
generaling a return on equity of 22.8 per cent. The second property, Jarrestrasse 8-10, was purchased
for £8.4 million (€12.5 million) generating a return on capital employed of 23.2 per cent.

Three new lettings at Solna covering 6,056 sg m (65,078 sq ft).

An additional praperty, Yrket 3, bought at Selna Business Park. Stockholm for £5.7 million (SEK 70.0 million)
giving a return on equily of 18.4 per cent after financing.

Two office properties purchased in France, at 23 rue Raspail, Ivry sur Seine, Paris for £7.9 million
(€11.6 million) giving a return on equity of 40.7 per cent and at 3 Allée du Ter Mai, Croissy Beaubourg
for €3.4 million (€51 million} giving a return on equity of 29.1 per cent.

Four smaller French office properties and vacant space sold for total proceeds of £6.4 million (€9.4 million),
Extensive refurbishment at Greal West House, Brentford substantially finished.

Sale of Carlow House and New London House, Drury Lane for a total of £32.2 million, generating a profit
on disposal of £1.5 million. The properties were originatly purchased in 1995 for £11.5 million and 1994
for £10.5 millicn, respectively.

Extension of leases to the Home Office at Spring Gardens. The entire estate now let for a term of 20 years.
Re-financing of properties across the portfolio raised additional funding of £97.8 miltion.

WightCable business assets sold and balancing tax allowances realised.

for

2006

Sale of Lovgdrdet for £39.% mitlion (SEK 547 million) purchased in 2002 for £2%.4 million (SEK 440 million]

Exchanged on the purchase of Adlershof Tor, a 19,715 sq m (212,212 sq ft) retail and office building in
Berlin and a new 19,466 sq m (209,532 sq ft) head office building in Munich.

Sold Le 41, 2 6026 s m {64,864 sq ft) property in Paris for £15.3 million (€22.3 millian}. it had been
vacated by 1BM in January 2005 and was originally purchased in 1998 for £7.4 million (€11.7 million),

WightCable North husiness assets sold.
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2005 RESULTS AT A GLANCE

2005 HGa
£m fm

PROFITS AND LOSSES SHOWN IN THE INCOME STATEMENT
Profit on letting of investmenl properties 234 24.0
Profit on sale of investment properties 1.9 05
Deficit arising from transfer in part interest of Jyt (1.1} -
Core property profit 23.9 245
Equity investment division losses (3.1) (1.6)
Non-recurring legal costs in respect of JvV1 (3.3) -
Underlying profitt 17.5 22.9
Fair vatue gains on investmment properties 67.2 3772
Profit before taxation 84.7 60.1
Current tax (1.3) (0.6)
Deferred tax (21.9) (16.%)
Loss on discontinued operations (sale of cable companies)f {6.2) {(4.0)
Profit for the year 55.3 39.4
EQUITY MOVEMENTS SHOWN IN THE BALANCE SHEET
Foreign exchange translation loss {7.7) 0.5
Fair value loss on listed investments (10.4) 120
Tender offer buy-backs and market purchases (19.0) (15.8)
Acquisition of minority interest 1.3 -
Other 2.6 2.9
Balance sheet reserve movements in the year (33.2) (6.2)
Change in net assets during the year 21.9 332
Net assets at 1 January 2005 (restated under IFRS) 331.9 298.7
Net assets at 31 December 2005 i 3319

1 Two non-recurring items reduced underlying prolit in 2005, these were a transler of interest in our joint venture at New Londen Gridge House
causing a deficit of £1.1 million and non-recurring legat fees 1 connection with cur sharehalding at our other jont venture, London Bridge Tower.

The underlying profit from engoing operatians was therefore £21.9 mullion

1 In early January 2006 further coste relating to the disposal of WightCable Morth were incurred, amounting to £2.1 million. We have been

advised by our auditors that the prescriptive nature of the IFRS Accounting Standartds prevent us from prowiding for these costs in 2005 and

they have therefore been expensed in 2004,
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KEY STATISTICS AND OTHER
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

INCOME STATEMENT

Adjusted earnings per share on continuing operations ** 19.7p 259p Down 23.9%
Earnings per share 67.5p 47.0p Up 43.6%
Net rental incorne £69.3m £67.6m Up 2.5%
Operating profit (excluding fair value gains on property) £54.9m £58.6m Oown 6.3%
Net interest payable £36.3m £34.1m Up 6.5%
Undertying profit (excluding fair value gains on property) £17.5m £22.9m Down 23.6%
Fair value gains on investment properly €67.2m £37.2m Up 80.6%
Profit before taxation £84.7m £60.1m Up 40.9%
Profit for year £55.3m £39.4m Up 40.4%
BALANCE SHEET

Adjusted NAV per share* 606.9p 522.3p Up 16.2%
Statutory NAV per share 441.9p 386.2p Up 14.4%
Distribution per share from lender offer buy-backs 22.8p 19.3p Up 18.1%
Property portfolio £1,096.4m £1,022.5m Up 7.2%
Net assel value £353.8m £323.8m Up 9.3%
Cash £118.2m £57.4m Up 105.9%
Adjusted gearing® 125.2% 133.6% Down 8.6%
Statutory gearing 171.9% 181.0% Deown 9.1%
Adjusted solidity® (net assets a3 3 ratio of gross assets) 38.7% 39.0% Down 0.3%
Statutory solidity 27.9% 28.5% Down 0.6%
Shares in issue (000's) {excluding treasury shares) 80,058 83,853 Down &.5%
I1AS 32 fair value adjustment after tax L 34.6p 27.8p Up 24.5%

*  IAS1Z requires that a deferred tax provision be made in respect of the petential gain that would arise if properties were 1o be sold al valuation and for
the patential clawhack of UK capital allowances to the extent that these amounts are not covered by available tax losses, The caleulation of this deferred
tax Liability has been carrmed out on the basis that the revaluation gains on the properlies vall be realised through receipt of net rents ltar the properties
owned. A5 such the amount provided represents the maximum potential tax Liability. Your Board considers il unlikely that this theoreticat liability will
ever crystallise because it takes no acceunt of the way in which the Group would realise these gains. In particular the deferred tax provision takes
no account of the way in which properties are expected to be sald, of the indexation allowance available when calculating a taxable capital gain in
the UK or of elections available te ensure that deductions claimed previously for capital allowances are not reversed. The Board has complied with
pronouncerrents from the APE and the UK Listing Authority in showing NAY and Earnings per share ncluding the IAS 12 provision with equal
promunence as the adjusted figures. The effect of IAS 12 has been excluded from those statistics that are indicated by an aslerisk. At 31 December 2009
the IAS 12 deferred tax charge included in the profit and loss account was £21.9 millicn and the currulative reduction Lo net assels was £132.1 millien
{31 December 2004: charge to tax of £14.0 million and reduction in net assets of £114.1 million respectively).

t  In line with UK property industry practice adjusted earnings per share does not include gains on revaluations and deferred taxatwon.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

INTRODUCTION

| am pleased to report that the Company has grown from
strength to strength during 2005.

We discuss our financial results in detail in the Financial
Review, however | summarise below the key elements of
our performance in the year.

Adjusted net asset value (NAY) per share has increased
from 522.3 pence by 16.2 per cent 1o 04.% pence, this
having been achieved despite an adverse foreign exchange
translation movement of 13.5 pence. The calculation of
adjusted NAY is based on the net assets of the Group
excluding the provision for deferred tax, amounting to
£132.1 million, divided by the shares in issue {(excluding
treasury shares), being 80,057.£87.

This is the tenth year in succession that our NAV per
share has increased, showing an average growth rate of
16.6 per cent compound per annum,

Statutory NAV per share, which includes the full

provision for deferred tax of £132.7 million as required

by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
increased from 386.2 pence by 14.4 per cent to 441.9 pence.

Profit before taxation, which under 1FRS now includes the
increase in the fair value of our property assets, increased
frorn £60.1 miilion by 40.9 per cent to £84.7 million.

The fair value increase in the property assets in the year
was £47.2 million, an increase of 80.6 per cent on the
uplift in the previous year.

BUSINESS REVIEW 2005

The business has continued to perform consistently weil
across each of our divisions although rmarket conditions
have varied across operating regions.

UK - Investment yields have sharpened during 2005 with
prime yields falling to below 5 per cent in the Londen
market, less than the cost of borrowing in the UK.

The weight of meney in the market is likely to continue

to exert downward pressure on investment yields. In late
2005 we took advantage of the strong market and sold
Carlow House and New Londan House for £32.2 millian
at a profit of £1.5 million over and above the half year
valuation. We continue to look for good quality assets with
opportunfties for growth although we will not sacrifice our
underlying investment prirciples.

The main priorily in the UK is to actively manage our existing
properties to ensure maximum value is achieved. The letting
market has continued to prove challenging, however despite
space having become available at Vista Office Centre and
Chancel Heuse we have contained our UK vacancy rale at
5.3 per cent. In additicn, a further 4,587 sq m (49,374 sq ft)
is under refurbishment at Great West House, representing
2.9 per cent of space in the UK portfolic.

The significant feature in 2005 has been the agreement

to extend all the leases held at Spring Gardens by the
Home Office to a term of 20 years. This government
tenant now occupies the entire eslate following our
relocation to Victoria in order to accommodate their
expansion requirements. The lease exiensions are
conditional upon our completion of two further infills
cemprising 2,503 sq m (26,945 sq ft), the censtruction of
which is due to complete in March 2007, When completed
the annuat rent generated will be £6.3 million par annum.

UK JOINT VENTURES - We are working closely together
with our joint venture partners to secure pre-lettings of
office space at both Lendon Bridge Tower (The Shard of
Glass] and at New London Bridge House, for which a
striking Renzo Piano design has been submitled to the
planning authorities. We zre hoping to make significant
letting progress in respect of both of these projects in
the coming year.

SWEDEN - During 2005 we completed the refurbishment
works at Solna Business Park to 24,000 sq m (259,400 sq 1)
of space al Frasaren 12, to enabte ICA, the largest food
retailer in Scandinavia, to take accupalion of thair head
office and supermarket, in accerdance with a demanding
budget and programme.

Additionally, we completed both the internal refurbishment
works to Smeden and Lo its award winning 250 metre long
uplit facade, enclosed within a glass envelope. The major
challenge for us at Solna is to let the recently vacated
areas at Sliparen 2 representing 10,672 sq m (114,874 sqg ft),
8.1 per cent of space at Selna, and to let the rest of the
vacant space within the developrent, representing

20324 sq m (218,772 sq ft).

In early February 2006 we took advanlage of the strong
investment market in Sweden and sold our portiolio of
1,280 apartments and 42 608 sq m (458,644 sq ft) of
commercial and retail space to a major local landlord
specialising in local residential estates, for a price of
£39.9 million (SEK 547 million}, in line with our year end
valuation. These properties were purchased in January
2002 for £29.4 million {(SEK 440 million).

CONTINENTAL EUROPE - French property comprises the
majorily of the portlolic in Continental Europe and this
division has made a substantial contribution (o our
underlying profit before tax, amounting to £14.5 million
(€21.2 million). In addition, the increase in fair value of this
portfolic during the year was £33.2 million (€48.5 million).

The French letting market was relatively healthy during
2005 with take-up of space in Paris of 2.2 mdlion sq m
(23.4 million =q ft). over 12 per cent up on 2004, keeping
pace with the supply of new space coming onta the
markel. The overall market vacancy rate in the Paris area
was 5.8 per cent, slightly down an the previous year,
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continued)

Our vacancy rate at the year end was 6.4 per cent by
area of the French portfolio, which was largely due to
the vacant 6,026 sq m (64,864 sq ft) Le 41 building.
This building was sold in January 2006 and the residuat
vacancy rate of the entire French portfolio is now just
3.0 per cent hy area.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS - During the first half of the year
we sold one of aur untisted investments, Sit-up TV
producing a profit of £1.6 million on the transaction.

Following our decision to sell cur cable businesses,
we sold the acsets of WightCable Limited at the end
of Decemnber 2005 and the sale of the assets of
WightCable North Limited was completed in mid
January 2004. The cable company results are shown
as discontinued operations and amounted to a loss of
£6.2 million. As a result of the sale of these assels,
the group has realised the residual capital allowances
which amounted to £22.0 million,

Our equity investrnent portfolio was valued at £13.7 million
at 31 Decernber 2005, representing 1.1 per cent of the
Group's gross assets. We will closely monitor those
investments in our portfolio that have potential to perform
well but conversely, we will not fund enterprises that
continue to under-perform,

OUTLINE STRATEGY

The continuing strategy of the Group will be to invest in
medern, well-let properties that generate good returns on
capital employed in markets that we know and understand.

The strategic principles by which we operate are outlined
below:

e Toinvest in good quality, modern buildings that are
generally located in strategically well placed
secondary office locations just outside the central
business district of major cities.

» To operate in European markets that we know and
understand. This has been the UK, Sweden and
France and we will include Germany within cur ccore
investment regions in 2004,

+ To establish offices in each country in which we
operate, employing local, well qualified, highly
motivated professional staff.

« The application of strict investment criteria to new
property purchases, taking inlo account the yield,
strength of tanant covenants, lease lengths, reliability
and the projected return on equity and return on cash
over five and ten years.

* The gearing of our investments with initial loan to
values generally at or above 75 per cent, borrowing
frormn well respected banking institutions in the
currency of the asset in erder to limit foreign
exchange exposure.

+ Investment with a view to adding long-term value to
our property portfolio. We do this by providing good
service and developing close relationships with our
suppliers and tenants and where appropriate carry
out major refurbishment works to properties and
construction of new offices, using our own in-house
development teams. In this way we aim to eslablish
long-term lenants.

» The ability to act with speed to new oppartunities,
having access to strong cash reserves. We actively
seek gut new opportunities where we see good
returns coupled with acceptable levels of risk.

¢ The careful assessment of risk and where appropriate
use of hedging instruments to protect ourselves from
potential adverse conseguences.

THE FUTURE

GERMANY - In the summer of 2005 we took the decision
to invest in Germany, a market where we can see good
returns being achieved on selective purchases. The
groundwork of careful research and the development of
business relationships with local professional advisers
enabled us to successfully commence the eslablishment
of a8 German portfolic by completing the purchase of two
small properties at the end of the year.

Since then we have conlracted to purchase two further
properties lo the value of £45.1 million (€65.6 million)
generating a return on equity of 20 per cent. Upon
completion of these contracted purchases we will hold
five properties in Germany Lo the value of £57.7 millicn
f€84.2 million),

It is our intentien to build up a high quality portfolie in
Germany in excess of €300 million in selected major cities.

UK - In the UK we will work hard in 2006 to complele the
refurbishment and letting of Great West House and to
continue to reduce other vacan! space within the porticlio.
We are also evaluating the potential development of a
number af other property assets we hold in order to add
value to our investment portfolic,
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CHA' RMAN'S STATEM ENT (continued)

As mentioned above, together with our joint venture
partners, we are preparing to develop The Shard and

New London Bridge House. These are significant projects
in their own right and we recognise it is absolutely critical
to ensure that we assemble the right blend of expertise
and experience within the development team, together
with the appropriate combinaticn of finrancing and secure
anchor pre-lets to quality tenants before commencing
construction. [t is our intention to limit the amount of
equity contribution we are exposed to an these projects.

SWEDEN - Qur major challenge is to capitalise on the
brand image and concept of Solna Business Park by
letting all remaining space, cptimise its value and to
secure the future of the areas currently occupied by the
university at Vanerparken. In this respect we are working
closely with the local authority at Vinersborg.

FRANCE - It is our intention te expand our portfolio along
the lines of our existing model, seeking opportunities
bath within Paris and other selected major cities.

ORGANISATION - We have now taid down & strong
organisation headed by Per Sjéherg who took up the post
of Chief Executive Officer on 1 January 2006. We have
experienced teams on the ground in each of ocur core
operating regions and we are fully confident that they will
achieve the clear goals we have identified.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND 50CIAL ISSUES - We not only think
that it is socially responsible to take environmental issues
seriously, we also think that in an age of rising energy
costs it alse rakes commercial good sense. We are
therefore purposely seeking out innovative green
solutions to the design of new and refurbished buildings
we are contemplating and have already been awarded the
environmental “P mark” standard for developing "green’
energy efficient properties in the refurbishment of our
Solna complex.

It has also been pleasing to see the complete
transformation of the Selna Business Park area of
Stockholm from a run-down drab industrizl area to a
vibrant modern environment with in excess of 10,000
visitors a day to its offices, supermarket, hotel, gym and
other leisure facilities. It is our intention to bring a similar
translormation to the London Bridge quarter

PERFORMANCE FOR INVESTORS

Over the last five years adjusted nel assets per share has
grown from 325.5 pence per share to 606.9 pence per
share, an increase of 86.5 per cent. The total return to
shareholders, which lakes account of NAV growth and
distributions showed an average annual compound
growth of 20.5 per cent.

The total return to CLLS investors in the year has been
22.7 per cent (Source: Thamsen Data Strearn).

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN
(five years to 31 Decermnber 2005)

CLS Heldings - Tot Return Ind == --
FTSE Real Estate - Tot Return ind ——
300 FTSE All Share - Tol Roturn Ind — =

240

180

120

£0

Saurce: Datastream

Cver the last 10 years, we have distributed £20.7 million
to shareholders through tender offer buy-backs and a
further £15.9 million by dividend payments, A further
£37.7 million was paid to shareholders through market
purchases, in zll a total of £144.3 million paid to
shareholders,

We now have substantial cash reserves and have
demonstrated consistently strong performance over the
years. There is still a 10.0 per cent discount between
NAY per share and share price, we therefore propose to
recommend a tender offer buy-back of 1in 42 shares

at 600 pence per share. This, tagelher with the interim
tender offer will result in a total distribution for the year
of 22.8 pence per share, an increase of 18.7 per cent over
the previous year.

My fellow directors and | would particularly like to thank
our staff for their dedication and hard work during the
year, we would also like to thank our advisers for their
professionalism and creativity and our sharehotders for
the encouragement and suppart that they have given to
the Company.

We have concluded a successful year and look forward to
an exciting future.

”M“W

Sten Mortstedt
Executive Chairman
24 March 2006
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

INTRODUCTION

There has been strong capital growth in our assets across all three
of our main European markets with the prospect of further uplifts
in values on the back of preparatory work laid down during 2005,

Adjusted NAV of 606.9 pence per share (December 2004:

522.3 pence), grew by 16.2 per cent during 2005 (Statutory NAY
of 441.9 pence per share grew by 14.4 per cent over the same
periad). in the last five years the adjusted net asset value per
share has grown by 13.2 per cent compound per annum, or a lotal
of 86.5 per cent {Statutory NAV has shown a similar growth
throughout that period). The organic growth in adjusted net asset
value per share over the period (taking into account the effect of
tender offer buy-backs but excluding growth attributable lo the
purchase of shares on the market for cancellation) has been

68.3 per cent (Slatutory NAV has shown similar growth throughout
that period]. If all share options were to be exercised, the dilutive
effect would be to reduce adjusted NAV per share by 2.7 pence
(Statutory NAV by 1.4 pence).

At the year end the posi-tax 1AS 32 disclosure, showing the effect
of restating fixed interest loans to fair value, amounted to a
reduction of 34.6 pence per share (Decernber 2004: 27.8 pence).

Added value to shareholders was 20.1 per cent {December 2004:
20.8 per cent), as measured by the increase in adjusted NAV per
share and distributions by tender offer buy-backs. Based on
Statutory NAV the return was 19.7 per cent (December 2004:
18.6 per cent).

During the year the Company distributed £16.8 million (20.3 pence
per share) to shareholders by way of tender offer buy-backs at an
average price per share of 495 pence (December 2004: 18.1 pence
per share distributed),

Net assets grew by £30.0 million to £353.8 millicn in the year,
which included a £7.7 miltion reduction relating to negative
foreign exchange translation movements in respect of the Group's
Swedish and Continental European net assets. The Kronor and
the Euro both weakened against Sterling during the year. Foreign
exchange movements are substantially hedged as each property
is funded by loans in local currency. Net asset growth is
calculated after taking into account the cost of tender offer
buy-back distributions made during the year, which totailed

£16.8 million as mentioned above.

Adjusted gearing at the year end decreased to 1252 per cenl
(December 2004: 133.8 per cent) (slatutory gearing was 171.9 per
cent - December 2004: 181.0 per cent). Tender offer buy-backs
and market purchases during the year had the impact of
increasing gearing by 3.9 per cent and the negative effect of
loreign exchange translation of overseas net assets during 2005
increased gearing by a further 2.6 per cent.

The Group held £118.2 million cash as at 3} December 2005
(December 2004: £57.4 million), the movement in the year being:

2005 2004
Em £m
Cash inflow from property activities 51.8 51.7
Increase in equity investments held in
current assets (3.5) (6.5)
Cash inflow from operalions 48.3 452
Net interest and ather finance cosls (33.4) (31.6)
Taxation (0.3) {0.5)
Properties purchased and enhanced (67.3) (69.3)
New loans 148.6 129
Properties sold 45.1 85
Loans repaid (57.8) (45.8)
Tender offer payment to shareholders (156.8) (15.8)
Market purchase of shares for cancellation (2.0) -
Other {3.5) (3.5)
Net cash inflow 40.8 0.1

Existing equity investments held amounted to £13.7 million
(December 2004: £10.5 million). The majority by value are listed
investments, which are now carried at market value, and
represent only 1.1per cent of the gross assets cof the Group.

We believe that our unlisted investments have the potential for
growth in value in due course; we continue te be closely involved
in their pregress and add commercial support where appropriate.

The underlying elements of the growth in nel assets are set aut in
the table opposite. It is nat expecled that deferred taxation
provided would becomne payable in full if the properties were sold.
It1s currently anticipated that the overseas property assets would
be sold within corporate entities.




Continental Eguity
Group UK Sweden Europe Investments
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening net assets
As reported under UK GAAP 426 4 184.6 110.1 118.0 137
Adoption of IFRS at 31 Dec G4
145 12 deferred tax (107.4) (62.7) (28.9) (35.8) -
Other IFRS 48 23 - 25 -
as re-stated 31 December 2004 323.8 144.2 81.2 84.7 13.7
Adoption of 1AS 32 and 39 at 1 Jan 2005
Adoption of IAS 32 ang 39 10.0 (2.0) - - 12.0
Deferred tax on 1AS 32 and 39 N 1.0 - - (2.9
as re-stated 1 January 2005 3319 143.2 81.2 84.7 22.8
Movement in 2005
Income from investment in property 73.4 34.4 17.6 21.4 -
Realised gains on investments 1.1 - - - 1.1
Deficit on part disposal JV {1.1} amn - - -
Share of loss of Assoctates (1.2) - - - (1.2)
Operating expenses (18.4) (11.2) {33 (2.5) {1.4)
Met interest payable (36.3) (19.8) (10.6) (4.3 (1.6)
Underlying profit before tax 17.5 23 37 14.6 3n
Fair value gains on investment property 67.2 242 98 332 -
Taxation - current 1.3 o1 - 1.2) -
Taxation - deferred (219 (4.4) (4.3} (132) -
Discontinued operations (6.2) - - - (6.2}
Increase in equity due to direct investment 55.3 22.0 9.2 33.4 €9.3)
Other Equity movements
Shares issues 0.1 0.1 - - -
Shares purchased and associated costs (1.0} (19.0) - - -
Foreign exchange and other movements (7.7 - (55 (2.2} -
Change in fair value of listed investments net of tax (7.3} - - - (7.3}
Change in fair value of derivative instruments (0.8) (0.8} - -
Purchase of minority interest 1.3 - - - 1.3
Transfer of equity - 145 19.23 {156} 0.3
Net assets at 31 December 2005 353.8 160.0 75.7 100.3 17.8

MBIAIY JBIIUEeUl




FINANCIAL REVIEW (centinued)
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FINANCIAL RESULTS BY LOCATION - The results of the Group have been analysed by location and main business activity as set out below:

2005 Continental Equity
Total UK Sweden Eurcpe investments 2004
£m £€m £m £m £m £m
Net rental income 6%.3 318 17.2 20.3 - 676
Other operating gains 3.2 1.1 0.4 0.7 1.1 4.2
Operating expenses (18.4) (11.2) (3.3 25 (1.4) (13.8)
Qperating profit before gains on investment properties 54.2 217 143 18.5 (0.3) 58.2
Fair value gains an investment properties 8672 242 2.8 33.2 - 37.2
Deficit on disposal part share JV {11 (1.1 - - - -
Gain from sale of investment properties 1.9 1.5 - 0.4 - 0.5
Net finance expense (34.3) (19.8) (106} {43 (1.8) (34.M)
Associates operating loss 1.2y - - - .2 e
Profit on continuing activities befare tax 84.7 26.5 13.5 47.8 {3.1) 601
Tax - ordinary {1.3) (0.1) - {1.2) - {0.6)
Tax — deferred (21.9) (4.4) (4.3) (13.2) - (16.1)
Loss on discontinued operations (6.2) - - - (6.2) (4.0)
Profit far the year 553 22.0 9.2 33.4 (9.3} 39.4

NET RENTAL INCOME - of £69.3 million has increased by 2.5 per cent
(December 2004: £47.4 million) and refiected additional net income
of £0.8 millien in Solna, Sweden frem the [CA space completed

in May 2005 and increased rentals in France of £1.5 million due

to indexation and tease restructuring. Swedish net rental income
was reduced by increased net service charge expense of £0.7 million
as the majority of the rents are fully inclusive. UK net rental income
was stable with an increase of £0.7 million. Foreign exchange had
a negligible effect on rental income.

OTHER OPERATING GAINS - amounted to £3.3 million (Decemnber
2004: €£4.2 million) and included £1.6 million profit on the disposal
of Sit-up TV, an investment within our equity portfolio, and
dilapidations and lease surrender incorme of £0.9 million. Incorme
of £0.4 million was generated in Sweden from Solna Sports Park
and the marina at Vancrparken, lease extensions on cur
residential units at Cliffords Inn generated £0.2 million and the
remainder was generated from insurance commissicns and
management fees on develapment projects net of provisions
against unlisted Investments,

Operaling expenses as set out in the summary lable above
comprised administrative expenditure of £14.9 million {December
2004: £10.0 million) and net property expenses of £3.5 million
{December 2004: £3.6 million).

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURE - of £14.9 million increased

by £4.9 mitlion (December 2004: £10.0 million}. Of this total,
£13.6 miltion related 1o the core properly business, an increase
of £4.5 million over the comparative figure for last year, This was
mainly due to exceptional legal and professicnal fees expensed
amounting to £3.3 million, incurred to successfully preserve our
33.3 per cent shareholding in respect of a joint venture company
holding Londen Bridge Tower. Reasons for the remainder of the
increase over the previous year included costs of relocation and
ernployment related expenditure particularly in relation to
developing new markets. Overheads for the Investment Division
were £ 1.4 million.

NET PROPERTY EXPENSES - of (3.5 million (Decamber 2004-
£3.6 million) included depreciztion of £0.3 million, lelting fees of
£0.3 mititen, mainly in relation to vacant space within the French
portfolio and void costs of £0.7 million (mainly at Great West



House, Brentford, undergoing refurbishment). Advertising and
marketing costs totalled €0.4 million, bad debts armounted to
£0.9 million, mostly in relation to One Leicester Sguare, and
repairs and raintenance costs were £0.2 million for minor works
in Paris and the UK. The remainder comprised aperating cosis af
the gym at Solna of £0.4 million and non-recoverable VAT,

NET FINANCE EXPENSE - amounted to £34.3 million (December
2004: £34.1 million) and showed an increase of £2.2 million over
net expenditure in 2004, reflecting re-financings within all three of
the Group's markets, mitigated by lower interest rates on floating
rate debt in the UK and Sweden.

The comparative figures fer 2004 do not include 2 fair value
adjustrnent for caps and other financial instruments as [AS 39
and 32 were only applied from 1 January 2005. The overall
interest charge for 2004 would have been approximately

£0.9 million lower had it been calculated an a similar basis,

The Group's policy is to expense all interest payable to the profit
and loss account, including interest incurred in the funding of

refurbishment and development projects, which amounted to
£1.7 million in 2005 for Great Wesl House, Brentford and Frisaren
12 in Solna.

Analysis of net finance expense

005 2004 Oifference

£m fm £m

Interest reccivable 1.4 1.7 (0.3)
Foreign exchange - 01 (0.1)
Interest receivable and similar income 1.4 1.8 (0.4)
Interest payable and similar charges (37.7) (35.9) (1.8)
Net finance expense (36.3) (341} (2.2)

Interest payable and similar charges of £37 7 million (December
2004: £35.9 mitlion) included fair value movements on interest
rate caps amounting to £0.1 million (December 2004: £1.0 million,
before the application of IAS 32 and 3%) and amortisation of issue
costs of loans totalled £1.4 million (December 2004: £1.1 million).

The average cost of borrowing for the Group at 31 December 2005, which includes an estimate of
the fair value adjustrent in respect of interest rate caps, is set out below:

Centinental

UK Sweden Europe Total
December 2005
Average interest rate on fixed rate debt 7.2% 5.6% 4.6% 6.1%
Average interest rate on variable rate debt 6.1% 3.2% 3.5% 4.2%
Overall weighted average interest rate 6.9% 4.5% 4.2% 5.4%
December 2004
Average interest rate on fixed rate debt 7.3% 5.8% 4.6% 6.4%
Average interest rate on variable rate debt 6.6% 3.9% 33% 4.6%
Overall weighted average interest rate 7.1% 4.8% 4.0% 57%

TAXATION - I 2005 the Group’s current taxation charge has
benefited from the utilisation of losses, significant capital
allowances and amartisation deductions. Qutside the UK these
factors will have less effect in the future as corporation tax
losses are used against expected profits and as allowances and
amortisation deductions decrease in existing subsidiaries. In the
UK, the disposal of the cable businesses has resulted in
significant balancing allowances which will have increased losses
available to offset future profits.

LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - The Group completed
the disposal of the business and the assets of WightCable
in December 2005 and of WightCable North in January 2006.

REVIEW OF THE BALANCE SHEET

The operating results of these two businesses have been

classified under IFRS 5 as discontinued operations and the
comparative figures for 2004 have been similarly re-stated.
The results for 2005 include the write-down during the year

of the assets of WightCable North of £1.8 million, and the

purchase of the rernaining minority interest of £1.3 million.
In early January 2006 further costs relaling to the disposal
of WightCable North were incurred. amounting to £2.1 million.
We have been advised by our auditors that the prescriptive

nature of the IFRS Accounting Standards prevent us from

providing for these costs in 2005 and they have therefore been
expensed in 2006.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES ~ The investment properties of the Group have increased to £1,0%4.4 million (Decernber 2004: £1,022.5 million).

The analysis of the net increase of £73.9 million is shown below:

Continental Eurepe

Total UK Sweden France Germany

£Em £m £m £m Em

Opening assets 1,022.5 479.6 2731 268.0 18
Purchases 31.0 340 5.1 113 1.8
Relurbishment 43.4 10.7 310 17 -
Disposals {45.6) (38.3} 2 (6.1) -
Revaluation 67.2 24.2 7.8 337 {0.5)
Foreign exchange (27.0) - (19.7) (7.2) 0.1
Other 4.9 2.1 2.8 - -
Closing assets 1,096.4 481.3 300.9 301.4 12.8




F| NAN C|AI_ REVIEW (cortinued)

PURCHASES - Two new properties were purchased in France at
Rue Raspail and Croissy Beaubourg at a total cost of £11.3 million
(€16.7 million). An additional properly, Yrket 3, was purchased at
Solna Business Park at a cost of £5.1 mitlion (SEK 70.0 million)
and we completed the purchase of two new properties in
Hamburg, Germany al FrohbGsestrasse 12 for £2.5 million and at
Jarreslrasse 8-10 for £9.1 million including costs (€16.1 million).
Three small residential units were purchased as part of our site
at Vauxhall Cross, London for £1.8 million and two further
residential flats were purchased at The View', Victeria, London
for €£1.2 million.

REFURBISHMENT - Expenditure on refurbishments of £43.4 mittion
included £30.3 million expended at Solna, mainly on the
construction of retail and office space for ICA, and £6.5 miliion at
Great West House, Brentford, undergoing major refurhishment
and a new facade,

DISPOSALS - Several disposals were made during the year,

Lord Byron, La Ferme, Avenue Fantainebleau and Abbé Hazarg
were sold in France during the year for a tolal consideratian of
£6.4 million, yielding a total profit on dispesal of £0.4 millien, and
i the UK Carlow House was sold for £18.2 million, generating a
profit on sale of £0.4 million, and New Londen House, Drury Lane
sold for £14.0 million, generating a profit on disposat of £1.1 mi.lion.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE - Foreign cxchange translation losses an
Swedish and French property holdings amounted to £27.0 million
in the year. After taking into account the effect of foreign
exchange translation on leans to finance these assets, the net
effect was a less of £10.8 million.

Based on the valuations at 31 December 2005 and annualised net
contracted rent receivable al that date of £76.4 million {December
2004: £74.6 million), the portfolic shows a yield of 6.3 per cent
(Decermnber 2004: 6.9 per cent).

An analysis of the location of investment property assets and related loans is set ou! below:

Centinenta! Equity
Total UK* Swedent Europet investments
£m % Em Y £m % £m % £m %
investment Properties 1,096.4 1000 481.3 439 300.9 27.4 314.2 28.7 - -
Loans {719.9) 1000 (317.6) 442 (186.8) 249 (205.8) 2864 2.7 13
Equity in Property Assets 3765 1000 163.7 43.5 114.1 30.3 108.4 28.8 .7 (248
Other 109.4 100.0 495 452 (7.3) 6.7 40.1 36.7 271 24.8
Net Adjusted Equity 485.9 1000 213.2 43.9 106.8 220 148.5 30.6 17.4 35
Equity in Property as a Percentage
of Investment 34.3% 34.0% 37.9% 34.5% -
£m £m £m £m £€m
Opening Equity 4372 192.9 101 1205 137
Increase/(decrease) 48.7 20.3 3.3 28.0 3.7
Closing Equity 485.9 213.2 106.8 148.5 17.4

1t The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and tiabilities at the year end: SEK/GBP 13.702: Euro/GBP 1.453.

*  Net assets were reduced by payments for tender olfer distnbutians totalling £14.8 million. and market purchases totalling £2.0 million which are included within the

results of the UK,

DEBT STRUCTURE - Borrowings are raised by the Group to finance
holdings of investment properties. These are secured, in the
main, on the individual properties to which they relate. All
borrowings are taken up in the local currencies from specialist
property lending institutions.

Net Interest Bearing Debt

Financial instruments are held by the Group to manage interest
and foreign exchange rate risk. Hedging instruments such as
interest rate caps are acquired from prime banks. The Group has
thereby hedged all of its interest rate exposure and a significant
proportion of its foreign exchange rate exposure.

Continental Equity

Total UK Sweden Europe Investments
£m % £m % £m % Em % £m %
Fixed Rate Loans (389.5) 541 (221.6) 9.8 {88.4) 473 (79.4) 384 (0.1} 1.0
Floating Rate Loans (330.4) 459 (96.0) 302 (98.4) 527 (126.4) 614 (9.6} 79.0
(719.9) 1000 (317.6) 1000 (186.8) 1000 (205.8) 1000 (9.7) 1000

Bank and cash 118.2 55.1 10.3 43.7 9.1
Net Interest Bearing Debt (601.7) 1000 (2462.5) 437 {176.5) 293 (162.1) 269 (0.8) 0.1
2004 (581.2) 1000 (289 6} 498 11412} 243 [148.9) 256 (1.9) 0.3

Nen interesl bearing debt, represented by short-term creditors, amounted to £45.4 million (December 2304: C44.7 millicn).



Interest rate caps

Continental

Total UK Sweden Eurcpe
% % Ye %
2005
Percentage of net floating rate loans capped 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Average base interest rate at which loans are capped 5.2 5.8 4.9 5.0
Average tenure 28years 2.4years 2.T7years 3.1vyears
2004
Percentage of net floating rate loans capped 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Average base interest rate at which loans are capped 53 66 4.9 4.8
Average tenure 3.1years 2.7years 3d4years 34dyears

During 2005 a number of re-financings in the Group portfolio took
place, the majerity of which were on a fleating rate basis, hedged
by five year interest rate caps. Since the year-end we have
extended the tenure of our commercially effective caps to an
average of 3.8 years for Sterling and 5.1 years for Euro.

New Printing House Square was financed in 1992 through &
securitisation of its rental income by way of a fully amortising bond.
This bond has a current outstanding balance of £38.0 million
{Decemnber 2004: £38.6 million) at an interest rate of 10.8 per cent
with a maturity date of 2025; and a zere coupon bond, with a current
outstanding balance of £5.5 million (December 2004: £5.0 million),
with matching interest rate and maturity date. This debt instrument
has a significant adverse effect on the average interest rate and the
|AS 32 adjustment.

The net borrowings of the Group at 31 December 2005 of

£601.7 million showed an increase of £20.5 mitlion over 2004,
reflecting our increasing investment prograrmme. We have refinanced
our assets in the UK (£57.8 million}, Sweden (£48.3 million} and
within the French portfolic {(£3%.8 million), and new loans for
acquisitions in Gerrmany of £9.7 million. Foreign exchange translation
gains on Swedish and French loans reduced the liability by

£16.2 mitlion during the year, and repayments totatled £57.8 million.

Under the reguirements of 1AS 32, which zddresses disclosure in
retation to derivatives and other financial instruments. if our loans
were held at fair value, the Group’s fixed rate debt at the year end
would be in excess of book value by £39.5 million (December
2004: £33.3 million) which net of tax at 30 per cent equates to
£27.8 millien {December 2004: £23.3 million).

The contracted future cash flows from the properties securing the
loans are currently well in excess of all interest and ongoing loan
repayment obligations. Only £25.3 million (3.5 per cent) of the
Group's total borrowings of £719.9 million is repayable within the
next 12 months, with £382.8 million (53.2 per cent) maturing after
five years.

SHARE CAPITAL - The share capital of the Cornpany totalled
£21.4 million at 31 December 2009, represented by 85,527,177
ordinary shares of 25 pence each, quoted on the main market of
the London Stock Exchange. Of the shares in issue, 5,469,490 are
held as Treasury shares following the tender offer buy-backs and
market purchases made during the year, and therefore are not
included for the purposes of the proposed tender offer buy-back
or for calculating earnings and NAV per share.

A capital distribution payment by way of tender offer buy-back
was made both in May and Novernber of 2005 resulting in the
purchase of 3.4 million shares and providing a distribution cof
£16.8 million to shareholders, together with costs of £0.1 million.

Market purchases during 2005 totalled 441,000 shares al an
average price of 457 pence per share.

Atolal of 54.7 million shares have been purchased at a total cost
of £128.4 million sirce the proegramme of buy-backs started in
1998. The average cost of shares purchased for cancellation over
this period was 235 pence per share.

The weighted average number of shares in issue during the year
was 82,316,545 (December 2004 86,113.994).

The average mid-market price of the shares traded in the market
during the year ended 31 December 2005 was 452 pence with a
high of 505 pence in December 2005 and a low of 394 pence in
January 2005.

Ar anzlysis of share movements during the year is set out below:

Number Number

of shares of shares

Million Million

2005 2004

Opening shares for NAV purposes 83.9 87.6
Tender offer buy-back (3.4) 4.1
Buy-backs in the market for cancellation (0.4) -
Shares issued for the exercise of options - 0.4
Closing shares for NAV purposes 80.1 839
Shares hetd in Treasury by the Company 5.4 14
Closing shares in issue 85.5 85.5

In tetal 21.9 million shares were traded in the market during 2005.

An analysis of the ownership structure is set out below:

Number Percentage
of shares of shares
Institutions 32,618,524 40.8%
Private investors 1.476.084 1.8%
The Mortstedt family directors 41,017,368 51.2%
Other 4,945,711 6.2%
80.057.687 100.0%
Shares held in Treasury by the Company 5,469,490
Total 85,527,177

Should the proposed tender offer buy-back be fully taken up,
the number of shares in issue would be reduced by 1,905,474
to 78,124,467 {excluding shares held in treasury of 7,402,710).

At 31 December 2005 there were 595,000 options in existence with
an average exercise price of 2446.1 pence.

DISTRIBUTION - As the current share price remains at a
considerable discount to adjusted net assel value, your Board is
intending to propose a further tender offer buy-back of shares in
lieu of paying a cash dividend, on Lhe basis of 1in 47 shares al a
price of 600 pence per share. This will enhance net asset value
per share and is equivalent in cash terms to a final dividend per
share of 14.3 pence, yielding a total distribution in cash terms of
22.8 pence per share for the year (December 2004: 19.3 pence).

CORPORATE STRUCTURE - The aim has been to continue ta hold
individual propertics within separate subsidiary companies, each
with one loan on a non-recourse basis.
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OUR CONTINUING GROUP STRATEGY IS

TO FOCUS UPON LOW RISK HIGH RETURN
PROPERTIES IN OUR CORE LOCATIONS

OF LONDON, SWEDEN, FRANCE AND NOW
GERMANY. WE BELIEVE THAT OUR EMPHASIS
ON ACTIVELY MANAGING THE PORTFOLIO
MAXIMISES LONG TERM CAPITAL RETURNS.

— The Group now owns 113 properties with a total lettable
area of 612,838 sq m (6,596,536 sq ft), of which 45
properties are in the UK, 24 in Sweden, 40 in France,
3in Germany and 1 in Luxembourg. We have 610
commercial tenants and 1,292 residential tenants.




An analysis of contracted rent, book value and yields is set out below:

Yield Yield
Centracted Net Book en net when
Rent rent Value rent Fully let
£800 Y% £000 % €000 % % %
UK
Londeon City Fringes 212 0.3% 212 0.3% 2,850 0.3% 7 4%
London Mid town 5,967 $1% 6,967 10.0% 106,750 9.7% 6.5%
London West End 3,318 4.3% 3,238 4.7% 59,226 5.4% 5.5%
London West 4,977 £.5% 3,930 9.7% 74,656 £.8% 5.3%
London South Bank 10,660 13.9% 10,619 15.2% 155,892 14.3% 6.8%
Londen South Bank - J¥s 2,046 2.7% 2.046 2.9% 34,361 31% 6.0%
Londen South West 1,439 1.9% 1,288 1.9% 20,200 1.8% 6.4%
Londen North West 1,678 2.2% 1214 1.7% 25,500 2.3% 4.8%
Outside London 245 0.3% 245 04% 1,825 0.2% 13.4%
Total UK 31,542 41.2% 29,759 42.8% 481,240 43.9% 6.2% 6.5%*
Sweden
Sweden Gothenburg 5.888 7.7% 2,612 3.8% 39,777 3.6% 6.6%
Sweden Stockholm 12,294 16.1% 11,120 16.0% 210,524 19.6% 2.2%
Sweden Vanersborg 4,474 5.9% 3,808 5.4% 45,615 4.2% 83%
Total Sweden 22,656 29.7% 17,540 25.2% 300,916 27.4% 5.8% 6.5%t
Continental Eurcpe
France Paris 16,642 21.7% 16,642 24.0% 246,786 22.6% 6.7%
France Lyon 2,740 3.6% 2,740 3.9% 34,123 3% 8.0%
France Lille 594 0.8% 594 0.9% 6,772 0.6% 8.8%
France Antibes 431 0.6% 431 0.6% 4,618 0.4% 9.3%
Total France 20,407 26.7% 20,407 29.4% 292,299 26.7% 7.0% 7.7%
Luxernboury 808 11% 808 1.2% 2,085 0.8% 8.9%
Total Luxembourg 808 1.1% 808 1.2% 9,085 0.8% 8.9% 8.9%
Germany Hamburg 813 1.0% 813 1.2% 11,012 1.0% 7.4%
Germany Disseldort 213 0.3% 174 0.2% 1,789 0.2% 9.7%
Total Germany 1,026 1.3% 987 1.4% 12,801 1.2% 7.7% 7.7%
Total Cantinental Europe 22,241 29.1% 22,202 32.0% 314,185 28.7% 7.1% 7.7%
Group Total 76,437 100.0% 69,501 100.0% 1,095,361 100.0% 6.3% 6.8%

Conversion rates; SEK/GBP 13.702 Euro/GBP 1.453

- Contracted rent is defined as gross annualised rent supported by a signed contract.
- MNetrentis defined as contracted rent less net service charge costs.

- Yields on net rents have been calculated by dividing the net rent by the book value.

approximately £12.0 millien in respect of projects in the UK.

Yields on receivable rents and petential rents have been caleutated on the assumption that book values al 31 Decamber 2005 will increase by refurbishment cxpendilure of

T Yields on receivable rents and gotential reats have been ¢alculated on the assumption that book vatues at 31 December 2005 will increase by refurbishment expenditure ol

approximately £10.2 mitlion 1n respect of projects in Solna, Sweden.

malnay Ajadosg



PROPERTY REV|EW {continued)

Rent analysed by length of lease and location

The table below shows rental income by category and the future potential income available from new lettings and refurbishments.

Space

under

Contracted Contracted Unlet Refurb

Aggregate but not Space or with

Rental income at ERV planning
producing consent Total Total
Sqm Sq bt £000 €000 £000 £000 £000 %
UK >10yrs 71,997 774,970 15,398 1.158 - - 156,556 48.8%
UK 5-10yrs 25,998 279,840 5,358 - - - 5,358 15.8%
UK <Syrs 44,356 477 4b4 9,628 - - - 2,628 28.4%
Development Stock 6,248 67,253 - - - 1.108 1,108 33%
Vacant 8,394 90,352 - - 1,243 - 1,243 37%
Total UK 156,993 1,689.85% 30,384 1,158 1,243 1,108 33,892 100.0%
Sweden > 10 yrs 23,794 256117 3,181 - - - 3,181 12.3%
Sweden 5-10 yrs 76,454 822 944 7.330 - - - 7,330 28.3%
Sweden < 5 yrs 159,304 1,714735 12,145 - - - 12,145 46.8%
Refurbished space 13,337 143,558 - - - 1,670 1,670 6.4%
Vacant 21,147 227675 - - 1618 - 1,618 5.2%
Total Sweden 294,036 3,164,979 22,656 - 1,618 1,670 25,944 100.0%
France 5-10yrs 58,221 526,686 8,085 - - - 8,085 356.1%
France < 5yrs 78,341 843,254 12,322 - - - 12,322 55.0%
Refurbished space 1,417 15,252 - - - 166 166 0.7%
Vacant 2,390 101.073 - - 1,835 - 1,835 8.2%
Totat France 147,369 1,586,267 20,407 - 1,835 1466 22,408 100.0%
Luxembourg < 5 yrs 3,698 39.805 808 - - - 808 100.0%
Total Luxembourg 3,698 39,805 808 - - - 808 100.0%
Germany > 10 yrs 1,993 21,452 17 - - - 17 16.7%
Germany 5-10 yrs 932 10,032 115 - - - 115 11.2%
Germany < 5yrs 7817 84,142 740 - - - 740 72.1%
Total Germany 10,742 115,624 1,026 - - - 1,026 100.0%
Group > 10 yrs 97,784 1,052,539 18,750 1,158 - - 19,908 23.7%
Group 5-10yrs 161,605 1,737,502 20.588 - - - 20,888 24.8%
Group < 5 yrs 293,516  3.159382 35,643 - - - 35,643 42 4%
Refurbished space 14,754 158,810 - - - 1836 1,836 2.2%
Development Stock 6,248 £7.253 - - - 1.108 1,108 1.3%
Vacant 38,931 419,050 - - 4696 - 4,696 5.6%
Group Total 612,838 6,594,536 75,281 1,158 4,694 2,944 B4,079 100.0%
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We estimate that open market rents are approximately 5.2 per cent lower than current contracted
rents receivable, which represents a potential decrease of £4.0 millian. This excludes the additional
rents we will receive as a result of our refurbishment programme. An analysis of the net decrease

is set out below:

Contracted Estimated Reversicnary

Rent Rental Value Element

£m £m %

UK 31.5 203 (3.8)
Sweden 227 2.0 (11.%)
Continental Europe 222 221 0.5)
Total 76.4 72.4 (5.2)

The total potential gress rental income (comprising contracted rentals, and estimated rental value
of unlet space and refurbishment) of the portfolio is £84.1 million p.a.

Business Services 22.1

™~ Dther 10.1
N Media 6.1
Charity 0.5

Finance 6.0

Manufacture 6.8

Leisure 3.5

1.T7.3

Government 31.7

CONTRACTED RENT BY SECTOR (%)

The preposed New London Bridge
House development

> 10 vears 23.7

Vacant 5.6

Development Stock 1.3

//

Refurhished Space 2.2
5-10years 24.8

< B years 42.4

TOTAL RENT BY LEASE LENGTH (%)

London Bridge Tower
{The Shard of glass)



THE OUTLOOK FOR 2006 1S POSITIVE.

WE SEE CONTINUING EVIDENCE OF
RENTAL GROWTH ACROSS OUR UK
PORTFOLIO AND AN OVERALL REDUCTION
IN OUR VACANCY RATE.

UNITED

HIGHLIGHTS of 2005

New Prnting

House Square
Spring Gardens
Lewcester Square

Great Wesl
House

Computer House
Cap Gemini House
Caoventry House

Westminster
Tower

Cambridge
House

Cl Tower
Brent House
Clfford s Inn

Vista Qffice
Centre

Chancei House
Cenoeo House
Quayside
Tinworth Streel
Dukes Read
Buspace Studies
London House
King St-eel
Ingram House
Bendway
Satelute House
Zest Nightelub
Deanery Street
Yauxhall Walk
Western House

Hallane Park
Avenue

Miles Street
Soulhwark Towers

Mew London
Bridge House

» Spring Gardens extension of all leases to the Home Office to 2026 an completion
of further 27,000 sq ft infills.

» Sale of Carlow House fer £18.2 million.
* Sale of Drury Lane for £14.0 million.

» Major refurbishment at Great West House on schedule to launch the building
in Spring 2006.

+ New lettings progress at Vista near Heathrow, Cl Tower in New Malden and
Quayside in Fulham.

]




During the year, the value of the UK property portfolic increased

by 5.0 per cent or £24.2million due to revalvation uplifts, and net of
disposals was valued at £481.3 million at 31 Decernber 2005 inclusive
of our share of joint ventures.

The sales achieved were of Cartow House, Carlow Street, NW1 and
New London House, Drury Lane, WC2. Carlow House was sold for
£18.2 million against a purchase price in 1995 of £11.5 mitlion.
The building provides 4,454 sq m (47,941 sq ft) of offices together
with the ground rents for 13 residential apartments. The sale price
represented a net yield of 7.2 per cent.

New London House in Drury Lane provides 2,167 sq m (23,328 sq ft) of
offices together with 914 sq m (9,836 sq ft) of retail and leisure uses.
The property was sold for £14.0 million, representing a net yield of
6.4 per cent. CLS acquired the property in 1994 for £10.5 million.

Both properties were considered to offer limited prospects for future
growth and the sales generated a profit of £1.5 millicn against
valuation. Net cash proceeds amounted to £10. 3 million following
repayment of the loans and fees.

2005 continued to be a challenging year to find value through new
acquisitions and our purchases were limited to 3 residential
proparties on Wandsworth Read, SW8 for £1.8 million.

The principal development activity during the year has been at
Great West House in West Landon and at Spring Gardens, Yauxhall.
At Great West House we are investing just over £11 million on a
major refurbishment of the external elevations, entrance halls and
landscaping. We remain on schedule to launch the building in the
spring of 2006.

The refurbishment works at Chancel House, which include new air
cooling, overhauled lifts, a new reception and the vacant offices on
the 5th floor, have been completed on schedule. The building has
1,392 sq m (14,986 sq ft) of vacant offices to let for which we are
quoting a rent of £151 per sq m (£14.00 per sq ft).

Finally, the cenversion of the top twe floers of Ingram House, John
Adam Street, WC2? into 5 apartments was compteted during the
summer of 2005 and having taken the decision to retain these
apartments, all have now been let.

A strengthening tenant market throughout 2005 has enabled us to
achieve a number of important new lettings at Vista near Heathrow,
Cl Tower in New Malden, Quayside Lodge in Fulham and at our
Spring Gardens Estate in Vauxhall. Most noteworthy is the deal
signed with our existing tenant, the Home Office at Spring Gardens.

At Spring Gardens, significant progress was made towards
completion of 855 sq m (9,203 sq ft) of new cffice accommodation
being built between Unit 3 and Unit 4. Completion is due in the first
half of 2006 and these new offices have been pre-let to the Home
Office on a new 20 year lease without break at £344.50 per sq m
(£32.00 per sq ft).

The Spring Gardens Estate currently provides 15,923 sq m
(171,392 sq ft) of office space. all of which is let lo the Home Off:ce.

In June and August 2005, two new planning consents were secured to
build an additienal 2,503 sq m (26,945 sq fl) of office accommodalion
on the site. Construction staried in January 2006 and upon
completion in December, these new offices will be let to the Home
Office on leases which expire in 2026 at an average rent of £334 per
sg m (£31.06 per sq ft).

In addition, upon completion of these new offices, the Home Office
will extend a number of existing leases such that the whele Estate
will be Let until 2026. The total income will initially rise from
£5,451,438 per annum to approximately £6,288,355 per annum.

The amount of vacant space at the end of 2005 stood at 8,394 sqm
(90,352 sq ft) or 5 per cent of the total for the UK, excluding Great
West House which is under construction pending release in the
spring of 2006.

During 2005 we have been particularly active with our joint ventures
at London Bridge Tower (' The Shard of Giass’) and New London
Bridge House; two adjacent redevelopment opportunities next door
to London Bridge Station.

The planning application for a new Renzo Piane designed building
on the site of the current New London Bridge House was formally
lodged with Southwark Council in January 20046 and provides for a
new high quality office and retail building providing approximately
39,950 sq m (430,000 sq ft).

At London Bridge Tower, following the pre-letting of the hotel
element to Shangri La, good progress is being made in securing a
pre-letting of a substantial part of the cffices and these efforts will
continue throughout 2006.

The outlook for 2006 is positive, We see continuing evidence of rental
growth across our UK portfolio and an overall reduction in our
vacancy rate. In this regard we are focusing cur efforts towards a
successful marketing campaign at Great West House and subsequent
lettings of the vacant offices.

Our UK portfolio offers good potential for adding value by securing
new planning consents, We are starting to evaluate the polentia!

of our holdings at Hoskyns House, next to Yauxhall mainline ang
underground station and will continue to work with our jeint venture
partners towards a positive cutcorne to the planning application at
New London Bridge House. We may consider individual disposals
where premium prices can be obtained and we will continue Lo seek
out new apportunities where we can achieve enhanced returns cor
asset growth.

London Midtown 7.0
London City Fringes 0.2
Quisfde London 0.3

London Nerth West 1.2
London South West 1.3
Londen South Bank- J¥s 2.1
Lontlon West End 3.2
Lendon West 3.9

Londen Seuth Bank 10.4

f
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CURRENT GROWTH FORECASTS
PREDICT THAT THE SWEDISH ECONOMY
WILL OUT-PERFORM MQOST OTHER
WESTERN EUROPEAN ECONOMIES

IN THE COMING YEARS

HIGHLIGHTS of 2005

+ Refurbishment of Frisaren 12, at Solna Business Park, Stockholm, was completed within
budget and ICA were able to take occupation in accoerdance with their time schedules.

* Major award winning works to facade at Smeden, Solna Business Park, completed.
» Purchase of Yrket 3 at Solna Business Park for £5.1 million (SEK 70 miliien).

¢ Vanerparken - extension of university lease to 2008 as well as further lettings. Yacancy
rate at Vanerparken is now only 2.2%.

¢ Sale of Lévgardet, comprising 1,280 apartments and 42,608 sq m (458,644 sq ft) of
commercial and retail space was sold for £40.7 million (SEX 547 million} on 1 Fehruary 2006.
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The Swedish economy has been backed by GOP growth of 2.5 per cent
and falling rates of unemployment. More importantly, current growth
forecasts predict that the Swedish econory will cut-perforrn most
other Western European economies in the caming years.

Yields have compressed by approximately 50 bps during 2005 to just
under 5 per cent for central Stockholm properties with long-term
secure income streams.

During the last two to three years, Stockholm in particular has
suffered from high vacancy rates of between 15 to 20 per cent and
falling rents, although these have now generally stabilised. Despite
improving occupational demand it is expected tc take some time
before this makes a significant impact on current rentat levels.
Most new leases being signed reflect the relocation of occupiers
within the market and demand is strengest for modern, flexible well
equipped open plan offices.

SOLNA BUSINESS PARK - During 2005 the main focus of our activity
concentrated on the substantial completion of warks te Solna
Business Park. These focused primarily on completing works lo
Frasaren 12 to enable the Scandinavian food retailer, ICA, to open
their supermarket of 9,400 sq m (101,182 sq ft) in May 2005 and

to take occupation of their office headquarters of 14,700 sq m
{158,230 sq ft) in August 2005, The works were completed within
budget and we adhered to the tight build programme which enabled
themn to successfully take occupation in accordance with their

time schedules.

In addition major works to the fagade of Smeden were completed,
including encasing the face of the 200 metre building in a glass
envelope and the installation of an innovative lighting systern.

In April 2005 we made a strategic purchase of a further 6,273 sqm
(67.524 sq ft) property at Solna Business Park, Yrket 3, at a cost of
£5.7 million (SEK 70 millien). It is fully let.

We have made significant progress in branding Solna Business Park
as a desirabte office location and as a result have signed or agreed
to lease 27,354 sq m of previously vacant space during 2005.

We have work to do in order to further reduce vacant space as during
the year the IT division of the Swedish Post Office vacated 11,792 sq m
(126,931 sg ft) of office space at Sliparen 2 in order to consolidate
within their other properties,

The overall vacant space by area in Sweden al 31 December 2005
was 21,747 sq m {227,625 sq ft) or 7.2 per cent and space under
refurbishment amounted to a further 13,337 sg m {143,558 sq ft)
or 4.9 per cent.

LOVGARDET - The estate, comprising 1,280 apartments and 42,608 sg m
(458,644 5q ft) of commercial and retail space was sold to Stens
Fastigheter AB, a well respected local landlord, far £39.9 million
(SEK 547 million) on 1 February 2006. The properties were purchased
in January 2002 for £29.4 million {SEK 440 million} and were sold al
our year end value.

VANERPARKEN - The development provides important public services
accommodation to the town of ¥Yanershorg, including the provision of
a hospital, university, offices, public swimming peol and 2 marina.

Following the extension of the university lease to 2008 and further
letting success in the year, the current vacancy rate 1s 2.2 per cent
which is the lowest since it was purchased in 1998. We have
commenced discussions with the City with regard to how we can
facilitate future requirements.

Gathenburg 2.6

Vanersborg 2.8

g

Stockholm 11.1
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THE FRENCH REAL ESTATE MARKET SAW
SIGNIFICANT ACTIVITY IN 2005; A TOTAL
OF €15.7 BILLION WAS INVESTED, A 30%

INCREASE OVER 2004.

CONTINENTAL

FUROPE
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HIGHLIGHTS of 2005
FRANCE

Acquisition of two properties: Rue Raspail in Ivry for £7.9 million (€11.6 million) ard
Croissy Beaubourg bought for £3.4 million (€£5.1 million).

Sale of four smaller properties in Paris and Lyon for £6.4 million (€9.4 millian).

Conversion of our property at Le Foch, in La Garenne Colombes into 14 residential flats.

Signing of new leases and lease renewals over 18,435 sq m (198,029 sq ft}
representing 12.5% of the French portfolio.

GERMANY

Acguisition of Frohhdsestrasse in Hamburg for £2.5 million (€3.6 million}.
Acquisition of Jarrestrasse B-10 in Hamburg for £8.6 million {(€2.5 million).

Since year end we have contracted to purchase two further properties for
£45.1 million {€65.6 million) generating a return on equity of 20%.

Edovard Belin

Rueil 2000
Lotus

Le Sigma
Charenton Bercy
Forum

Bellevue

Le Quaiuor
Petits Champs
Le Debussy

Missior
Marchand

Yilla Argelica
Fronl de Parc
Columbus
Equinaxe ||
La Madelene
Rue Nationale

Capitaine
Guynemer

Paul Deumer
Rhéne 4lpes
Park Avenue
D'Aubigny
Philippe Auguste
Pelits Hétels

Le Chorus
Edouard Yailtant

Rue Piarre
Timbaud

Marcel Pourtoul
Le Focn

Santes Qumont
Sclférine
Général Leclerc
Ruz Stephenson
Le Gauguin

Le Sirius

Jean laurés
Eugéne Ruppert

Georges
Clémenceau

Rue Raspail

Craissy Beaubourg

Jarrestrasse

Frobbisestrasse

Schantensirasse




The French real estate market saw significant activity in 20053; a total
of €15.7 billion was invested, a 30 per cent increase over 2004, and
there has been diversification of the investment market in terms of
product and location. In the Paris area, 2,165,300 sq m (23,259,653 sq 1)
of office space was taken up, an improvement of 12 per cent
compared with 2004, and average headline rents remained stable
during the year.

Yields are now at historically low levels, driven by the presence of
many foreign investors and the weight of money. This trend is likely
to continue in 2006.

During the year, new leases and lease renewals in our French
portfolio accounted for a total of 18,435 sq m (198,029 sq ft),
representing 12.5 per cent of the portfolio. These transactions,
together with indexation of rents, generated additional income of
€1.3 million during the year, equating to an uplift of 5.0 per cent.

Major letting successes in the year included extension of the lease
to our tenant BNP-Paribas Insurance over 8,077 sq m (86,763 sq ft)
in our 9,849 sq m (105,798 sq ft) property in Rueil-Malmaison and
completion of a /9 year new lease. In the Sigma property an
additional letting of 1,193 sq m (12,815 sq ft) was made to Data Base
Factory, together with completion of a 3/6/9 year lease. This
represerted 18 per cent of the building by area.

The vacancy rate of our portfolio remained low at 6.2 per cent,
very close to the national average of 6.0 per cent. This decreased
to 3.0 per cent at the end of January 2006 following the sale of the
vacant 6,026 sq m (64,864 sq ft) Le 41 property.

The pertfolio was enhanced in 2005 by the addition of two newly
acquired properties located in the Paris suburbs at a totat cost of
€16.7 million (E11.3 million) ; Rue Raspail in lvry €11.6 million,
(£7.9 million) providing 5,570 sq m (59.833 sq ft) of lettable area and
whose main tenant is Jet Tours, and Croissy Beaubourg €5.1 million,
(€3.4 millian) providing 3.199 sq m (34,364 sq ft) let to a single
tenant, Polymerland (part of the G.E. Group).

Several buildings have undergone refurbishment and improvement
during 2005, the most nolable being the renovation of the Marcel
Pourtout property (2,219 sq m, 23,837 sq ft) which led to the
re-letting of all the vacant areas (1,447 sqgm, 15,544 sq ft) toa
secure tenant Bureau Veritas, on a /9 year lease. This property

is now fully lel.

Other buildings undergoing light refurbishment included

e Clemenceau. which received a new reception area and two
new lifts, and Front de Parc in Lyon, in which we replaced all
of the air cooling units.

A number of smaller properties in Paris and Lyen have been sotd for
a total of €9.4 million (€6.4 miltion), the largest being the Lord Byran
building, sold for €4.4 million (€3.0 millicn}.

Finally, we commenced the conversion of our 1,613 sq m (17,327 sq it}
office property Le Foch, in La Garenne Colombes into 16 residential
flats. The existing office tenants occupying this building were all
reatlocated to vacant space in two of our other properties in the

same area.

The gencral economic improvement registerad in France in the third
quarter of 2005 is settling in and the economic indicators suggest
that the growth rate should increase from 1.6 per cent recerded in
2005 to 2.0 per cent in 2006.

Germany Dusseldorf 0.2
In

Luxembourg 0.8

France Antibes 0.4

France Liile 0.6

France Lyon 2.7

France Paris 16.7
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UNITED KINGDOM -= Ingram House = Dukes Road » Brent House » Westminster Tower » Cap Gemini House
> Conoco House > New Printing House Square » Vista Office Centre » Cl Tower » Great West House » Cliffords
fnn > Coventry House » Western House - Spring Gardens » Cambridge House » London House = Deanery Street
<> One Leicester Square + Quayside » Chancel House » Buspace Studios + Bondway ~ Satellite House » New
London Bridge House » Southwark Towers <« SWEDEN -~ Solna Business Park » Vidnerparken » Lovgardet <«
CONTINENTAL EUROPE »~>Marcel Pourtout ~ Solférino » Columbus = Equinoxe 11 » Philippe Auguste + Général
Leclerc » Paul Doumer » Rhéne Alpes » Forum - Petits Hotels » Mission Marchand » Edouard Vaillant
Rue Pierre Timbaud » Bellevue - Villa Angelica » Front de Parc » Santos Dumont » Rue Nationale » Le Debussy
» Le Sigma » Lotus - Charenton Bercy - Petits Champs > D’Aubigny - Le Chorus - Le Quatuor » Edouard Belin
> Capitaine Guynemer » Le Foch » La Madeleine = Rueil 2000 » Park Avenue » Le Gauguin » Le Sirius »
Jean Jaures » Eugéne Ruppert » Georges Clémenceau » Rue Raspail » Croissy Beaubourg » Rue Stephenson »

Jarrestrasse » Frohbodsestrasse » Schanzenstrasse <« 29




SCHEDULE OF GROUP PROPERTIES

Frechold/ ([.?g;c;turfuctiom’
Properties UK Address Leasehold Arsa m' Arca Sq ft Use Refurbishment
Property value > £20m
Spring Gardens Tinwgrth Street, London SET1 Freehold 18,426 198,342 Offices 1990
New Printing House Square  214/236 Grays Inn Road, London WG 1 Freehold 26,295 283,044 Dffices 1996
Leicester Square 1 Leicester Sguare, London WCZ Freehold 3,350 36,060 Einema/RetaiU 1999
gisure

Cap Gemnini House 25 Wandsworth Rd, 72-78 Bondway, Freehold 10,427 112,235 Offices/Industrial 1993

22 Miles Street, Londen SW8
Great West House Great West Road, Brentford, Middx TW8 Freehold 8,551 93,122 Offices 2005
Computer House Great West Road, Brentford, Middx TW8 Freehold 5792 462,347 Dffices 2605
Cl Tower High Street, New Malden, Surrey KT3 Freehold 7.543 81,195 Offices 2002
Coventry House 21/24 Caventry St. & Freehold 656 7,081 Restaurant/ 2002

35a Haymarket, London SW1 Residential/

Advertising
Propetty value £10m - £20m
Cambridge House 100 Cambridge Grove, London W6 Freehold 6,633 71,399 Offices 1998
Westminster Tower 3 Albert Embankment, London SE1 Freehold 4,473 48,148 Offices 2004
Brent House 349/357 High Road, Wembley, Middx HAS Freehold 9,128 98,254 Dffices 1995
Vista Office Centre Salisbury Read, Hounslow, Middx TWé Freehold 2,498 102,239 Offices 1999
Clifford's Inn Fetter Lane, London EC4 Frashold 3,181 34,241 Offices/Residential 1993
Property value < £10m
Chancel House Neasder Lane, London N¥W10 Freehold 7.017 75,533 Offices 1950
Conoco House 200 Great Dover Street, London SE1 Leasehold 3,377 36,345 Offices 1960's
Quayside William Morris Way, London SWé Freehold 3,051 32,842 Offices 1989
Ingram House 13/15 John Adam Street, London WC2 Freehold 1,133 12,196 Offices 2004
Dukes Road 22 Qukes Road, London WC1 Freehald 1,067 11,485 Offices 1980's
Tinworth Street 2/10 Tinworth Straet, London SET1 Freehold 1,264 13,598 Industrial/Offices  Farly 1900's
Buspace Studios 10 Conlan Street, London W10 Freehold 3,006 32,361 gtflfl_dio/Wcrkshcps/ 2001
ices

London House 271/273 King St, Hammersmith, London Wé  Freeheld 1,424 15,351 Business Centre 2001
King Street 275/281 King Street, London Wé Freehold 1,895 20,399 Offices 1999
Bondway 80/84 Bondway, London SE11 Freehold 1,634 17,610 Offices Early 1900's
Satellite House 15/23 Baches Street London N1 Freehold 1,450 15,604 Dffices 1980
Zest Nightclub Princess Street, Ipswich, Suffolk, IP] Freehold 1,951 21,000 Nightclub 1999
Bondway 8¢ Bondway, London SE11 Freehold 891 9.598 Offices 2081
Deanery Street 2 Deanery Street, Londan W1 Freehold 191 2,081 Offices/Residential 1988
Vauxhall Walk 108 Yauxhall Walk, London SE11 Freehold 400 6,456 Car parking Early 1900's
Vauxhall Walk 110 Vauxhali Walk, Londen SE11 Freehold 790 8,500 Industrial/Qffices 1990
Western House 5 Glasshouse Walk, Londen SEV Freehold 538 5,791 Offices 1900's
Holland Park Avenue London W11 Freehold - - Residential 1997
Miles Street 18/28 Miles Street, London SE11 Freehold 152 1,636 Offices 200
The Rose 35 Albert Embankment, Londen SE11 Freehold 531 5,716 Leisure Early 1900's
The View 20 Palace Street, London SW1 Leasehold 164 1,765 Residential 2005
Wandsworth Road 101/103/107 Wandsworth Road, London SW8  Freehold 385 4,115 Residential Earty 1900's
Share of joint venture
Southwark Towers 32 Londen Bridge Street, London SE] Leasehold 6,321 68,040 Difices 1960's
New London Bridge House 25 London Bridge Street, London SE1 Freehold 4,104 44,184 Offices 1940's
UK Properties at 31 December 2005 Sub total 156,993 1,489,859
Properties Swaden
Property value > £20m
Vanerparken Lasaretiet No. 2, Vinerparken, Freehold 45,206 486,609 Offices/Education/ Various

Vanersborgs Kommun Residential/Leisure/

Hospital

Solna Friasaren 11, Frasaren 12, Smeden 1, Freehold 135,671 1,660,298  Offices/Industrial/  Various

Sliparen1, Sliparen 2, Yrket 3 Retait/Residential
Livgdrdet Business Lavgirdet, Gothenburg Freehold 42,527 457,77 Offices/Education  1960's
Lovgardet Residential Lovgirdet, Gothenburg Freehold 70,632 760,301 Residential/retail 1940's
Swedish Praperties at 31 December 2005 Sub tetal 294,036 3,164,979




SCHEDULE OF GROUP PROPERTIES

Date of

Properties France and Freehold/ Construction/

Luxembourg Address l.easehold Area m* Area 5qft Use Refurbishment

Property value > £20m

Rueil 2000 15/21 Avenue Edouard Belin, Freehold 7,453 80,226 Offices 1992
92500 Rueil-Malmaison, Paris

Edouard Belin 1 Avenue Edouard Belin, Freehotd 9,854 104,017 Offices 1992
92500 Rueil Malmaison, Paris

Property vatue £10m - £20m

Lotus 41 rue du Capitaine Guynemer, Freehold 6,026 64,865 Offices 1977
92400 Courbevoie, Paris

Le Sigma Place de Belgique, 90 Bld de LEurope, Freehold 6,599 71,033 Offices 1993
92250 La Garenne Colombes, Paris

Jean Jaurés 120 rue Jean Jaurés, 92300 Levallois Penet Freehold 4,219 45,414 Offices 1993

Forum 27/33 rue Maurice Flandin, 69003 Lyon Freahold 6,210 74,381 Cffices 1990

Charenton Bercy 2 rue du Nouveau Bercy, 94220 Charenton, Paris Freehold 5,227 56,265 Offices 1994

Property value < £10m

Le Quatuor 168 Avenue Jean Jaurés, 92120 Montrouge, Paris Freehold 5131 55,231 Offices 19%1

Le Sirius 9/11 rue Jean Mazet, 94200 Ivry sur Seine, Paris Freehold 7.088 76,297 Offices 1989

Le Debussy 77/81 Boulevard de la République, Freehald 4,208 45,274 Offices 1992
92250 la Garenne Colombes, Paris

Bellevue 95/97Bis rue de Bellevue, Freeho!d 2,400 25,834 Offices 1984
92100 Bouloagne, Paris

Petits Champs 48 rue Croix des Petits Champs 75001, Paris Freehald 1,800 19.376 Offices 1972

Mission Marchand 56 Boulevard de la Mission Marchand, Freehold 2,635 28,364 Offices 1993
92400 Courbevoie, Paris

Villa Angelica 58/60 Avenue Général Leclerc, Freehald 3,736 40,215 Offices 2002
92340 Bourg la Reine, Paris

Front de Parc 109 Boulevard de Stalingrad, 69100 Lyon Leasehold 5,223 56,222 Offices 1989

Columbus 1 Rond Point de L'Europe, Freehold 3,162 34,037 Offices 199G
92250 La Garenne-Colombes, Paris

Equinoxe 1l 1 bis Avenue du 8 Mai, 1945, Freehold 4,235 45,587 Offices 1995
St Quentin en Yvelines, Paris

La Madeleine 105 Avenue de ta République Freehold 4,030 43,379 Offices 1979
59110 Lille

Rue Nationale 94 rue Mationale, 55000 Liile Freehold 2,243 24,144 Offices 1975

Capitaine Guynemer 53/55 rue de Capitaine Guynemer, Freehotd 1,8%3 20,377 Offices 1993
Courbevoie, 92400 Paris

Paul Doumer 147 Avenue Paul Doumer, Freehold 3,489 37,557 Offices 1998
92500 Rueil Malmaison, Paris

Rhéne Alpes 235 Cours Lafayette, 49006 Lyen Freehold 3,142 33,829 Offices 1993

Park Avenue 81 Boulevard de Stalingrad, Villeurbanne, Freehold 4,249 45,737 Offices 1988/89
63100 Lyon

D'Aubigny 27 rue de la Villette, 69003 Lyon Leasehold 4,316 46,459 Offices 1990

Philippe Auguste 83/85 Avenue Philippe Auguste, 75011 Paris Freehold 1,610 17,330 Offices 1995

Petits Hotels 20/22 rue des Petits Hétels, 75010 Paris Freehold 2,001 21,53% Otfices 1994

Le Chorus 2203 chemin de St Claude, Nova Antipolis Freehold 4,333 4b 642 Otfices 1990
06600 Antibes

Edovard Vaillant 28/30 rue Edouard Vaillant, Freehold 1,706 18,364 Difices 1994
92300 Levallois Perret, Paris

Rue Pierre Timbaud 2 rue Pierre Timbaud, 92230 Freehold 3170 34,123 Offices 1994
Gennevilliers, Paris

Marcel Pourtout 3 Avenue Marcel Pourtout, Freehold 2.21% 23,886 Offices 1990
92500 Rueil Malmaison, Paris

Le Fach &2 Avenue Foch, 92250 la Garenne Celombes, Paris  Freehold 1,613 17,363 Offices 1992

Santos Dumant 23 Avenue Lotiis Breguet, 78748 Velizy, Paris Freehold 3,701 39,839 Offices 1991

Solférino 16 rue de Solférine, 92100 Boulogne, Paris Freehold 1,046 11,259 Offices 1991

Général Leclere 58 Avenue Général Leclerc, 92100 Boulogne, Paris Freehold 525 5.651 Offices 1992

Rue Stephenson 18 Rue Stephenson, 75018 Paris Freehold 538 5,790 Offices 19%4

Georges Clémenceau 2 Boulevard Georges Clémenceau 92400
Courbevoie, Paris Freehold 1,972 21,226 Offices 1972

Le Gauguin 47 Allée des Impressionistes, 93420 Villepinte, Paris  Freehold 4,900 52,744 Offices 1989

Eugéne Ruppert 16 rue Eugéne Ruppert, L2453 Luxembourg Freehold 3,698 39,805 Offices 1991

Rue Raspail 23 Rue Raspail, 94200 Ivry sur Seine Freehold 5,570 59,956 Offices 1993

Croissy Beaubourg 3 Allée du Ter Mai, 77420 Croissy Beaubourg, Paris  Freehold 3,199 34,435 Offices 1993

France and Luxembourg Properties at 31 December 2005 Sub total 151,067 1,626,072

Germany

Jarrestrasse Jarrestrasse 8-10, D-22303, Hamburg Freeheold 5,654 60,861 Offices 2003

Frohbdsestrasse Frohbdsestrasse 12, D-22525, Hamburg Freehold 1,993 21,450 Offices 2005

Schanzenstrasse Schanzenstrasse 76, Dusseldorf Freehold 3,099 33.315 Offices 1990

German properties at 31 December 2005 Sub totat 10,742 115,626
TOTAL ALL PROPERTY 612,838 6,594,536
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UNITED KINGDOM

Westminster Tower Conoco House New Printing House Square
London 5F1

London SE1 Lengan W
Multi let offices pverlacking River Multi tenanted
Thames and Houses of Parlsement

Chancel House

Londen NW10
Muli let ofices




One Leicester Square
Lonrdon WC2

Major leisire develapment

One Leicester Square

Lordon
Maer

wiopbury paiun




22 Dukes Road

Lordon WCH

Quayside Cl Tower Cap Gemini House

London SW6 MNew Malden KT3 Sauth Bank. Londen 5W8

Freehold offices Substantial mults-tenanted aftice investment Mixed office and industnal mnvestment

Great West House
Brertford, Middx TWE
Muiti-tenantes offizes lacatas
near the A4/M4 interchange



Brent House

Wembley, Middy HA®
Mulli L2l offces

Coventry House
Lendon SW
Sigr, restaurant ang flats,

Satellite House
Lardar N1
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Spring Gardens
Londen SE11
Substantial ¢ffice business park

Western House
Landan SETT
Freehold offices

Ingram House
Londen WCZ
Freehold oftices and resdential

2 Deanery Sireet
Landar Wi
Freehoid cfizes




Vista Office Centre

Middx Twé

Qffices, situated ¢lose to Heathrow,
substantial refurbiskment during 2002

London House
London Wé
Business Centrg

Cambridge House
London Wé
Freehold offices

37




PORTFOLIO

2003
SWEDEN

Solna Business Park

Stockhalm, Sweden
Recenily refurbished space occupied
by Canp 1n January 2004

Solna Business Park

Stockholm, Sweden
Oifices, rala:l, fotel, gym and
rastaurant



Solna Business Park

Stockholm, Sweden
Qffices and retail accorrmodation

Solna Business Park
Stocahalr, Sy
Cif cag ane re

uapams




ICA

Fricaren 12, Sulna Business Park
Recentiy refurbished space occupied by (CA
in May 2005
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Vanerparken

Vénersborg. Sweden
Substantial off:ce, residential
and leisure development
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CONTINENTAL
EUROPE

FRANCE

Rue Raspail

23 Rue Raspail, 94200 lvry sur Seine, Paris
Acquired March 2005

Général Leclerc Bellevue
5% Avenue Géndral Leclerc, 92100 Bouisgre, Pasis 954/97 b5 ~ue de Bellevue
Azquered Jone 2002 $2:00 Boslegne, Por s

ACqmet Coteber 1959
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Rhone Alpes

235 cours Lafayette, 67004, Lyon
Acquired December 1997

Philippe Auguste
83/85 Avenue Philippe
Auguste, 75011 Paris
Acquired December 1997

Solférino

16 rue de Salférine, 92100 Boulogne, Paris
Arquired June 2002

Columbus

1 rend point de L'Europe

92230 La Garenne-Colombes, Pans
Acquired July 1997

Mission Marchand
56 Boulevard de @ Missien
Marchand, 92405 Courbevoie,
Paris

Acquired July 1997
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Petits Champs

Forum
27433 ~ue Maurice Flandin 4B rue Crom des Petits Champs
&9053 Lyon 75001 Paris

Acgured July 1§97 Acquired April 1958

Park Avenue

81 Boulevard de Stalingrad
£9100 Villeuraanne, Lyon
Aoquired Juby 1997

D'Aubigny

27 rue de la Viltelte
49003 Lyon
Acquired July 1997

Le Quatuor
68 Avenue lear lourés
G2120 Yortrou Jar s

Eccueed June ZE0Z

u“



Villa Angelica
58/60 Averue Général Leclerc 72340

Bourg ta Reine. Paris
Acouired Octaler 2002

Charenton Bercy
7 rue du Nouveau Bercy
94220 Charenton, Pans
Acquired July 1798

Rue Stephensen
18 Rue Stephensan, 75018 Paris
Acquired Movember 2003

l.e Chorus

2203 chemin de St Claude
Novz Antisols, 06£00 Anlibes
Acguired January 2001

Le Foch
£2 Awerue Foch, 983540 [a Sarene
Colorbes, Pars

Araqured Fong 2130

Lotus
A1 run g Capitaire Suynere:
2407 Co Guone,

Antured J
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Sirius

%11 rue Jean Mazet,
$4200 lvry sur Seing, Paris
Acquired Seplember 2004

Edouard Belin

| Averue Edouard Belir
92500 Rueil Malmason, Paris
Acquired April 1999

Santos Dumont, Velizy (Block C, D and E)

23 Avenue Louis Breguet
78140 Velizy. Pars
Acquired May 1998

Rueil 2000

15421 Avenue Edovarg Sein,
%7520 Rueil Malmaison, Paris
Acquered Recember 1393

Rue Pierre Timbaud
? rue Pierre Timbzud
92230 Gennewlliers, Paris
Acquired Celoker 2001

Rue Nationale
96 rue Nationale,
59000 Litle

bequired September 2001

Capitaine Guynemer
83/55 rue du Cagitaine Guynemer
72400 Courbevore, Paris

Acquired July 1998

%

Petits Hitels
20427 rus des Petits Hate.
210 Paris

Aequiren Moy 1963




Front de Parc

189 Boulevard de Stalingrad
49100 Villeurbanne, Lyan
Acquired Juty 1997

Le Debussy
77/81 Boulevard de
la Républigue,

92250 la Garenne Colombes,

Pars
Bequired June 2002

Le Sigma

Place de Belgique

92250 La Garenne Colombes,
Paris

Acguired December 1797

La Madeleine

109 Averue de ta Hépuslique
58113 Lille

Acquired Seplember 7001

Jean Jaurés
T20 rue Jear jaurés, 97300 | evalleis Peret

Acquered 2024

Le Gauguin

47 Allée des Impressicnistes, 93420 Yillepin

Acqured 2604

4




Marcel Pourtout

5 Awvenue Marcel Pourtoatl
92900 Rueil Maimaisgen, Panis
Acnuired December 3000

Georges Clémenceau

2 Boulevard Gecrges Clémenceau
Courbeveie, Paris

Acquiren February 2004

Equinoxe |l

1 bis Avenue du 8 Mai 1945
78280 St Cuentin en Yvelines,
Paris

Acquired Doteber 1997

16 rue Eugene Ruppert
L-2453 Luxembourg
Acquired january 2004

Paul Doumer

147 Avenue Paut Doumer,
92980 Ruell Malmaisan, Paris
Acquired March 1989

GERMANY

Frohbtsestrasse

Frohbiisestrasse 12, 0-22825, Hamburg
Acquired November 2885

Adlershofer Tor

Rudower Chaussee 12, D-12489,
Gerlin-Adlershaot

Acguired March 7006

Jarrestrasse
sarcestrasae B0
Fambug

Soqaced Degen b 3000

48



DIRECTORS” REPORT

for the year ended 31 December 2005

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005, The Chairman’s Statement
and Financial Review should be read in conjunction with this report.

1

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group duning the year were the investment in, development and management of cornmercial properties
in the UK, Sweden and Conbinental Europe.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
The Cansolidated Income Statement for the year 1s sel cut on page 0.

A review of results for the year and prospects for the future are included within the Chairman’s Statement, Financial Review and
Property Review.

DIVIDENDS

In lieu of paying an interim cash dividend in 2005 the Cornpany distributed £6.920,234 to shareholders (equivalent to 8.5 pence per
share) by way of tender offer buy-back completed in November 2005 (2004: distribution of £6,412,286 or 7.5 pence per share)

The Directors have decided to recommend a further tender offer instead of paying a final cash dividend for 2005. It is proposed, therefore,
that the Company offers te buy 1in 42 of the shares registered in the name of each eligible shareholder at a price of 400 pence per
share. This compares with a mid-market price of 400 pence per share on 24 March 2006 (2004: 1 in 41 shares at 485 pence per share).

The resulting distribution to shareholders will be €11,432 844 or 14.3 pence per share, which will be made in May 2004, When added
to the distribution made under the Naovember tender offer shareholders who take advantage of both tender offers in respect of the
financial year 2005 will have received a total return of 22.8 pence per share (2004; 19.3 pence per share}.

PURCHASE OF THE COMPANY'S SHARES

During the year the Company has made market and tender-offer purchases totatling 3,843,835 of its own shares at a cost of £18,857,977,
a weighted average of 491 pence per share. This represents £960,959 in nominal value, or 4 58 per cent of the brought forward calied
up share capital. Shares purchased during the November tender offer and through the market have been retained as Treasury shares.

The Directors considered that the purchases were in the best interests of the shareholders given the cash resources of the Company
and the discount in the market price of the Company's shares to their net asset value.

At the 2005 Annual General Meeting the Company was authcrised to make market purchases of up to 8,183,707 ordinary shares. Since
tast year's Annuzal General Meeting the Company has made market purchases of 434,746 shares and therefore still has authority to
purchase 7,748,941, Included within these market purchases was one transaction since the year end, being 27,746 shares at 550.0 pence
per share on 14 March 2006. A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to give the Company authority to make market
purchases of up to 7,812,446 shares,

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Avaluation of all the properties in the Group as at 31 Decernber 2005 was carried out by Allsop & Co for the UK and Sweden, and
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung for France, which produced an open market value of £1,096.4 million (2004 £1,022.5 million}. On the basis
of these valuations net assets per share amounted to 504.9 pence (2004: 5223 pence). In view ol the policy of re-valuing properties
bi-annually, in the opinion of the Directors there was no significant permanent difference between market and book values of the
properties at 31 December 2003

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Please see note 35 for a description of post balance sheet events.

DIRECTORS

The current Directors of the Cornpany are shown on page 28. On 1 January 2004, Per Sjoberg succeeded Tom Thomson as Chiet
Executive Officer and Tom Thomson became Non-Executive Vice Chairman,

A statement of Directors’ remuneration and their interests in shares and share options of the Company is set out in the Direclors’
Remuneration Report on pages 55 to 58.

Biographical details of the Executive and Nen-Executive Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors:

Sten Mortstedt, aged 64, has a consistent track record during a periced of over 40 years, of building profitable and sustainable
businesses both within the field of property and in a wide variety of other commercial sectors. He began his career in 1962 with
Svenska Handelsbanken in Stockholm and within three years he had fermed a property investment partnership. In 1968 he was
appointed Managing Director of the Mortstedt family property company, Citadellet AB, which he successfully floated on the Stock
Exchange in Stockholm, in 1981

Since 1977 he has been involved in establishing and running property interests in the UK, Sweden and France. He established CLS
in 1987 and took the Corpany to a listing on the main market of the London Stock Exchange in 1994 Since that time, as Executive
Chairman he has been a driving force in this pan-Eurcpean Group in generating growth in profits and asset values
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

for the year ended 31 December 2005

7  DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors: {continued}

In addition to his focus on property, he has been commercially active in 3 number of investment areas culside the properly arena and
has seen a number of the companies in which he has invested through to successlul stock exchange listings or trade sales

He runs his glebal interests from his residence in Switzerland.

Per SjSberg, aged 44, graduated from Stockholm University with a Bachelor degree in Business Administration. He is also an enginecr
and has experience of a number of large development projects globally. Before joining CLS Per was managing owner of a project and
construction management company that he established in 1994. He has been responsible for property development activities at the
Group since 1 November 2001 and was appointed to the main board as Group Development Director on 6 February 2004. On 1 January
2006, he took office as the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Dan Béverstam, aged 50, graduated from Stockholm School of Economics in 1979 and subsequently completed a Business Studies
course at CERAM Sophia Antipolis in France. He began his career with Werrnlandsbank and PK Bank in Sweden. He then becarne
Assistant Treasurer of AB Astra, now Astra Zeneca, responsible for foreign exchange and interest rate management, In 1987 he maoved
to the UK and became General Manager of the Treasury Operations of Svenska Finans International, part of the Svenska Handelsbanken
He joined CLS in October 1991 and is responsible within CLS for corporate financing and treasury operations and has overall
responsibility for property acquisitions. He became Chief Financial Officer on 5 October 20071,

Steven Board, aged 51, joined the Company in December 1998 as Chief Operating Officer with overall responsibility for the Group’s
Europe-wide financial and IT systems, financial reperting and personnel and administration matters. Prior to joining the Company
he was Finance Director for 5t. George Developments, part of the Berkeley Group ple. He previously held directorships within Alfred
McAlpine PLC and senior management positions within British Telecommunications ple. He qualified as an accountant in 1980.

He joined the Board on 25 February 2003.

Non-Executive Directors:

Torm Thomson, aged 55, has a BA {(Hons) in law from Kent University and qualified as a solicitor with Reynolds Perter Chamberlain

in 1976. From 1979 to March 1994 he was a partner with Taytor Walton Soliciters. He was Company Secretary and solicitor to CLS from
its inception in 1983 until 2001, initially as a partner in Taylor Walton and since 1994 as General Counsel to the Group. He became Vice
Chairman and Acting Chief Executive on 9 Qclober 2001, and became Chief Executive on 6 February 2004. On 1 January 2006 he retired
as Chief Executive and became Non-Executive Vice Chairman.

James Dean, aged 51, has worked for Savills ple since 1973, becoming a partner in 1983, and a director of Savills plc between 1987
and 1999. He remains a director of Savills Financizl Holdings PLC and Savills Commercial and is also a director of Cesalt plc,
Daniel Thwaites Plc and a number of private companies. He joined the Board on 9 April 1999.

Dr Keith Harris, aged 52, obtained his dectorate in 1977 and embarked on a career in investment banking. Following eight years at
Morgan Grenfell in London and New York, where he was President of Morgan Grenfell Inc., he went on to becore Managing Director
and Head of International Corporate Finance at Drexel Burnham Lambert, CEQ of Apax Partners Ltd. and, in 1994, was appointed
Chief Executive of HSBC Investment Bank plc. In 1999, Keith left HSBC to pursue a number of interests as chairman or non-executive
director of a range of public and private companies. These now include his chairmanship of Seymour Pierce Group Ple. In August 2000
Keith became Chairman of the Football League and in January 2001 joined the Board of Wembley National Stadium Limited. He resigned
his chairmanship of the Foctball League Ltd in August 2002, He jained the Board on 28 April 1994.

Thomas Lundgvist, aged 41, joined the Board in November 1990 and had been Finance Director of the Group untit retiring

from the position and becoming a Non-Executive Director on 1 October 1995, Prior to joining CLS, Mr Lundgvist werked for the
ASEA-Brown Boveri Group (ABB) and from 1983 for Svenska Finans Inlernational, part of Svenska Handelsbanken Group where
he was a board member

Bengt Mirtstedt, aged 57, holds a Bachelor of Law degree from Stockholm University. He began his career as a Junier Judge of the
Vaxjo District Court and in 1974 he joined Citadellet AB, the Mortstedt family property company in Sweden, where he was employed as
an analyst. In 1984, he moved to the UK in order to evaluate the London property market before joining the Group in October 1987, at which
time he was appointed to the Board of the Company as an Executive Director. He became a Non-Executive Director in Seplember 1998

The Board has determined that, apart from Bengt Mortstedt and Tom Thomson, the Non-Executive Directors are independent in
character and judgement and that there are no relationships or circumstances which could materiatly affect or interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgement.

The Board recognises that Keith Harris and Thomas Lundqyist, having served for more than ¢ years as Direclors, no longer meet

the criteria for independence set out in the Combined Code. After careful review, it is the opinion of the Board that they remain
independent of the management of the Company, having regard lo their financial independence and other commercoial interests

It is the Board's view that they add significant value to the oparation of the Company through their combined wisdom and varying
experience and as such it is currently not appropriate Lo change a successful team. However, as recommended under the Combined
Code, Keith Harris, Bengt Mortstedt and Thomas Lundgvist will retire annually and they will seek re-election to the Board at the Annual
General Meeling,

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Steven Board and James Dean will reure at the Annual General Meeting and seek
re-election to the Board. The Board recommends Lo the shareholders the re-election of the retiring Direclors who have all contributed
to the continuing financial success of the Company.
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for the year ended 31 Decernber 2005

8 DIRECTORS SHAREHOLDINGS AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The interests of the Oirecters in the share capital of the Companry at the beginning and end of the year arce detailed in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on page 58.

In addition to the interest of the Mortstedt family referred to in note 8 of the Directors’ Remuneration Repert, the Company has been
notified of interests which at 24 March 2006 represented 3 per cent or more of the Company's issued share capital.

No. of shares %

Stichting Pensigenfonds ABP 3,358,078 4.20

9 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Chief Operating Officer takes responsibility for the Company’s Corporate Governance policy

Combined Code

The Board supports the principles of good governance as set aut in the Combined Code 2003 and incarporated into the rules of the UK Listing
Authority. Save as identified and explained below, the Board considers that it has complied with all the provisions of the Combined Code

The Board

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directers, including the Chairman, and five Non-Executive Directors. On 1 January 2006
Tom Thomson ceased to be an Executive Directar and becarne a Non-Executive Qirectar. The Board notes that the Combined Code
guidance recommends that at least half the Board should comprise independent Non-Executive Directors. The Board has determined
that James Dean, Keith Harris and Thomas Lundgvist are independent in character and judgement and that there are no relationships
or circumstances which could materially affect of interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement. The Board is satisfied
with the balance between Executive and Non-Executive Directors which allows it to exercise objectivity in decision making and proper
control of the Company’s business. The Board considers its composition is appropriate in view of the size and requirements of the
Group's business and the need to maintain a practical balance between Executives and Non-Executives. Due to the structure of the
Company it is considered that it is not appropriate to change the successful Board composition at present.

During the year, the Chairman has conferred with the Non-Executive Directors without the other Executive Directors present, and the
MNon-Executive Directars have met without the Executive Directors or the Chairman present.

All Directors are subject t¢ election by shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting after their appointment, and are subject

to re-election at least every three years. Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a specific term of office which provides for their
removal In certain ¢ircumstances, including under section 303 of the Companies Act. The Board does not autormatically re-nominate
Non-Executive Directors for election by shareholders. The terms of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors can be obtained by
request to the Company Secretary.

The Board has appointed Keith Harris to be the Senior Independent Director. As recommended by the Combined Code, Keith Harris
is available to shareholders who cannot apprepriately approach either the Chairman or the Chief Executive about a Company matter.
As Senior Independent Director, Keith Harris is also involved in succession planning and advises the Chairman as required.

The Board's primary objective is to focus on adding value to the assets of the Group by identifying and assessing business opportunities
and ensuring that potential risks are identified, monitored and controlled, Matlers reserved for Board decisions include strategic long-
term objectives and capital structure of major transactions. The implementation of Board decisions and day to day operations of the
Group are delegated to Management.

In making commercial assessments the Directors review detatled plans including financial viability reports that, among other things,
detail the impact of proposals in respect of return on capital, return on cash and the likely impact on the profit and loss account, cash
flows and gearing.

Strateqy is determined after having taken due regard of forecast domestic and international developments. The views of sharcholders
are sought in meetings held variously by the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Qfficer, and
are reported back to the Board. The Board is also advised of the views of shareholders as received by the Company’s brokers.

Group and divisional budgets and quarterly financial ferecasts including net assets and cashflow projections are formally reviewed by
the Board on a quarterly basis In addition the Executive Directors monmtor cashilows on a weekly basis.

The Board met five times during the year and is responsible to the shareholders of the Company for the strategy and future development
of the Group and the managernent of its resources. The Board has a formal schedule ot malters specifically reserved to it for decision,
which has been updated during the year; other decisions are dealt with as day-ta-day matters by managerment. Directors are, where
necessary, able to obtain independent professional advice at the Company’s expense and have access to the services of the Cempany
Secretary. They are given appropriale training and assistance on appeintment to the Board and later, if and when required.

In accordance with the Combined Code, the Non-Executive Directors met formally during the year witheut erther the Charrman or the
Executive Directors present.

During the year, the Chairman has undertaken a process of review of the Board, its Committees and Directors as recommended by the
Combined Code. This process included assessing the contribution to the Group of each indwvidual Board member. The rosults of this
review have been discussed with the Chairman of the Audit Committee, and reported to the Board. The performance of the Chairman
was reviewed by the Non-Executive Directars,
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9  CORPORATE GOYERNANCE (CONTINUED)

The Board (continued)

The attendance of Directors at meetings during the year is set cut below,

Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee

Number of meetings held 5 3 2

Mr S Mortstedt
Mr T Thomson
Mr D Baverstam
Mr S Board
Mr P Sjaberg
Mr K Harris
MrJ Dean

Mr T Lundqyist
Mr B Mértstedt

(SRS RN S I SN T, IS LB &) B . &y
WG 1
R R2 |

In addition te Board meetings, an executive committee comprising senior management meets weekly to discuss management issues
relating to the Group.

There is a division of responsibilities between the Executive Chairman, who is responsible for the overall strategy of the Group, and the
Chief Executive Officer, who is responsible for implementing the strategy and day te day running of the Group. He is assisted by the
Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer. The Board has approved & written statement of the division of responsibilities
between the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer,

The Non-Executive Directors fulfil @ key role in corporate accountability. The remits and membership of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees of the Board are set out below. The terms of reference of the Committees can be obtained by contacting the Company
Secretary at the Registered Office.

The Board is assisted by the following Committees:

The Audit Committee comprises three Non-Executive Directars (Keith Harnis {Chairman). James Dean and Thomas Lundgvist) and has
met three times during the year The principal duties of the committee are to review the half-yearly and annual financial statements
before their submission to the Beard and to consider any matters raised by the auditors. The Committee also reviews the independence
and objectivily of the auditors. The terms of reference of the Committee reflect current best practice, including authority to:

* Recommend the appointment, re-appointment and remaval of the external auditor
« Ensuring the objectivity and independence of the auditors including occasions when non-audit services are provided
« Ensure appropriate ‘whistle-blowing” arrangements are in place

The Non-Executive directors may seek information from any employee of the Group and cbtain external professional advice

at the expense of the Company if considered necessary. Due to the relatively low number of personnel employed within the Group,
the nature of the business and the current control and review systems in place, the Board has decided not to establish a separate
internal audit department.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two Non-Executive Directors, James Dean and Keith Harris. The Beoard has considered the
Combined Codes’ recommendaticon that the Remuneration Committee should be formed of three Non-Executive Directors, however it
believes that the purposes of the Committee are best achieved by the current two independent Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee has met twice during the year. The Committee cansiders the employment and performance of individual Executive Directors
and determines their terms of service and remuneration. It also has aulherity to grant options under the Company's Executive Share
Qption Scheme and Company Share Option Plan, The Committee meets at least once a year. Full details of the Committee’s work is
given in the Remuneration Report on pages 55 to 58.

The Board of Directors has considered the appeintment of a separate Nemination Committee, as recommended by the 2003 Code,
however due ta the size and nature of the Company, this function is carried out by the members of the Remuneration Commitiee
with the Executive Chairman.
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9  CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)
Internat Control

The Board acknowledges that the Directors are responsible for the Group's system of internal cantrol and have established procedures
which are designed to provide reasonable assurance against material misstatement or loss. These procedures have operated for the
entire financial year and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. The Directors have reviewed the elfectiveness
of the systemn of internal control for the period. The Directors have recognised that such a systern can only provide & reasonable and
not absolute assurance that there has been no materal misstaternent or loss. The key elements of the process by which the system

of internal centrol is monitored are as fellows:

* The risks which the Group faces or is likely to face are reviewed on an ongoing basis in Board and executive meetings
+ The control mechanisms for each identified risk are reviewed regularly

+ Problems which arise are reviewed to determine whether they could have been avoided or their effect mitigated through improved
control procedures

* The risk and control features of new projects are assessed as they arise
¢ The Audit Committee considers any internal control issues raised by the external auditors or management.

Set out on pages 7 to 27 is the description of the Group’s operations and the strategy which it empleys to maximise returns and

minimise risks. Quarterly and annual budgets are prepared for each arez and monitored. Parameters have been established for
investment decisions to be referred to the Board for approval. Three-yearly rolling cash flows are updated and distributed weekly
and appropriate expenditure authorisation procedures have been adopted.

Directors” Responsibilities

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state
of the affairs of the Cornpany and of the Group at the end of the year and of the profit or loss for the year. In preparing those financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply therm consistently
* Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent

* State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

« Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume thal the Company and the Group
will continue in business.

The Directors confirm that the Financial Statements comply with the above requirements.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Campany and the Group and enable them tg ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985.
The Directors also have a general responsibility for taking reascnable steps to safeguard the assets of the Company and the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irrequiarities.

The Directors are also responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the CLS Holdings ple website, Uncertainty regarding legal
requirements is compounded as information pubtished on the internet is accessible in many cauntries with different legal requirements
relating to the preparation and dissemination of financiat statements.

Shareholder Relations

The Group issues full annual accounts to each of its shareholders and at the half-year an Interim Report is sent to all sharehotders
In addition, all press releases are included on the Company’s website.

The Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and other senior management have regular meetings with institutional shareholders.

Ali shareholders are welcome to attend the Company's Anaual General Meeting and to arrange individual meetings by appointment
The views received at such meetings are fed back to the Board.

Business Ethics

The Board recognises the tmportance of the Company's respansibilities as an ethical employer and views matlers in which the
Company interacts with the community both socially and economicatly as the responsibility of the whole Board

Health & Safety

Itis 8 primary concern of the Board that the Cornpany manages its activities in such a manner as to ensure that the health and safety
of its employees, tenants, advisors, contractors and the general public is not compromised
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (CONTINUED)

Environmental Issues

The Board is aware of the Company's envirgnmental irnpact and therefore seeks to both minimise adverse effects and enhance positive
effects. The Company encourages recycling and energy conservation. Qur major refurbishment project in Sweden received a ‘P mark
award thereby ensuring our tenants receive a quality system for air, temperature, light, damp, noise, emissions from materials, static
electricity and magnetic fields.

Nen compliance with the Combined Code

With the exception of the absence of a Nominations Committee, that the Remuneration Committee consists of two independent
Non-Executive Directors as explained in further detail above, and that the Chairman is not independent, the Company has complied
throughout the financial year with the provisions of the Combined Code.

EMPLOYEES

The Oirectors believe that the Group's employeeas are a source of competitive advantage. The Directors recognise that continued and
sustained improvement in the performance of the Group depends on its ability to attract, motivate and retain employees of the highest
calibre. The Group is committed to the principle of equal oppartunity in emnployment. It seeks to ensure that no employee or applicant

is treated less favourably on the grounds of gender, marital status, race, celour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion, disability
or sexual orientation or is disadvantaged by conditions or requirements, including age limits, which cannot be objectively justified. Entry
inte and progression within the Group are solely determined by the application of job criteria, personal aptitude and competence.

It is the Group’s policy to apply best practice in the employment of disabled people. Full and fair consideration is given to every
application fer employment from disabled persons whose aptitude and skills can be utilised in the business and to their training
and career development. This includes, wherever possible, the retraining and retention of staff who beceme disabled during
their employment.

All staff are informed of matters concerning their interest as employees and the financial and economic factors affecting the business.
Established maragement communication channels have been supplemented by direct presentations to staff by Directors to explain
developments of particular significance.

SHARE CAPITAL

Changes in share capital are shown in note 22 of the Notes te the Financial Statements on page 87. At 31 Decemnber 2005 there were
share options for 595,000 shares outstanding (2004: 585,000). Details of the Directers’ share opticns are shown in the Directors’
Remuneratien Report on page 57,

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

The contributions made by the Group during the year for charitable purposes were £4,372 (2004: £5,058).

INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Group maintains insurance for the Company's Directors in respect of their duties as Directors.

SUPPLIER PAYMENT POLICY

The Group agrees payment terms with its suppliers when it enters into binding purchase contracts. The Group seeks to abide by the
payment terms agreed with suppliers whenever it is satisfied that the supplier has provided the goods or services in accordance with
the agreed terms and conditions. At the year end Group trade creditors were owed the equivalent of 25 days total invoices received for
the year as a whole (2004: 51 days). The Company has no trade creditors (2004: nil).

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP as auditors to the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

By order of the Board

S F Board
Company Secretary
24 March 2006
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DIRECTORS" REMUNERATION REPORT

for the year ended 31 December 2005

The report on remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2005 is set out below and has been prepared in accordance
with the applicable statutory regulations.

Certain sections of this Report are subject to statutory audit, as required by the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002
Those sections are indicated in the section title, All other sections have not been audited.

1.

THE WORK OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has appointed a Remuneration Committee thal comprises James Dean (Chairman} and Keith Harris who are both
considered to be independent Non-FExecutive Oirectors. The remit of the Committee is to consider and recommend to the Board:

a. The remuneration of the Executive Directors, including any performance related awards
b.  The administraticn of the Company’s share option schemes

The Cornrittee has maintained the same membership throughout the year, and has held two formal meetings during the period
In addition, the members of the Committee have had informal contact as necessary throughout the year. The Committee received
advice from the Executive Chairman, Sten Mortstedt. The Committee is able to obtain independent professional advice where
necessary, at the Company’s expense.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company's policy on remuneration is to set overall remuneraticn packages at a level sulficient to attract, retain and incentivise
high calibre staff with a view to enhancing long-term shareholder value.

Executive Directors

Consistent with this policy, emoluments awarded to Executive Directors are intended to be competitive and comprise 2 mix of bath
performance and non-performance related remuneration and include discretionary and non-discretionary awards. This is designed
to incentivise Cirecters and to align their interests with those of shareholders, whilst adhering to the goals of Corporate Governance.

The Remuneration Committee conducts an annual analysis of the remuneration and emoluments of the Directors against a group

of appropriate quoted real estate companies. In all cases, this analysis showed that, whilst the performance of CLS was in the median
quartile of the review group, the remuneration of the Directors was in the third quarlile for salary and other discretionary awards.
CLS does not operate any long term incentive plans

The Board does not anticipate any significant change to 1ts remuneration policy in the year ending 31 Decernber 2006,

Non-Executive Directors

The remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors is reviewed and determined by the Board, having received the recommendations of
the Executive Directors. Their remuneration consists of fees for their services to the Board and ary additional services such as chairing
Board Committees,

Basic salaries

The basic salaries of the Executive Directors are reviewed annually as at 1 January. The annual review takes account of similar
positions tn & range of comparable companies as indicated abave.

Performance-Related Remuneration

The performance-related element, if any, of each Executive Director’s rermuneration is determined after taking into account the
performance of the individual and the performance of the Company, together with the emcluments of the individual, compared to those
in the comparator group mentioned above.

Sten Mortstedt does not receive a performance-related element in respect of his remuneration as the Remuneration Committee
considers that the size of his shareholding in the Company gives an adequate link to performance.

The remuneration of the Nen-Executive Directors does not include a performance-related eternent

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the apportionment of remuneration and other benefits between discretionary performance-
related and non-performance related elements was as follows:

Performance- Ner performance-

Director related related
Sten Mortstedt nil 100%
Per Sjdherg A4% S6%
Dan Béaverstam 57% 43%
Steven Board 54% 465%
Tom Thomsaen 50% 50%
James Dean nil 100%
Keith Harris ril 100%
Thomas Lundgvist nil 100%
Bengt Mirtstedt nil 100%
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

far the year ended 31 December 2005

3. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (AUDITED)

For the year ended 31 Decernber 2005, the remuneration received by the Directors was as sel oul in the table below

2605
2005 Other
2005 2005 2005 2005 z005 Defined benefits/ 2005 2004
Fee as 2005 Other Overseas Benefits Toatal  contribution Performance Total Toual
Cirector Salary fees benefits inkind emoluments pension related remuneration  remuneratiar
£000 £000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000
Executive
Sten Mortstedt - 168 380 - - 548 - - 548 447
(Exacutive
Chairman)
Torn Thomson(!! - 225 - - 3 228 i1 237 476 384
Vice-Chairman
and Chiel Executive}
Per Sjgbergi® - 993 95 - 54 242 2 189 433 163
(Group Property
Director)
Dan Baverstam - 132 - 36 3 7 7 240 418 359
(Chief Financial
Dfficer)
Steven Board - 157 - - 3 160 8 200 368 3N
(Chiet Operating
Officer)
Non-Executive
James Dean 35 - - - - 35 - - 35 30
Keith Harris 35 - - - - 35 - - 35 30
Thomas Lundgyvist 30 - - - - 30 - - 30 25
Bengt Martstedt 3¢ - - - - 30 - - 30 25
Anna Seeleyl®) - - - - - - - - - 9
1,783
2005 130 775 475 36 43 1,479 28 865 2,373
2004 115 709 394 36 9 1263 25 495 1783

This table is audited

Mand (2 With effect from 1 January 2006 Per Sjéberg succeeded Tomn Thomson as Chiel Executive Officer and Tom Thamsoen became
Non-Executive Vice Chairman.

@) Per Sjoberg was appointed as a Director on 6 February 2004, and his remuneration for 2004 1s shown from that date. The amount
shown as Other fees relates to charges made for his services relating to development projects for the Group, by 2 company in which
he was an employee. Benefits in kind includes £53 thousand in respect of relocation costs.

@ Anna Seeley was an Executive Oirector until 5 February 2004. She resigned from the Board on 23 Novernber 2004,

The benefits provided to Executive Directors are permanent health and private medical insurance, pension contributions and life
assurence under the Company’s defined contribution pension scheme of which four Directors were members (2004: three). No car
or car allowance is provided to any Director {2004: nit)

4. DIRECTORS' PENSION ENTITLEMENT

The Executive Directors are entitled to participate in a defined contribution pension scheme. Participants are required to contribute

5 per cent of basic UK salary (2004: 5 per cent), which is matched by a contribution fram the Company of 5 per cent (2004: 5 per cent).
In 2004 an additional perfermance-related element was contributed by the Company, and is included in the total remuneration for
that year.
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5. SHARE PERFORMANCE GRAPH

For the peried 1 January 2001 to 31 December 2005 the total shareholder return in respect of CLS Holdings ple has shown a return of
149 .4 per cent cornpared to 111.9 per cent in the FTSE All Share Real Estale Index This index is cansidered to be the most sppropriate
as it reflects the performance of the sector in which the Company operates.

400 CLS Hotdings - Tot Return Ind ----

FTSE Real Estate - Tot Return Ind —
350
300 .-

50

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

6. SHARE OPTIONS (AUDITED)

During the year, shareholders approved a new Company Share Option Plan (CSOP) to replace the 1994 Executive Share Option Scheme.
The CSOP was approved by the Inland Reverue i December 2005,

The Board has delegated to the Remuneration Committee the authority to grant options under the Company’s share option schemes,
which are the above mentioned CSOP and the Company's Unapproved Share Option Scheme.

Share options have normally been awarded to Executive Directors on the commencement of employment. Accerdingly Per Sjaberg was
granted options at the time of the announcement of his impending appointrnent as Chief Executive Qfficer, with further options granted
upon receipt of the Inland Revenue's approval of the CS0P. There is no pelicy to provide options to Direclors on an annual basis. [Lis
policy not to provide share options to Non-Executive Rirectors.

The exercise of share options granted under the Schemes is conditional upon the satisfaction of performance criteria, namely the
growth in the net assets of the Group being at least equivalent to the growth of the All Properties Capital Growth Index maintained
by Investment Property Databank Limited.

Details of options heid by Directors are set cut below.

Earliest Exercise No. at :r'iacrek:: No. at
Date of exercise Expiry price 1Jan Granted  Exercised exercise Lapsed 31 Dec
Director grant date date (pence) 2005 in year in year (pence) in year 2005

Torn Thamson
approved 201201 201204 191211 212.50 14,000 - - - 14,000
unapproved 201201 201204 19.12.08 21250 436,000 - - - 434,000
450,000 - - - 450,000

Per Sjdberg

unapproved 20.12.01 201204 19.12.08 212.50 26,000 - - {26,000) -
unapproved 11.04.03 201204 191210 194.50 14,000 - - {14,000 -
unapproved 27.09.05 27.09.08 260912 458.25 - 73,500 - - 73,500
CSOP . 211205 211208 20,1212 492 75 - 6,088 - - 6,088
unapproved 21.12.05 211208 201212 49275 - 412 - - 412
40,000 80,000 (40,000 80,000

This table is audited,

Mo other Directors were granted options over the shares of the Company or other Group entittes. Nane of the terms or conditions
of the share options were varied during the year.

No Director exercised options during the year and therefore no directors made gains.

The highest, lowest and average mid-market share price in the year are detaited under ‘Share Capital’ on page 17, The year end share
price was 500.0 pence.
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7. DIRECTORS® SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company have service contracts in force. There is no provision in the contract of any Executive
Director for contractual termination payments, save those payments nermally due under employment law.

Except as detailed below in respect of Tom Thomsen, in accerdance with best practice, Non-Executive Directors are not appointed on
service contracts, but there are letters of appointment in place for each Non-Executive Director. All of the Non-Executive Directors are
appeinted until such time as they are not re-elected. As recommended under the Combined Code all of the Non-Executive Directors retire
annually and are able to seek re-election at the Annual General Meeting. If they fail to be re-elected their terms of appointment will cease

On 31 December 2005 Tom Thomson ceased to be an Executive Oirector and his Executive service contract terminated. On 1 January
2006 he became Non-Executive Vice Chairman. Under terms agreed upen his change of role, the notice period to be given by the
Company is three menths, however in the event that this is given the Company shall pay an amount equal to salary and benefits due to
hirm up to 31 December 2007, As at 31 March 20046 the value of salary for the unexpired term of the contract is £198,900 and benefits
receivable by him are continued membership of the Company’s defined contributicn pension scheme including life assurance, under
which his contribution of up te five per cent of salary will be matched by the Company, and permanent health and private medical
insurance. The notice period he is now required to give to the Company to terminate his contract is three months, not to expire before
30 September 2006. After December 2007 Tomn Themson will retire annually and be able to seek re-election at the annual gzneral
meetings of the Company. Before that date he will retire by rotation, as do the Executive Directors.

Details of the service contracts or letters of appointment of those who served as Directors during the year are as follows:

Name Contract date Notice period
Sten Mortstedt 28.04.94 1 year
Tom Themson( 07.10.01 1 year
Per Sjoberg@ 27.09.05 1 year
Dan Baverstam 01.01.94 1 year
Steven Board 02.12.98 1 year
James Dean 09.04.99 & months
Keith Harris 78.04.94 & months
Thomas Lundqvist 20.12.98 6 months
Bengt Martstedt 18.12.98 6 months

i n respect of Tom Thomson's service contract, which was in effect throughout the period. Detail of his arrangements effective from 1 January 2006 are given above.
++ Cansequent on the announcement of Per Sjoberg’s appointment ta the position of Chief Executive Otficer, effective 1 January 2006, a new contract between the
Company and Per Sjdberg was signed on 27 Septernber 2005,

8. INTERESTS IN SHARES

The interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of 25p each in the capital of the Company were:

31 December 2005 31 Decernber 2004

Ordinary shares of 25p Ordinary shares of 25p

Sten Mortstedt 35,408,224 36,908,551
Tom Thomson 111,715 116,447
Dan Baverstam 194,723 142 513
Steven Board 79,775 76,491
Per Sjobergt 39,667 -
James Dean 23,682 24,685
Keith Harris 7,480 8,005
Thomas Lundquist 120,735 95,794
Bengt Mértstedt 5,609,144 5,844,819

i As from Per Sjoberg's date of appointment on 6 February 2004,
All of the sbove interests in shares were held beneficially for the Directors cencerned. There have been no changes to the holdings
shown above between the 31 December 2005 and the date of this Report.

9. LONG-TERM INCENTIVE SCHEME

The Company does not operate a long-term incentive scheme.

10. WAIVER OF EMOLUMENTS

Mo Director has waived their emoluments during the year.

O;Efjaﬁ of the Board,

Jamey Yeg,

James Dean

Chatrman

Kemuneration Committee
24 March 2004
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF CLS HOLDINGS PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of CLS Holdings plc for the year ended 31 December 2005 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consalidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flows and the related notes. These group financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

We have reported separately on the parent company financial staternents of CLS Holdings plc for the year ended 31 December 2005 and
on the infermation in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and the group financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and [nternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set out in the Statement of
Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland). This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as 2
body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1985 and for no cther purpose. We do not, In giving this opinion, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person ta whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prier consent in writing.

We report to you cur opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the group financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you if, in our
opinion, the Directors” Report is not consistent with the group financial statements, if we have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding director’s remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company’s compliance with the nine provisians of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not
required to consider whether the board’s statements on internal control cover ali risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness
of the group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read other inforrnation contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited group financial statements.
The other information comprises only the Chairman’s Statement, the Financial Review, the Property Review, the Directors’ Report and the
unaudited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the group financial statements. Qur respansibilities do not extend to any other information.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the group financial statements,
anc of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in erder to provide
us with sufficient evidence te give reasonable assurance that the group financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud ar other irreguiarity or errer. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information
in the group financial statements.

OPINICN

In our opinion:

+ the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accerdance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state
of the group’s affairs as at 31 Gecember 2005 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended; and

 the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Reagistered Auditors
London

24 March 2006
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2005 2004
Motes E000 £000
Continuing operations:
Rental and similar revenue 77,678 4475
Service charge and similar revenue 7,361 6,700
Total rental revenue 5 85,039 81,375
Service charge expense and similar charges (15,777) (13.772)
MNet rental income 69,262 47,603
Other operating income b 3,360 4,151
Administrative expenses 7 {14,910) (9.984)
Net property expenses 7 (3,532) (3,631
Operating profit before gains/(losses) on investment properties 54,180 58,139
Net gains from fair value adjustment on investment properties 13 67,173 37,236
Loss on disposat of part share of joint venture 21 (1,106} -
Profit from sale of investment properties 1,855 4ed
Operating profit 122,102 95839
Finance income g 1,425 1.801
Finance costs 10 (37,654) (35,864)
Share of loss of associates - post tax 16 (1,216} (1,701)
Profit before tax 84,657 60,073
Taxation - current {1,304} (596)
Taxation - deferred (21,855) (16,042)
Tax charge on profit 1 {22,160) (16.638)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 61,497 43,435
Discontinued operations:
Loss for the period from discontinued operations - post tax 32 (6,192) (4,002
Profit for the year 55,305 39,433
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 55,637 403511
Minority interest (232) (1,078)
55,305 39,433
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company during the year {expressed in pence per share)
- basic 12 67.5 47.0
- diluted 12 67.0 46,7
Earnings per share for profit from continuing operations attributable
to the equity holders of the Company during the year
(expressed in pence per share}
- basic 12 75.0 51.6
- diluted 12 74.5 51.3

The notes on pages 64 to 107 are an integral part of these censolidaled financial statements,




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2005 2004
Notes £000 £000

Non-current assets
Investment properties 13 1,096,361 1,022 539
Property, plant and equipment 14 8,119 10,710
Intangible assets 15 3,698 3,357
Investments in associates 16 3,526 3,010
Available-for-sale financial assets 17 13,918 -
Investments 36 - 171
Derivative financial instruments 18 353 -
Deferred income tax 25 14,025 13,813
Trade and other receivables 19 1,245 3,163

1,141,265 1,056,763
Current assets

Trade and other receivables 19 8,395 11,696
Investments 36 - 10,492
Derivative financial instruments 18 457 -
Cash and cash egquivalents 20 118,162 57,371
127,014 79,559
Total assets 1,268,279 1,136,322
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 - 1,279
Deferred income tax 25 146,109 127,957
Borrowings, including finance leases 26 694,591 620,487
Derivative financial instruments 18 982 -
Provisions - 301

841,682 749,998
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 24 45,394 44128
Current income tax 1,799 q02
Derivative financial instruments 18 285 -
Borrowings, including finance leases 26 25,339 17 488
72,817 462518
Total liahilities 914,499 8172516
Net assets 353,780 323,806
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders
Share capitat 22 21,382 21374
Other reserves 23 116,042 122.07G
Retained earnings 217,252 182,340
354,876 325,784
Minerity interest {894) (1,978
Total equity 353,780 323,804

These financial staternents wers approved by the Board of Dirdctors\and futhorised for issue on 24 March 2004 and were signed on its

Tt

Mr S A Mortstedt Mr P Sjoberg
Director Director

The notes on pages &4 to 107 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Attributable to

equity holders of the Company

Share Other Retained Minority
capital reserves earnings interest Total
MNaotes £000 €000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 January 2004 38 21,911 120,610 157,624 (900) 299,245
Arising in the year:-
Currency translation differences on foreign
currency net mvestments 23 - 485 ] - 484
Purchase of own shares expense - B {118} - (118}
Purchase of own shares 22 - - {15 674) - (15,674}
Cancellation of shares 22/23 (609) 609 - - -
Employee share option scheme 22723 7z 368 - - 438
Profit for the year - - 40,511 (1,078) 39,433
Total (decrease)/increase in equity for the year (537) 1,460 26,714 (1.078) 24,561
Balance at 31 December 2004 21,374 122,070 182,340 (1,978) 323,806
Adoption of IAS 32 and 1AS 39 38 - 2774 {1,652) - 8,122
Balance at 1 January 2005 as restated for 1AS 32 and |AS 39 21,374 131,844 180,688 {1,978) 331,928
Arising in the year:-
Fair value losses
- available-for-sate investments 23 - (7.481) - - (7,481}
- cash flow hedges 23 - (799) - - (799>
Currency translation differences on foreign
currency net investments 23 - (7.663) - - (7,663}
Purchase of own shares expense - - (115) - (115)
Purchase of own shares 22 - - (18,858) - (18,858)
Issue of shares 22/23 - 79 - - 79
Employee share aption scherne 22/23 8 62 - - 70
Reduction in minority interest - - - 1314 1,314
Profit for the year - - 55,537 (232) 55,305
Total increase/(decrease) in equity for the year 8 (15,802} 36.564 1.082 21,852
Balance at 31 December 2005 21,382 116,042 217,252 (894) 353,780

The notes an pages 64 to 107 are an integral part of these censclidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended Year ended
31 Decermber 21 December
2005 2004
Notes £coo £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 28 52,226 52,082
Interest paid (34,857} (33,325}
Incorme tax paid (407} (5391
Net cash inflow from operating activities 16,962 18,218

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment property (22,3856} (38,249
Capital expenditure on investment property (44,934) (31,003
Proceeds from sale of investrment property 45,054 8,434
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,853) (1,545}
Proceeds frorm sale of property, plant and equipment 2,401 2,029
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (3,532) (6.529)
Purchase of interests in joint venturefassociate (798) {1,486)
Purchase of subsidiary undertaking (1,427 -
Interest received 1,472 1,713
Net cash outflow from investing activities (26,001) {66,582

Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of shares 144 428
Purchase of own shares (18,974) {15,795
New loans 148,571 112,938
Issue costs of new loans (2,234) (2,018)
Interest rate caps purchased 100 {1.234)
Repayment of loans (57,777) 145814
Net cash inflow from financing activities 69,830 48,505
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 60,791 141
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 57,31 57230
Cash and cash equivatents at end of year 20 118,162 57371

The notes on pages 64 to 107 are an integral part of these conselidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at 31 December 2005

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

CLS Holdings ple ("the Compary™) and its subsidiaries (together "CLS Holdings™ or the "Group™) are an investrment property group
which is principally involved in the investrment, development and management of commercial properties. The Group's principal
operations are carried cul in the United Kingdom, Sweden and Conlinental Europe,

The Company is registered in the UK, registration number 2714781, of registered address: 26th Floor, Portland House, Bressenden Place,
London SW1E 5BG. The Cempany has its primary listing on the London Steck Exchange

Z SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of CLS Holdings are for the year ended 31 December 2005. They have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted for use in the European Union ("IFRS”), and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ('IFRIC™) interpretations. The IFRS standards and IFRIC
interpretations are subject to amendment by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASBE™) and endorsernent by

the Furapean Commission and therefore subject to possible change. These are the Group’s first annual consolidated financial
statements prepared under IFRS, as such these consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of IFRS.

These financial slatements are prepared in accordance with those parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS.

The Group has applied the mandatory exceptions and certain of the oplional exemptions from full retrospective application of IFRS
as allowed under IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (TIFRS 17). The policies set out below
have been consistently applied Lo all the years presented except as for those relating to the classification and measurement of
financial instruments. The Group has made use of the exemption available under IFRS 1 to only apply 145 32 and 1AS 39 from

1 January 2005. The policies applied te financial instruments for 2004 and 2005 are disclosed separately below.

CLS Holdings consclidated financial statements were prepsred in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
("UK GAAP") until 31 December 2004, UK GAAP differs in some areas fram IFRS, In preparing the Group's 2005 consolidated
financial statements, management has arended certain accounting, valuation and conselidation methods applied in the UK GAAP
financial statements to comply with IFRS. The comparative figures in respect of 2004 were restated to reflect these adjustments,
excepl as described in the accounting policies.

Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition at 1 January 2004 from UK GAAP to IFRS on the Group’s equity
and its net income and cash flows are provided in note 38. Disclosures with regard to the Group’s adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39
at 1 January 2009 also provided in note 38

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
investment property and financial instruments (including available-for-sale financial assets, derivative financial instruments and
financial assets and liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss or equity, as appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Coempany’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant te the censclidated financial
staternents, are described in note 4. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amcunt, events
or actions, actual results ultimatety may differ from those estimates.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at 31 December 2005

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation

a)

b}

c)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including specizl purpose entities) over which the Group has the power te govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence ang
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
cantrols another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an
acquisilion is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed
at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the date, irrespective
of the extent of any minority interest The excess of the cost of the acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill If the cost of the acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recogmsed directly in the income statement.

Inter-cormpany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Joint ventures

The Group's interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for by proportionate consclidation. The Group combines its
share of the joint venlures’ individual income and expenses, assets and liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line basis with
simitar iterns in the Group financial statements.

The Group recognises the portion of gains or lasses on the sale of assets by the Group to the joint venture that is attributable
to the other venturers. The Group does not recognise its share of the profits or losses from the joint venture that result from
the Group's purchase of assets from the joint venture until it resells the assets to an independent party. However, a loss on the
transaction is recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net realisabie value of the current
assets, or an impairment loss,

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying & shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in asscciates are accounted for by the equity methed of accounting

and are inttially recognised at cost. The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill {net of any accumulated impairment
loss) identified an acquisition,

The Group's share of its associates post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves, The cumulative post-acquisition movernents are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share cf losses in an associate equals or exceeds its inlerest
in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and Its associates are eliminated tc the extent of the Group's interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred.

€5




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at 31 December 2005

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

A geographical segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic environments.

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business segments.

Foreign currency translation

a)

b)

o)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”™}. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

Fransactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dales

of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities dencminated in foreign currencies are recognised

in the income staterent, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair value through profit and loss, are reported as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity from 1 January 2005,

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:
i} assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet;

i} income and expenses for each income staternent are translated at the average exchange rates (unless this average is not
2 reasonable appreximation of the cumulztive effect of the rales prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions), and

i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity (cumulative translation adjustment).

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to the curnulative translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.

Goodwitl and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a fereign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entily and translated at the closing rate.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at 31 December 2003

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Investment property

Property that is held for leng-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companics
in the consolidated Group, is classified as investment property

Investment property comprises freehold land, freehold buildings, land held under operating leases and butldings held under
finance leases.

Land held under operaling leases is classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definilion
of investment property Is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,

if necessary, for any difference in the nature, lecation or condition of the specified asset. If this information is not available,
the Group uses alternate valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash ftow projections
These valuations are performed in accordance with the guidance issued by the Internatronal Valuation Standards Committee.
These valuations are reviewed semi-annually by external valuers, Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing
use as investment property, or for which the market has become less active, conlinues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental incore from current leases and assumplions about
rental income from future leases in the tight of current market conditions,

The fair value also reflects, on 2 similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of the property. Some of those
outflows are recognised as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in respect of land classified as investment property, others,
including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefit associated
with the itern will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it 1s reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment preperty is classified as property, plant and equipment and slated at cost until construction or development is
cornplete, at which time it is reclassified and subseguently accounted for as investment property.

If an itern of property, plant and equiprnent becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any differences
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recagnised in equity as a revaluation
of property, plant and eguipment under |AS 16, However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain s
recognised in the income staternent.

Hotel buildings held by the Group are not owner occupied. The Group rents the buildings to third-party operators who run the hotels.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less subsequent depreciation and irnpairment. Cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount ar recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, enly when

it is probable that the fulure economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the itern can be
rmeasured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1s calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual vatues over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Property, plant and equipment 4 - 15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

€7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at 31 December 2005

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.7

€8

Investrments

Policy applicable froem 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004

Shares, warrants & options

Shares, warrants and options are held on the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined by the quoted market price in respect of listed instruments and Directers’ valuation regarding non-listed instruments
Profits are only recognised on shares ance they are sold and on options when either the maturity date is reached or the exposure
on the eption is ¢losed out. Income received on oplions which have nol yet reached maturity is held as deferred income.

Policy applicable from 1 January 2005 onwards

The Group classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and

receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initiat recognition and
reviews this designation at each reparting date.

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this calegory If acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term or if so designated by management. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realised
within 12 ronths of the balance sheet date

b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost. They arise when the
Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the recevable. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as nen-current
assets. Loans and receivables are included in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet.

¢) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed malurities
that the Group's management has a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. During the year, the Group did not hold
any investments in this category.

d)  Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any
of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless managernent intends to dispose of the investment
within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset, Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets nol carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Availatle-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are subsequently carried at fair value.

Leans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the cffective interest method.
Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assels at fair value through profit
or loss’ category are included in the incomne statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity. When securities
classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments are included

in the incorne statement as gains or losses from investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial assel is not active {and

for untisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation technigues. These include the use of recent arm’s
length trensactions, reference te other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and oplion
pricing models refined to reflecl the issuer’s specific circumstances.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objeclive evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the

fair value of the securily below its cost is considered in delermining whether the securities are impaired. If any such evidence
exisls for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - rmeasured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previcusly recognised in profit or loss - is removed from
equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognesed in the incorme staternent on equity msiruments arg
not reversed through the income statement




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at 31 December 2003

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Intangible assets

2.9

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost ol an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of net identifiable assets
including intangible assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries
and joint ventures is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investrments in associates.
Goodwill is tested annuatly for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Research and Development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects are recognised as
intangible assets when it is probable that the project will be a success, considering its commercial and technological feasibility,
and costs can be measured reliably,

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

2.10 Trade receivables

21

ury

Policy applicable from 1 January 2005 enwards

Trade receivables are recognised inittally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
methad, less provision for impairment. A provision fer impairment in trade receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due accerding to the original terms of receivables. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present vatue of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Properties that are being developed for future sales are reclassified as inventories at their deemed cost, which is the carrying
amount at the date of reclassification. They are subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net realisable vatue. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost to complete redevelopment and selling expenses.

2.12 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

MNon-current assels {or dispesal groups) are classified as assets held for sale and are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use.

A discontinued operation is @ component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and;
represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single ce-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resate,

The Group early adopted IFRS 5 from 1 January 2004 and applied it prospectively from that date in accordance with the standard's
previsions. The application of IFRS 5 does not impact on the prior year financial statements other than a change in the presentation
of the results and cash flows of discontinued operations

2.13 Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that

are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
armount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are scparately identifiable cash flows
{cash-generating units).




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at 31 December 2005

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.14 Borrowings

Policy applicable from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004

Borrowings are raised by the Group to finance holdings of investment properties. These are secured, in the main, on the individual
nraperties to which they relate. All borrowings are taken up in the locat currencies from specialist property Lending institutions.
Issue costs relating to new loans are capitalised and amortised to fotlow the prefile of the loan principal. Unamortised amaunts

at the balance sheet date are deferred against the loan liability.

Policy applicable from 1 January 2005 onwards

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Barrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditicnal right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

2.15 Income tax

The charge for current taxaticn is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are non-taxable or disallowed.

It is calculated using the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Tax payable on capital
gains realised on investment properties that have been revalued in previcus periods is included in the current tax charge and any
related deferred tax provision is released

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability methed. Provision is made for temporary differences between the
carrying value of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the values used for tax purposes. Temporary
differences are nat provided for when they arise from initial recagnition of assets and liabilities that do not affect accounting or
taxahle profit.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities and is calculated using rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the tax jurisdiction in which
the temporary differences arise.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s prebable that future taxable profits will be avaiiable against
which the assets can be used. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities are only offset if there is a legally enforceable right
of set off.

When distributions are contrelled by the Group, and it is probable the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax which would arise on the distribution of profits realised in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 1s provided
in the same period as the liability to pay the distribution is recognised in the financial statements,

2.16 Provisions

Provisions for legal ¢claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is more Likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been
reliably estimated.

Where the Group, as lessee, is contractually required to restore a leased property to an agreed condition, prior to release
by a lessor, provisien is made for such costs as they are identified.

2.17 Revenue recognition

10

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is stated net of sales taxes and value added
taxes. Revenue includes ‘Rental and similar revenue’, ‘Service charge and similar revenue’, ‘Revenue from cable operations’.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue from investment property:
a) Rental and similar revenue

Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. When the Group provides
incentives to its customers, the cost of incentives are recognised over the lease term, en a straight-line basis, as a reduction
of rental revenue

b) Service charge and similar revenue

Service and management charge revenue Is recognised an a grass basis in the accounting pertod in which the services
are rendered. Where the Group is acting as an agent, the commission rather than gross revenue is recorded as revenue

Revenue from equity investment:
¢) Revenue from cable operations

Revenue comprises amaunts invoiced, excluding trade discounts and intra-Group trading.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)Y
2.18 Leases

a) A Group company is the lessee

1) Operating lease - leases in which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party,
the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Payments, including prepayments, made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease,

i) Finance lease - leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance teases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease commencement date at the lower of the fair value of the
leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve & constant rate on the finance balance outstanding

The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in current and non-current borrowings.
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the incorne staternent over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the rernaining balance of the tiability for each period. The investment properties
acquired under finance leases are carried at fair value.

b) A Group comgpany is the lessor
i} Operating lease — properties leased out under operating leases are included in investment property in the balance sheet.

i} Finance lease - when assets are leased out under & finance lease, the present value of the lease payments is recognised
as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable accrues as finance
income. Lease incorne is recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method before tax. which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

219 Employee benefits
a) Pension obligations

The Group operates various defined contribution plans. The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pensicn insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has ne further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or 2 reduction in future payments is available.

In Sweden, the total pension benefits are a combination, with some parts being defined centribution plans and others defined
benefit plans. Defined benefit plans relate 1o the Swedish ITP pension plan which is administered by Alecta.

The Swedish Financial Accounting Standards Councils interpretations committee defined this plan as & multi-employer
defined benefit plan. The Group did not have access to information from Alecta that would have made it possible for this
plan lo be reported as a defined benefit plan. Therefore, the plan has been reported as a defined contribution plan. This
treatment is consistent with other Swedish companies investing in similar pension plans.

b) Share-based compensation

The Group operated an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount te be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the pptions granted, excluding the impact of any nen-market vesting conditions
(for examgle, profitability and sales growth targets) Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet date, the entity revises i1ts estimates

of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. |t recognrses the impact of original estimates, if any,

in the income statement, and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting period

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are credited to share caprtal {(nominal value) and
share premium when the options are exercised.

2,20 Share capital
Policy applicable from 1 January 2005 onwards

Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds. incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of new shares or options, or for the acquisition of a busmness,
are included in the cost of acquisition as part of the purchase consideration

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incrernental costs (net of iIncome taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the Company's equity holders until the shares are
cancelled, reissued or dispesed of. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration recewved, net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects. is included in equily altributable to the
Company’s equity holders

b
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Tender offer buy-hacks

In lieu of paying dividends, a distribution by way of a tender offer buy-back is made twice yearly. Shares purchased by way of the
tender offer are currently retained as treasury shares. Up to 10% of the issued share capital can be held as treasury shares.

Where the Company purchases ils own shares out of free reserves and cancels the shares, a sum equal to the nominal value of
the shares so purchased shall be transferred to the capital redemption reserve account.

The total cost of the tender offer buy-back is charged to retained earnings.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Risk management factors

72

Policy applicable from 1 January 2004 to 31 Decemher 2004

Financial instruments are held by the Group to manage interest and foreign exchange rate risk. Hedging instruments such as
interest rate caps are acquired from prime banks. The Group has thereby hedged all of its interest rate exposure and a significant
proportion of its foreign exchange rate exposure.

Group's pelicy is to hedge the following exposures:
- Interest rate risk - using interest rate caps

- Currency risk - using local currency borrowing, forward foretgn currency contracls and swaps
Policy applicable from 1 January 2005 onwards

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the central treasury departrnent (Group Treasury) under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the Group's cperating units.
The Board provides written principals for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as
foreign exchange risk, interest-rate risk, credit risk, use of dervative financial instruments and not-dervative Iinancial
instruments, and investing excess liquidity

a) Marketrisk
i} Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is expesed to foreign exchange risk arising frem various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the Swedish Kroner, and the Eure. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial

transacticns, recognised monetary assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations which are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to fereign currency translation
risk. The primary management of currency exposure arising from the translation of net assets of the Group's foreign
operations in Sweden and Europe is through denominating borrowings in the retevant fereign currencies.

To manage the residual foreign exchanage risk the Group uses forward foreign exchange contracts transacted by Group
Treasury. Group Treasury is responsible for managing the net position in each foreign currency by using external forward
currency contracts.

i) Price risk
The Group Is exposed to property price and market rental risks
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Group and classified on the

consolidated balance sheet either as available-for-sale, or at fair value through profit or loss. The Group is not exposed
to cormmodity price risk.

b) Creditrisk

The Group has ne significant concentrations of credit risk. It has palicies in place to ensure that rental contracts are made
with customers with an appropriate credit history, Derivative counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high-credit-
quality financial institutions, The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution,

¢} Liquidity risk

Prudent Uguidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities the availability of funding
through an adequate arount of cormmitted credit facilities and the ability lo close aut market positions. Due to the dynamic nature
of the underlying businesses, Group Treasury aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping cammitted credit lines available.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Risk management factors (continued)

d) Cash ftow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings {note 26). Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issue at fixed rate rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk

The Group rnanages its cash flow interest-rate risk by using; floating-to-fixed interest-rate swaps, caps, floors and collars
Interest-rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Under the interest-
rate swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (mainly quarterly), the difference between
fixed contracts and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional interest amounts.

3.2 Accounting for financial instruments and hedging activities

Policy applicable from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004

Gains and losses on instruments used for hedging are not recognised and are effectively deferred in the balance sheet. Book
values of the cap may differ from the fair value. Gains and losses on forward foreign exchange contracts arise due te movements
in the exchange rate. These gains and losses are taken to reserves and matched with the change in value of the fareign net asset
investment.

interest rate caps

The premium paid for interest rale caps used to hedge borrowings is held within debtors on the balance sheet and amortised over
the period of the cap.

Farward foreigh exchange contracts

When forward foreign exchange contracts are entered inta to hedge the Group's net investment in overseas operations, any gains
and losses on those contracts are taken directly to reserves. Any potential losses on forward contracts at the balance sheet date
are similarly provided for, although potential profits are deferred until they crystallise.

Any premium paid is taken to the profit and loss account in the year.
Policy applicable from 1 January 2005 anwards

Derivatives

The Group uses derivatives to help manage its imerest rate and foreign exchange rate risk. In accordance with its treasury policy,
the Group does not hold or issue derivatives for trading purposes.

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value on the date a derivative conlract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either: {1) hedges
of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm cornmitment (fair value hedge); (2) hedges of highly probeble forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges); or (3} hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

Hedge accounting

Where a financial instrument is designated as o hedge, the Group fermally documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged iter as well as its risk management objectives and 1ts strategy for undertaking the various hedging
transactions. The Group also docurnents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
derivatives that are used in the hedging transactions are highty effective in offsetting the changes in fair values or cash flows
of the hedged items.

a) Fair value hedge accounting

Changes in fair value of derivatives that qualify and are designated as fair velue hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk

b) Cash ftow hedge accounting

For qualifying cash flow hedges, the fair value gain ar loss assaciated with the effective portion of the cash llow hedge Is
recognised initially directly in shareholders’ equity, and recycled to the income statement in the periods when the hedged
itemn will affect profit and loss. Any ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument s recognised immediately
i the income statement

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meels the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecasted transaction ts
ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was recognised in equily is immediately transferred to the income staternent.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Accounting for financial instruments and hedging activities {continued)

33

¢} Hedges of net investments

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge s recognised directly in equity; the gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Gains and losses accumulated In equity are recognised in the income statement when the foreign operation is disposed of

d) Derivatives that do net qualify for hedge acceunting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for bedge accounting Changes in the fair value of any derivative instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the income statement

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on gquoted market prices at the balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask price,

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation technigues. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or dealer guotes for similar
instruments are used for long-term debt. Other technigues. such as eslimaled discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair
value for the remaining financial instrurnents. The fair vslue of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market
rates at the halance sheet date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical experience as adjusted for current market conditions and
other factors

4.1

74

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldomn
equal the related actual results. The estimales and assumptions that have a signiticant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

a) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar lease and other contracts. In the absence
of such information, the Group determines the amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its
judgement, the Group considers information from a variety of sources including:

i) current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;

i} recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic canditions
since the date of the transactions that occurred at these prices; and

ity discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any existing
lease and other contracts, and {where possible} from external evidence such as current market rents for similar properlies
in the same location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainly
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

b) Principal assumptions for management’s estimation of fair value of investment properties

If infarmation an current or recent prices of assumptions underlying the discounted cash flow approach investment properties
are not available, the fair values of investment properties are determined using discounted cash flow valuation techniques
The Group uses assumpticns that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date.

The principal assumptions underlying management's estimation of fair value are those related to: the receipt of contractual
rentals; expected future market rentals; void periods: maintenance requirements; and appropriate discount rates. These
valualicns are regularly compared to actual market yield data, and accrual transactions by the Group and those reported
by the market.

The expected future market rentals are determined on the basis of current market rentals for similar properties in the same
location and condition.
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at 31 December 2005

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

<) Income Taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in different jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in deterrmining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are same transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the ameounts that were imitially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which determination is made.

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity's accounting policies

a) Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualities as investment property. In making its judgement, the Group considers
whether the property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property but alse to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties camprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and ancther portion that is held for use

in the preduction or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be sold separately (or leased

out separately under a finance lease}, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the partions cannot be sold separately, the
property is accounted for as investrnent property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property. The Group considers each property separately in making its judgernent

b) Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of IAS 39 {revised 2004) on deterrnining when an investment is other-than-temporarily impaired. This
determination requires significant judgernent. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost; and the financial health of and near-term business outlook for the
investee, including factors such as industry and seclor performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash ftow.

§ SEGMENT INFORMATION
Primary reporting format - geographical segments
The Group's operations are managed on a country-by-country basis. The Group operates in three principal geographic areas of the world:
{1} United Kingdom
(2) Sweden
{3} Continental Europe

There are no transactions between the geographical segments. The unallocated segments represents group iterns, being current and
deferred tax

Segment assets include primarily investment properties, property plant and equipment, intangible assets, trade and other receivables,
and cash and cash equivalents, and investments where appropriate, Segment liabilities comprise borrowings, including finance leases
and other operating liabilities

Capital expenditure comprises additions to investrent property, preperty, plant and egquipment and intangible assets, including
additions resulting from acquisitions through business corbinations.

The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2005 are as follows:

United Continental

Kingdom Sweden Europe Unallocated Total
E000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Continuing operations
Revenue 40,256 24,179 20,604 - 85,039
Operating profit before gains/{losses) on investment properties 21,464 14,259 18,457 - 54,180
Net gain from fair value adjustment on investment property 24,137 9,819 33217 - 67173
Loss on disposal of part share of JV 11,106} - - - 11,106}
Profit from sale of investment property 1.489 - 366 - 1,855
Finance income 652 244 529 - 1,425
Finance costs (22.053) (10,761 (4,840) - (37,654)
Share of loss of associates - post tax {1,216) - - - (1,218
Profit before tax 23,367 13,561 471,729 - 84,657
Tax charge on profit (23.160) (23,160
Profit for the year from centinuing eperations 61,497
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3

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Primary reporting format - geagraphical segments (continued)

Other information:

United Continental
Kingdom Sweden Europe Unallocated Total
€000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets 575,587 313.320 361.821 14,025 1,264,753
Associates 3,526 - - - 3,526
Total assets 579,112 313,320 361,821 14,025 1,268,279
Liabilities 347,641 206,535 212,415 147,908 914,499
Capital expenditure 14,438 36,258 245N - 75,207
Depreciation 384 110 10 - 504
Segmental informatien for the Group's discontinued operations is presented in note 32.
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2004 are as follows:
United Continental
Kingdom Sweden Europe Unallecated Totat
£000 £000 £000 E00D £000
Continuing operatians
Revenue 39,193 23,102 19.080 - 81,375
Operating profit before gains/(losses) on investment properties 28,417 13,438 16,284 - 58,139
Net gain from fair value adjustment on investmen? property 26,404 2.854 1.978 - 37.236
(Loss)profit from sale of investment property (56) - 520 - 464
Finance income 671 174 956 - 1.801
Finance costs (21,439} {7.962) (6,465) - (35.866)
Share of loss of assoctates ~ post tax (1,70M - - - (1,701
Profit before tax 32,296 8,504 19,273 - 60,073
Tax charge on profit (16,638) (16,638)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 43,435
Other information:
United Continental
Kingdom Sweden Europe Unatlocaled Total
EGGO €000 000 £000 EQDD
Assets 529,903 289,378 300218 13.813 1133312
Associates 3,010 - - - 3,010
Total assets 532,913 289,378 300,218 13,813 1,134,322
Liabilities 324,858 179,239 179,566 128,853 812,516
Capital expenditure 16,915 25,532 32,545 - 74,992
Depreciation 428 107 9 - Sab

Segmental information for the Group’s discontinued operations is presented in note 32.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Secondary reporting format - business segments

Although the Group operates en a country-by-country geographic basis, the Group operates in two distinct operating divisions
{1) Investment property, and

(2} Equity investment

2005 2004
£000 €000
Continuing operations:
Revenue
Investment property 85,039 81,375
Equily investment - -
85,039 81,375
Total assets
Investment property 1,239,935 1,117,614
Equity investment 28,344 18,708

1,268,279 1,136,322

Capital expenditure
Investment property 75,207 74,992
Equity investment - -

75,207 74,992
Segmental information for the Group's discontinued operations is presented in note 3Z.
&  OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2005 2004
€ooo £000
investment income - 3,034
Realised gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financiat assets (note 17) 1.1%4 -
Other property related income 1,058 400
Other incorme 1,188 717
Total 3,360 4151
7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

2005 2004
€000 £000
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services 250 260
Auditors remuneration for non-audit services 105 5
Depreciation and amortisation 504 544
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 425 327
Repairs and maintenance 243 179
Bad debt expense 902 440
Employee benetit expense (note 8) 7,430 4,899
Legal fees 3,549 618
Operating lease rentals 610 415
Other expenses 4,414 5928
Total 18,442 13.615

Classified as:
Administrative expenses 14,910 9,984
Net property expenses 3,532 3,431
Total 18,442 13,415
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at 31 Decernber 2003

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

2005 2004

£000 £000
Wages and salaries 5,603 3783
Social securily costs 1,049 530
Share options granted to directors and employees [ 10
Pension costs - defined cantnibution plans 231 1469
Other employee related expenses 541 407
Total 7,430 4,899

Please refer to the Directors’ rernuneration report for details of Directors’ emoluments, who are considered to be the Key Management

as defined by 1AS 24,

The maenthly average number of persons employed by the Group for continuing operations, including Executive Directors

were as follows:

2005 2004
Male 35 39
Fernale 40 3
Total 75 77
9  FINANCE INCOME
2005 2004
£000 £000
Finance income:
- Foreign exchange variances (47) 86
- Interest incorne 1,472 1.715
Total 1,425 1,801
10 FINANCE COS5TS
2005 2004
£000 €000
Interest expense:
- Bank borrowings 31,284 28,949
- Debentures 4,698 4,693
- Finance leases 55 67
- Other interest g 59
Amortisation of issue costs of loans 1,392 1,099
Caps, collar and floer amartisatien - 999
Dertvative financial instruments (note 18)
- Interest-rate swaps: cash ftow hedges (transfer from equity) 141 -
- Interest-rate swaps: transactions not qualifying as hedges 1] -
- Interest-rate caps, collars and floors: transactions not qualifying as hedges 7 -
Total 37,654 35866
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11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Continuing

operations

Year ended 31 December 2005 £000
Current tax 1,304
Deferred tax (note 25) 21,856
Total 23,1460
Continuing

operations

Year ended 31 December 2004 £000
Current tax 594
Deferred tax (note 25) 16042
Total 16,638

In addition to the deferred tax expense charged ta the profit and loss, a deferred tax credit of £2,894 thousand has been recognised

directly in equity (see note 25).

Cn adoption of |AS 32 and |AS 3% at 1 January 2005, a net deferred tax tiability of £1,872 thousand was recognised directly in equity.

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical armount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as follows:

2005 2004
£000 £000

Profit before tax:
Continuing operations 84,657 40,073
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to profits in the respective countries 24,803 17,455
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,125 1.950
Tax effect of unrecognised losses in associates 338 -
Agreement of previously unrecognised tax losses (322) (2,054}
Different taxation on treatment of disposals 1,917 (743
Losses used through consortium relief by muincrities (1,380) 234
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (487) (873)
Tax expense for the year 23,160 16,638

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 29.3% (2004: 29.1%).
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit atiributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares
(see note 22)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The Group has only one category of dilutive potential ordinary shares: those share options granted to employees where the exercise
price is less than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the year, the effect of these dilutive securities

is lo increase weighted average shares by 599,000 shares (2004: 585,000 shares).

2005 2004
2005 Earnings 2004 Earnings
Earnings per share Earmings per share
€000 Pence £000 Pence
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share 55,537 7.5 40511 470
Dilution
- Share options - (0.5) - (0.3)
Diluted earnings per share 55,537 47.0 40,511 6.7
Earnings per share from continuing operations:
Basic earnings per share 55,537 &7.5 40511 47.0
Less discontinued cperations
- Pre tax losses from discontinued operations 6,192 7.5 4002 4.6
Basic earnings per share ~ continuing operations 61,729 75.0 44513 516
Dilution
- Share options - (0.5) - 0.3
Diluted earnings per share - continuing operations 61,729 74.5 44,513 513
Earnings per share from discontinued operations:
Discontinued operations
- Pre tax losses from discontinued operations (6,192) (7.5) (4,002} (4.6)
Basic earnings per share - discantinued operations (56,192) (7.5) {4,002) {4 8)
Dilution
- Share options - - - -
Diluted earnings per share - discontinued operations (6,192} (7.5} (4,002) {46}

The weighted average number of shares for the period was 82,316,545 {2004: 86,113,994),
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t3 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2005 2004

£000 £000
At beginning of year 1,022,539 918,721
Net exchange differences (27,024) 6,179
Business acquisitions 9,105 32,343
Property acguisitions 21,883 7.537
Capital expenditure 43,342 25,874
Disposal (45,587) (8,351
Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment property 67,173 37,236
Rent free period debter adjustments 4,920 -
At end of year 1,094,361 1,022,539

The investment properties were revalued at 31 Decemnber 2005 to their fair value, valuations were based on current prices in an active
market for all properties. The property valuations were carried out by Allsop & Co {for the UK and Swedish properties) and DTZ

Debenham Tie Leung (for Continental European properties), who are independent, professionally qualified valuers

Investment property includes buildings held under finance leases of which the carrying amount is £45,897 thousand (2004: £43,044 thousand).

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its investment property under operating leases is typically 3 years or more,

No contingent rents were recognised in 2005 (2004: £ril).

14 PROPERTY, PLANT ARD EQUIPMENT

Property, Property in
plant and  the course of

eguipment  construction Total
£004 £000 €000
Cost
At 1 January 2004 10,155 2,478 12,633
Additions 1,545 3.192 4,737
Disposals (2,181} - (2180
Exchange rate differences 17 - 17
At 31 Decemnber 2004 9.536 5.670 15,206
Additions 1,764 947 2,731
Disposals (6,374) - {6,374)
Exchange rate differences 77 - (77
At 31 Decernber 2005 4,849 6,637 11,486
Depreciation
At 1 January 2004 3,308 - 3.308
Depreciation charge 1,330 - 1,330
Disposals (152} - (152)
Exchange rate differences 10 - 1a
At 31 December 2004 4,496 - 4,496
Depreciation charge 1,460 - 1,480
Impairment 1,000 - 1.000
Disposals (3,547) - (3,547
Exchange rate differences (42) - 2
At 31 December 200% 3,367 - 3,367
Net book value
At 31 Oecemnber 2004 5,040 5,670 10,710
At 31 December 2005 1,482 6,637 8,11¢%
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases

The net boock amount of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases was £nil (2004: £122 thousand). The depreciation
expense charged to the inceme staterment in relation to property, plant and equipment held under finance leases was £7 thousand

{2004: Enil).

Property, plant and equipment held under operating leases

Lease rentals armounting to £27 thousand (2004: £28 thousand) relating to the lease of property, plant and equipment are included

in the income staterment.

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16

Other
Goodwill intangibles Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost and net book value

At 1 January 2004 - 427 427
Additions 2,509 421 2,930

At 31 Decernber 2004 2,509 848 3.357
Additions 252 89 341

At 31 December 2005 2,761 937 3,698

Intangible assets include

Goodwill includes £2 509 thousand which arose from the acquisition of a French property portfolio through a business combination in
2004, and £252 thousand which arose from the acquisition of a German property business during 2005.

Other intangibles of £937 thousand include internally generated capitalised development and other costs.

Impairment of intangible assets

The Group tests intangible assets annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that intangible assets might

be impaired. Management has reviewed the intangible asset balances for impairment and has concluded that there has been no

impairment during the year.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Net assets Goodwill Total
£000 €000 £000
At 1 January 2004 412 2.813 3,225
Additions - 1,698 1,698
Share of (loss)/profit (58) - (58)
Other equity movements (199) (13 (212)
impairment - (1,643} (1,643)
At 31 Decernber 2004 155 2,855 3.010
Additiens 1714 - 1.774
Share of {loss)/profit (420) - (420)
Qther equity mavements 230 (230) -
Imparrment (271) (575) {794}
Exchange rate differences 18 - ‘8
At 31 December 2005 1,424 2,100 3,528
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16 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

The Group's interest in its principal associates, all of which are unlisted, were as follows:

Profit/ Interest

Assets Liabilities Revenues {loss} held

Year ended 31 December 2005 £000 £000 £000 £000 %

Keronite Limited (incorporated in England and Wales) 775 (775) 822 (1,757) 479

Lunarwerks AB {incorporated in Sweden) 1.992 {566) 2,532 541 4872
Total 2,767 {1,341} 3,354 (1,214}

Profit/ Inlerest

Assets Liabilities Revenues (loss) held

Year ended 31 December 2004 £000 £000 £000 €000 %

Keronite Limited (incorporated in England and Wales) 643 {1.268) 532 (1,918} 4.1

Lunarworks AB (incorporated in Sweden) 1,193 (413) 1,690 217 45.1
Total 1,836 (1.681) 2,222 (1,700}

The carrying amaunt of the Keronite investment has been reduced te Enit through the recognition of an impairment loss of £796 thousand
{2004: £1,643 thousand) the impairment loss was based on discounted cash tlow projections. These losses have been included in the

income staternant,

Keronite Limited has a balance sheet date of 31 March and Lunarwerks AB has a balance sheet date of 31 December.

17 AYAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-tor-
sale financial

assels
€000
AL 31 Decernber 2004 -
Adoption of IAS 32/IAS 39 - reclassification from investments at 1 January 2005, see note 38 10,663
Adoption of 1AS 32/IAS 39 - revaluation of investments at 1 January 2005, see note 38 12,008
At 1 January 2005 22,671
Acguisition of subsidiary -
Additions 3,382
Disposals (1,200)
Provision charged to profit and loss (441}
Revaluation deficit movements in equity (10.377)
Exchange rate differences amn
At 31 December 2005 13,918
Less: non-current portion (13,918)

Current portion
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17 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets include the followsng:

2005
€000
Listed securities

- Equity securities - UK 9,371
- Equity securities - Sweden 1,372
- Equity securities - US 58
- Government securities ~ UK 150
10,951

Unlisted securities
- Equity securities - UK 2,156
- Equity securilies - Sweden 221
- Equity securities - US 527
- Equity securities - Other 22
2,924
Other investrents 41
Total 13,918

This line item is only used from 1 January 2005, the |AS 32 and tAS 39 transition date. Disclosures for the year ended 31 December 2004

under previous GAAP are located in note 36.

18 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2005 2005
Assets Liabilities
€gog £000
Interest-rate swaps - cash flew hedges 353 890
Interest-rate swaps - not qualifying as hedges - 207
Ferward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges - 92
Interest-rate caps, collars and floors - not qualifying as hedges 457 78
Total 810 1,267
Less non-current portion:
Interest-rate swaps - cash flow hedges 353 890
Interest-rate swaps ~ not qualifying as hedges - -
Forward foreign exchange contracts - cash flow hedges - 92
Interest-rate caps, collars and floors - not qualifying as hedges - -
Non-current portion 353 982
Current partion 457 285

Interest-rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest-rate swap contracts at 31 December 2005 was £108.3 million. The average

period to maturity of of the interest-rate swaps was 2.7 years.

Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group provides funds for working capital investment in re-developrent of investment properties in Sweden. The Group hedges the

risk of adverse foreign exchange rate movements by entering into forward foreign exchange contracts.

This line item is anly used from 1 January 2005, the IAS 32 and 1AS 39 transition date.
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19

20

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2005 2004
£000 £000
Non-current
Prepayments 315 1.065
Other debtors 950 2,098
1,265 3,163
Current
Trade receivables 4,109 3.989
Frepayments 1,593 1564
Accrued income 449 3,943
Other debtors 2,244 2,200
8,395 11,696
Total 9,660 14,859

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of tenants, internationally
dispersed. Included in the above non-current other debtors balance is an armount due from the sale of the WightCable business, this
has been discounted at 8.0% representing the time value of money.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2009 2004
E£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 112,841 52,285
Short term bank deposits 5321 5,086
Total 118,162 57,371

At 31 December 2005, Group cash at bank and in hand included £3,861 thousand (2004: £3,449 thousand) of cash depasits which are
subject to either a legal assignment or a charge in favour of a third party.

Cash and shart-term deposits are invested at competitive floating rates of interest based on relevant national LIBID and base rates
or equivatents in Jersey, the UK, Sweden and France.

The fair value of short-term deposits approximates to the carrying amount because of the shert maturity of these financial
instruments.

Interest rate risk of financial assets:
Cash at bank Short-term

and in hand deposits Total

Year ended 31 December 2005 £000 £000 €000
Sterling 58,642 4,925 63,567
Swedish Kroner 10,714 - 10,714
Euro 43,474 394 43,870
QOther " - "
Total 112,841 5,321 118,162

Cash al bank Short-term

and in hand deposils Totat

Year ended 31 December 2004 £000 £000 £000
Sterling 14,283 4712 18,995
Swedish Kroner 13.048 - 13,048
Euro 24,936 374 25,310
Other i8 - 18
Total 52,285 5.086 57.371
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21 JOINT YENTURES

The Group has an interest in two joint ventures:

- Teighmore Limited, incorporated in Jersey, of which the Group owns 33 1/3 per cent of the ordinary share capital {2004: 33 1/3 per cent}.

~ New London Bridge House Limited, incorperated in England and Wales, of which the Group owns 33 1/3 per cent of the ordinary
share capital (2004: 50 per cent). On 14 December 2005 the Group disposed of 1/3 of its share in New London Bridge House Limited.

this resulted in a iess on disposal of £1,106 thousand

The principal activity of the above joint venture companies is development, management and investment in commercial properties.

The following amounts represent the Group's share of the assels and liabilities, sales and results of the above joint ventures.
They are included in the balance sheet and income statement:

New London
Teighmore Bridge House Total
Year ended 31 December 2085 £000 £o00
Assets:
Nen-current assets 24,999 16,376 41,375
Current assets 341 378 g
25,340 16,754 42094
Liabilities:
Non-current liabilities 12,652 9.758 22410
Current Uabilities 2,458 1.271 3.729
15,110 11.02% 26,139
Net assets 10,230 5,725 15,955
lncome 924 2,114 3.038
Expenses (941} {1,381) (2322)
Profit after income tax (17 733 Fal)
New Londan
Teighmore Bridge House Total
Year ended 31 December 2004 £000 €0 fo00
Assets:
Non-current assets 24,003 22,500 46,503
Current assets 557 758 1.315
24,560 23,258 47818
Liabilities:
Nen-current Liabilities 12,623 15,259 27 882
Current liabilities 3,395 1,924 5319
16,018 17,183 33,201
Net assets 8542 6,075 14,617
Income 929 2,21 3.140
Expenses {961) (1,794) {2 75%)
Profit after income tax (32) 417 385
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22 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary Total

Number of shares in Treasury ordinary

shares circulation shares shares

(thousands) £000 £000 £000

At 1 January 2004 87,644 21,911 - 21,91
Employee share oplion schema:

- proceeds from shares issued 291 72 - 72

Purchase of own shares:

- pursuant to tender offer - (41 an -

Cancellation of shares - pursuant to tender offer (2,438) (609} - {609

At 31 Decernber 2004 85,497 20,963 41 21,374

Adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39 - - - -

At 1 January 2005 85,497 20,963 411 21,374
Employee share option scheme:

- proceeds from shares issued 30 8 - 8

Issue of shares - 4 (4) -

Purchase of own shares:

- pursuant to tender offer - (850) 850 -

- pursuant to market purchase - o1 111 -

At 31 December 2005 85,527 20,014 1,368 21,282

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 160 million shares (2004: 160 million shares) with a par value of 25 pence per share

(2004: 25 pence per share). All shares issued are fully paid.

Treasury shares

Treasury shares held at 31 December 2005 were 5,469,490 (2004: 1,644,176).

During the year the Company acquired 3,843.835 of its own shares, of which 3,402,835 were purchased through the tender offer

(2004: 4,082,066}, and 441,000 were purchased threugh the market (2004: nil).

During the year the Company re-issued 18,521 ({2004: nil) of its own shares.

Share options

The number of shares subject to option, the period in which they were granted and the periods in which they may be exercised

is given below:

Exercise Exercise
Date of grant price {pence) period 2005 2004
30 Navember 2000 188 2003 - 2007 ~ 10,00C
30 Movember 2000 188 2003 - 2013 15,000 15,00C
30 November 2000 188 2003 - 2007 10,000 10,00C
20 December 2001 2125 2004 - 2008 - 26,00C
20 December 2001 2125 2004 - 2008 14,000 14.00C
20 Decemnber 2001 2125 2004 - 201 436,000 436,000
28 February 2002 224 2005 - 2012 ~ 13,3%C
28 February 2002 224 2005 - 2009 ~ 4,610
03 March 2003 2045 2006 - 2013 10,000 10,000
11 April 2003 1945 2004 - 2010 -~ 14,000
06 Qctober 2003 240 2006 - 2013 12,500 12,500
06 October 2003 240 2006 - 2010 17,500 17,500
27 September 2005 45825 2008 - 2012 73,500 -
21 December 2005 492.75 2008 - 2012 6,088 -
21 December 2005 492.75 2008 - 2012 412 -
Total 595,000 585,000

87




NOTES 7O THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

at 31 December 2003

22 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The following options were exercised during the year:

Number Exercise
Date of exercise of shares  price (pence)
15 March 2005 10,000 188
24 March 2005 13,390 224
24 March 2005, 6,610 224
Total 30,000
in addition, during the year 40,000 opticns were surrendered and 80,000 new options were granted.
23 OTHER RESERVES
Share Capital Cumulative  Cash flow
premium redemption translation hedge  Fair value Other
reserye reserve reserve reserve resarve reserves Tetal
€000 £000 £000 €400 £000 EODD £000
AL 1 January 2004 68,928 11,693 11,888 - - 28,101 120,670
Ernployee share option scheme:
- value of service provided - - ~ - - 10 10
- proceeds form shares issued 356 - - - - - 356
Cancellation of shares - 609 ~ - - - 609
Currency translation differences - - 485 - - - 485
At 31 December 2004 69,284 12,302 12373 - - 28,111 122,070
Adoption of 1AS 32 and IAS 39 - - - 262 2,512 - 9774
AL 1 tanuary 2005 49,284 12,302 12,373 262 9,512 28,111 131844
Employee share option scheme:
- value of service provided - - ~ - - 6 &
- proceeds form shares issued 56 - - - - - 56
Issue of shares 79 - -~ - - - 79
Currency transiation differences - - (7.663) - - - (7.663)
Available-for-sale financial assets:
- fair value gains in the pericd - - - - {10377 - (1037
- tax on fair value gains - - ~ - 2,898 - 2.8%
Cash flow hedges:
- fair value gains in the period - - -~ (940) - - (940)
- transfer to net profit - - - 141 - - 141
At 31 December 2005 69,419 12,302 4,718 (537) 2,031 28,117 116,042

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2005 2004
£000 €000

Non-current portion
Other payables - 1.279
- 1.279

Current

Trade payables 4,896 7.829
Social security and other taxes 1,952 2,094
Other payables 6,208 4,150
Accruals 14,182 13,036
Defarred income 18,158 15,009
45,394 46,128
Total 45,394 45,407
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assels against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2005 2004
£000 £000

Deferred tax assets:

~ Deferred tax assets to be recovered after maore than 12 months (14,025) (13813
Delerred tax liahilities:

- Deferred tax liability to be recovered after more than 12 menths 146,109 127,951
Total 132,084 114,138

The movement an the deferred incorme tax account is as follows
Total
£ooo0

At 1 January 2004 93,339
Charged to the incorne statement 16,042
Acquisition of subsidiaries 3,808
Exchange differences 951
At 31 December 2004 114,138
Deferred tax effects on adoption of I1AS 32 and 1AS 39 1.872
At 1 January 2005 116,010
Charged to the income statement 21,856
Release from equity (2,896
Acquisition of subsidiaries 252
Exchange differences (3.138}
At 31 December 2005 132,084

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year,
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within

Tax losses Other Total

Deferred tax assets: £000 €000 £000
At 1 January 2004 (8.131) (6,327) (14,458)
Charged to the income statement 428 217 645

At 31 Decemnber 2004 (7,703} (6,110) (13,813
Deferred tax effects on adoption of IAS 32 and [AS 39 - (1.016) (1,018

At 1 January 2005 (7,703} (7,126) (14,829}
Charged to the income statement 21 873 894
Release from equity - (70) (90

At 31 Decemnber 2005 (7,682) (6,343) (14,025)
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Tax on
Deductien for fair value
UK capital  adjustments
allowances toinvestment Other Total
Deferred tax liabilities: £000 property £000 £000
At ¥ January 2004 14,631 23,144 - 107 797
Charged to the income statement 928 14,447 22 15,397
Acquisition of subsidiary - 3,806 - 3,806
Exchange differences - 951 - 351
At 31 Decermnber 2004 15,559 112,370 22 127,931
Deferred tax effects on adoption of 145 32 and 1AS 3% - - 2,888 2,888
At 1 January 2005 15,559 112,370 2.910 130,839
(Credited)/charged to the income statement 413 21,229 144 20,962
Release from eguity - - (2.808) (2,808)
Acquisition of subsidiary - 252 - 252
Exchange differences - (2.970) (168) (3,138}
At 31 December 2005 15,146 130,881 82 146,109
Net deferred tax liabilities/(asset) 132,084

Deferred income lax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2005 the Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of £5378
thausand (2004: £1,072 thousand) in respect of lesses amounting to £17,926 thousand (2004: £3,478 thousand) that can be carried
forward against future taxable income or gains in those entities. The majority of deferred tax assets recognised within the “other’
category relate to buildings which have fallen below original cost.

26 BORROWINGS, INCLUDING FINANCE LEASES

Total

Current Nen-current borrowings

At 31 December 2005 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans 23,689 440,618 464,507
Debentures loans 634 37,404 38.038
Other loans 812 14,664 15,497
Finance lease liabilities 183 1.70% 1,888
Total 25,339 694,591 719,930
Total

Current Neon-current borrewings

At 31 December 2004 £o0no €000 €000
Bank loans 15,858 563,514 579,372
Debentures loans 570 38,038 38,608
Other loans 844 16,984 17,828
Finance lease liabilities 216 1,931 2,147
Total 17,488 620,467 637,955

Arrangement fees of £6,541 thousand (2004: £6,060 thousand) have been offset against the balances in the abave tables.
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256 BORROWINGS, INCLUDING FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

o

Bank loans

Interest on bank loans 15 charged at fixed rates ranging between 3.32 per cent and 11.20 per centincluding a margin (2004 4.32 per
cent and 11.2 per cent) and at floating rates of LIBOR, STIBOR and EURIBOR or equivalent plus a margin. Fixed rate margins range
between 0.70 per cent and 1.80 per cent (2004: 0.70 per cent and 1.80 per cent) and floating rate margins range between 0.77 per
cent and 3.25 per cent (2004: 0.90 per cent and 3.25 per cent). All bank loans are secured by legal charges over the regpective
properties to which they relate, and in most cases, floating charges over the remainder of the assets held in the company that
owns the property. In addition, the share capital of some of the subsidiaries within the Group has been charged.

Debenture loans

The £38.0 million (2004: £38.6 million) of debenture loans represent amortising bonds which are repayable in equal quarterly
instalments of £1.2 millicn (2004; £1.2 millien) with final repayment due January 2025. Each instalment ts apportioned between
principal and interest on a reducing balance basis. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 10.77 per cent, including margin, The
debentures are secured by a legal charge over the relevant property and securitisatton of its rental income.

Qther loans

Interest on other loans is charged at fixed rates ranging between 7.5 per cent and 11.6 per cent, including margin. The loans are
secured by legal charges over the respective properties to which they relate.

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s borrowings, including finance leases at 37 December was as follows:

Finance
Debt leases Total
At 31 December 2005 £000 £000 £000
Within one year or on demand 25,792 184 25,976
In more than one but not more than two years 20,851 255 21,106
In more than two but not more than five years 295,185 1,299 296,484
[n more than five years 382,753 152 382,905
724,581 1,890 726,471
Unarmortised issue costs (6,539) (23 (6,541)
Total borrowings, including finance leases net of Issue costs 718,042 1,888 719,930
Less amount due for settlemnent within 12 months {shown under current liabilities) (25.156) (183 (25,339)
Amounts due for settlemant after 12 manths 692,884 1,705 694,591
Finance
Debt leases Total
At 31 December 2004 E0DO £000 £000
Within one year or on demand 17,945 217 18,162
In more than one but not more than two years 95,881 220 94,101
In more than two but not more than five years 133,623 1,562 135,185
ln more than five years 394,414 151 394 547
641,865 2,150 444,015
Unamortised issue costs (6,057} (3) (6.060)
Net Borrowings, including finance leases 635,808 2147 637,955
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current Liabilities) 017,272} (2783 117.488)
Amaounts due for settlement after 12 months 618,536 1,931 620,467
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26 BORROWINGS, INCLUDING FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the Group’s borrowings, including finance leases at 31 December analysed into bank
loans, debenture loans, other loans, and finance leases:

92

2005 2004
£000 £000
Bank loans are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on dermand 24,314 16,531
In more than one but not more than two years 19,302 94,4011
In more than two but not more than five years 278,741 118,936
In mere than five years 348,678 355,561
671,035 585,429
Unamaortised issue costs (6,528) (6.057)
Total bank loans net of issue costs 464,507 579,372
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months {(shown under current liabilities) (23,689} {15.,858)
Amounts due for settiement after 12 months 640,818 563514
Debenture loans are repayable by instalments as foltows:
Within one year or on dernand 634 570
In more than one but not more than two years 705 634
In more than two but net more than five years 2,624 2,360
In more than five years 34,075 35.044
Total debenture loans 38,038 38,608
Less amount due for settlement within 12 manths (shown under current labtlities) (634) (570)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 37,404 38,038
Other loans are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand 844 844
In mare than one but not more than two years 844 84aé
In more than two but not more than five years 12,820 12.327
In more than five years - 3.81
15,508 17,828
Unamortised issue costs (11) -
Total other loans net of issue costs 15,497 17,828
Less smount due for settlement within 12 manths {(shown under current liabilities) (833) {844)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 months 14,664 16,984
Net obligations under finance leases are repayable as follows:
Within one year or on demand 184 217
In more than one but not more than two years 255 220
In more than two hut not mare than five years 1,299 §,9462
In more than five years 152 151
1,8%0 2.150
Unamortised issue costs (2) 3}
Total obligations under finance leases net of issue costs 1,888 2,147
Less amount due for settlement within 12 months (shown under current Liabilities) {183) (216)
Amounts due for settlement after 12 maonths 1,705 1.931
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26 BORROWINGS, INCLUDING FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

The interest-rate risk profile of the Group's fixed rate borrowings, including finance leases was as follows:

At 31 December 2005
Fixed rate financial liabilities

At 31 Decernber 2004
Fized rate financsal hatibities

Weighted Weighted

Weighted average Weighted average

average pericd for average perod for

interest which rate nterest which rate

rate is fixed rale is fixed

% Years S Years

Pound sterling 7.21 B.41 724 2.45
Swedish kroner 5.61 2.74 5.76 3.73
Euro 4.61 2.21 464 325

Floating rate financial liabilities bear interest at rates based on relevant LIBOR, STIBOR, EURIBOR or equivalents, which are fixed in

advance for periods of between one month and six months.

Further protection from interest rate mavement is provided by interest rate caps on £95.5 millicn of debt al 5.5 per cent to 6.0 per cent
expiring within 1 to 5 years (2004: £134 million of debt at 3.5 per cent to 7.0 per cent expiring within 3 to 5 years), £84.9 million of SEK
denominated debt at 4.0 per cent to 4.0 per cent expiring within 1 to 4 years (2004: £7% million of debt at 4.5 per cent to

6.0 per cent expiring within 2 to 5 years), and £112.5 million of EURO denominated debt at 4.0 per cent to 6.5 per cent expiring within

1 to 5 years (2004: £109 million of debt at 4.0 per cent to 7.0 per cent expiring within 1 to 5 years).

The carrying amounts of the Group's barrowings, inclueding finance leases are denominated in the following currencies:

Fixed rate  Floating rate

financial financial
liabilities liabilities Total
At 31 December 2005 €000 £000 £000
Pound sterling 221,690 98,342 320,032
Swedish kroner 88,436 105,694 194,130
Eure 79374 126 3%7 205,748
Total 389,502 330,428 719,930

Fixed rate  Floating rate

financial financeal
liabilities liabitities Total
At 31 December 2004 £000 £000 £000
Pound sterling 221113 90,023 311,136
Swedish kroner 90,095 63,474 153,569
Euro 81,825 91,425 173,250
Total 393,033 244,922 637,955

Arrangement fees of £6,541 thousand (2004: £6,060 thousand) have been offset against the balances in the above tables.

The above floating rate debt is disclosed as such as none of the Group’s interest rate caps are currently being drawn upon to cap the

rate payable. Where an interest rate swap has been entered into the resulting debt is reclassified as fixed rate

In order to mitigate the effect of interest rate fluctuations the Group has purchased interest rates caps or secured fixed rate borrewings

in respect of virtually all of its debt.
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26 BORROWINGS, INCLUDING FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED}

The carrying ameunts and fair values of the Group’s fixed rate horrowings, including finance leases are as follows:

Carrying amounts Fair values
2005 2004 2005 2004
€000 £000 £000 £000
Current borrowings, including finance leases 25,339 17 488 25,339 17,488
Non-current borrowings, inctuding finance leases 694,591 620 447 734,099 403,729
Tetal 719,930 637,955 759,438 671,217

Arrangement fees of £6 541 thousand (2004: £6,060 thousand) have been offset against the balances in the above tables.

The fair value of non-current borrowings represent the amount at which a financial instrument could he exchanged in an arm’s
length transaction between informed and willing parties other than a forced or tiquidation sale and excludes accrued interest,
discounted at market gilt rates.

The fair value of current borrowings approximates to the carrying value because of the short maturity of these financial instruments.

The Group has the following undrawn committed borrewing facilities avaitable at 31 December:

2005 2004
€000 £000

Floating rate;
- expiring within one year 5,846 27,939
- expiring after one year - 14,082
Total 5,846 42021

The above undrawn facilities expiring within one year at 31 December 2005 have been arranged to help finance the Group's preposed
development projects.

27 TENDER OFFER BUY-BACKS

As noted in the Directors’ Report it is proposed that the Company buy back 1in 42 shares at 400 pence per share in lieu of a final
dividend (2004: 1in 41 shares at 485 pence per share}.

In lieu of an interim dividend the Company bought back 1 in 60 shares 2t 510 pence per share in Movember 2005 (2004: 1 in 52 shares
at 390 pence per share).

28 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

2005 2004
£000 £o0o
Operating profit from continuing operations 122,102 95,839
Loss on discontinued operations (6,192) {4,002}
Adjustments for:
Revaluation surplus on investment properties (67,173) (37,236)
Depreciation and amaortisation 4,803 1.330
Profit/(loss) on sale of fixed assels and investment property 324 [6664)
Other pravisions 6 10
Foreign exchange gains/(losses) 120 {1,748)
Changes in working capital:
Increase in debtors 3,11 (1,563}
In¢rease/(decrease) in creditors 1,347 (88)
Cash generated from operations 52,226 52,082
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3N

CONTINGENCIES

At 31 December 2005 the Company had guaranteed £92.8 million of Group Companies’ liabilities (2004: £98 8 million). Of the amount
guaranteed, £9.9 million (2004: £9.% million) is limited to a maximum annual liability of £2.1 million (2004: £2.1 million)

COMMITMENTS
Operating lease commitments - where a Group Company is the lessee
The Group leases office space under non-cancellable operating lease agreements

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under nen-cancellzble operating leases are as follows:

2008 2004
€000 £000
Not more than 1year 497 50
Later than 1 year and not later than 3 years 1,758 30
Later than 5 years - 600
Total 2,255 680

Other commitments

At 31 December 2005 the Group had £1%.7 million of contracled capital expenditure (2004; £14.3 million). At 31 December 2005 the
Group had no authorised but not contracted for financial commitments {2004: £nil).

BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
Business acquisitions 2005
Acquisition of Jarrestrasse Immobilian GmbH, Germany

On 30 December 2005, the Group acquired Jarrestrasse Immobilian GmbH for a total consideration of £0.6 million. This purchase has
been accounted for as a business acquisition. The Group effectively acquired 99.45% of the share capital

From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2005 the acquisition contributed £nil to turnover, Enil ta profit before interest, and £nil to
profit after interest. if the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2005, Greup revenue would have increased by £670 thousand, and
profit for the period would have increased by £296 thousand.

The residual excess over the net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill in the financial statements.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

£c00
Purchase consideration:
- cash paid 1,529
Total purchase consideration 1,529
Fair value of net assets acquired (1,277
Goodwill (note 15) 252

The goodwill is attributable to the deferred tax which is expected to reverse in the future.
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BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (CONTINUED)

The assets and Liabilities arising from the acquisition are as follows:

Acguiree’s

Fair carrying

value amount

£000 £000

Cash and cash equivalents 102 102
Investrment property 8,602 8,602
Receivables 3 3
Payables (7,430) (7.178)
Net assets acquired 1,277 1,529
Purchase consideration settled in cash 1,529
Cash and cash equivalents in subsidiary acquired (102)
Cash putflow on acquisition 1,627

Business disposals

Cn 16 December 2005, CLS Holdings disposed of the business and substantially all of the assets of WightCable Limited, the Isie of
Wight based telecommunications and television company, in which CLS had a 74.5% interest. The business and assets were sold for
£2,430 thousand, being £1,430 thousand of immediate cash consideration with the balance repayable in two further equal cash
instalments at the end of 2006 and 2007. Control passed to the acquirer on the 146th December 2005.

Aloss of £141 thousand arose on the disposal, being the proceeds of disposal less the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net assets,
directly attributable costs and provisions.

Disposal of the business and assets of WightCable Ltd:

£000

Business and assets at carrying value 2,273
Disposal costs 298
2,571
Less consideration received (2,430)
Loss on disposat 141

See note 32 for further disclosures regarding business disposals classified as discontinued operations.

See note 35 for further disclosures regarding business dispesals which tock place after the batance sheet date but before the approval
of these financial statements

NON-CLURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Held for sale assets and Liabilities

Following the approval of the Group's management decision in principle to dispose of the business and substantially all of the assets of
WightCable North Limited, the following disposal group has been presented as held for sale.
2005
€000

MNon-current assets classified as held for sale -

Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets classified as held for sale:
Accrued costs of sale for held for sale assets -

See note 35 for further disclosures regarding the post balance sheet disposal of WightCable North Limited.
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32 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

33

34

Discontinued sperations

Following Management’s decision in principle to exit the cable business market the results of WightCable Limited and WightCable
Morth Limnited have been presented as discontinued operations. For segmental analysis both of these businesses formed part of the UK
equity investrnent division. An analysis of the results is as follows:

2005 2004
£000 €000
Revenue 5,844 5524
Operating expense (9,771 (9,342)
Operating loss (4,127 (3,818)
Finance expense (150) (184}
Loss before tax 4,277) (4.002)
Taxation - -
Loss after tax (4,277 (4,002)
Loss on disposal of assets (421) -
Acqguisition of minority interest {1,318} -
Accrued costs for disposal of assets {108} -
Taxation - _
Loss for the year from discontinued operations {6,192} (4,002)

The companies’ [oss for the year approximates to their net operating tash outflows,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

CLSH Management Limited, a2 whelly owned subsidiary of CLS Holdings ple, acts as an agent in respect of the collection of rental
income and payment of loan interest for Teighmore Limited and New London Bridge House Limited, joint ventures of the Group

At 31 December 2005 Teighmore Limited was owed £0.8 million by the Group (2004: £0.8 miltion} and New London Bridge House
Limited owed £0.2 million (2004; owed £0.1 million).

A Group company, Forvaltnings AB Klio, rents cffice space from a company owned by Sten Mortstedt, The total payable in the year was
£29 thousand (2004: £15 thousand}. A company owned by Sten Mortstedt atso purchased accountancy services from Forvalinings AB
Klio during the year amounting to £6 thousand (2004: £6 thousand).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The consolidated financial staternents include the financial statements of CLS Holdings pic and the principal subsidiaries listed

in the table below.

The Directors consider that to give full particulars of all subsidiary undertakings would lead to a staternent of excessive length,
The following information relates to those wholly owned subsidiary companies whose results or financial position, in the opinion

of the Oirectars, principatly affected the figures of the Group.

All of these subsidiaries were incorporated in England and Wales with the exception of Vinerparken Property Investment KB,
Solna Business Holdings AB, Livgardet Residential KB and Lovgardet Business KB which are incorporated in Sweden, Hamersley
international BV which is incorporated in the Netherlands, and Hermalux SARL which is incorporated in Luxembourg.

Brent House Limited Hermalux SARL Three Albert Embankment Lirnited
Carlow House Limited Ingrove Limited Vauxhali Cross Limited

Cl Tower Investments Limited Mohican Nominees Limited Vinerparken Property Investment KB
Citadel Holdings PLC New London House Limited Vista Centre Limited

CLSH Management Limited New Printing House Sguare Limited Solna Business Holdings AB

Great Wesl House Limited One Leicester Square Lirmited Lovgardet Residential KB

Hamersley International BY Spring Gardens Limited Lovgardet Business KB

The principal activity of each of these subsidiaries is property investrnent apart fromn CLSH Management Limited whose principal aclivity
is property management, Citadel Holdings PLC, Herralux SARL, Hamersley International BY and Solna Business Holdings 48 whose
principal activily is as a holding cornpany. To comply with the Companies Act 1983, a full list of subsidiaries will be filed with the
Company's next annual return.
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Business disposals

WightCable North Limited

On 20 January 2006, the sale of the business and substantially all of the assets of WightCable North Limited, a cable company, was
campleted. The financial effect of this transaction was to incur further costs of disposal amounting to £2.2 millian, which will be
expensed in 2006.

The provisions of IFRS 5 apply to the sale of the disposal group formed from WightCable Morth Limited, as such the assets and
liabilities of the disposal group have been classified as held for sale and the result has been classified as a discontinued operation.
Please refer to note 32 for further disclosures regarding the disposal group formed from WightCable North Limited.

Lavgardet Capital Partner AB

On 1 February 2006, the Group sold the shares of the holding company of the Lévgardet Group, Lovgardet Capital Partner A,

The financial effect of this transaction is to remove the investment properties of the Lovgardet estate and their associated loans.
At 31 Decernber 2005 these amounted to £39.8 million and £35.2 million respectively.

The assets and liabilities of the Lovgardet Group have not been reclassified as held for sale and the result has not been ¢lassified
as a discentinued operation as the provisions of IFRS 5 were not satisfied at 31 December 2005.

INVESTMENTS (PREVIOUS GAAP)

Total
£000
Current asset investrments
Shares and warrants 10,492
Balance as at 31 December 2004 10,452
Adaption of IAS 32/IAS 39 - reclassification to available-for-sale at 1 January 2005, see note 38 (10,492)
Balance at t January 2005 -
Non-current asset investrments
Other investments 171
Balance as at 31 December 2004 171
Adoption of IAS 32/1AS 39 - reclassification to available-for-sale at 1 January 2005, see note 38 (171

Balance at 1 January 2005 -

The listed shares and warrants, stated at lower of cost and net realisable value, of £7 354 thousand relate to investments on the
London, Swedish, and Swiss Steck Exchanges. The market value of the listed investments at 31 December 2004 was £19,804 thousand.

The above line iterns are no longer used fram 1 Janvary 2005, the IAS 32 and 145 39 transition date. Disclosures for the year ended
31 Decemnber 2005 under IAS 32 and IAS 37 are (ocated in note 17.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (PREVIOUS GAAP)

a) Fair values of financial assets and financial liahilities

The following table provides a camparisen hy category of the carrying amounts and the fair values of Lhe Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities at 31 December 2004 Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an
arms length transaction between informed and willing parties, other than a forced ar liquidation sale and excludes accrued inlerest
Where available, market values have been ysed to determine fair values. Where market values are not available, fair values have
been calculaled by discounting expected cash flows at prevailing interest and exchange rates. Set out below the table is 3 summary
of the methods and assumptions used for each category of financial instruments,
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37 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (PREVIOUS GAAP) (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

2004 2004
Book value Fair value
£000 £000
Primary financial instruments held or issued te finance the Group's operations:
Short term deposits 4,904 4,904
Cash at bank and in hand 51,776 51,776
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile:
Interest rate caps and collars 2568 377
Financial instruments held for trading purpeses:
Equity investments and other financial assets 10,595 23,034

Assets held for tregsury purposes do not attract interest

Interest rate caps and collars

The weighted average periods until maturity for interest rate caps, the financial assets on which no interest is paid, are 2.7 years
for sterling caps, 3.4 years for SEK caps and 3.4 years for Euro caps.

Financial instruments held for trading purposes

The income staterment includes a net gain of £1,534 thousand from financial instruments held for trading.

Summary of methods and assumptions

Interest rate ¢ap and forward Fair value is based on markel price of cornparable instruments at the balance sheet date
foreign currency contracts

Short-term deposits and borrowings  The fair value of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts approximates to the carrying
amount because of the short maturity of these instruments.

Equity Investments The fair value of listed equity investments is the quoted market value. in the case of unlisted
equity investments, the fair value is estimated using the British Venture Capital Assaciation
guidelines.

Long-term interest bearing debtor  The fair value of this asset has been calculated by discounting expected cash flows at the
prevailing interest rate.

Long-term borrowings The fair value for floating rate lpans approxirnates to the carrying value reported in the
balance sheet as payments are reset to market rates at intervals of less than one year,
Fixed rate loans have been discounted at gilt rates, which were provided by the banks.

Hedges

The table below shows the extent to which the Group has off balance sheet (unrecognised) and on balance sheet (deferred) gains
and losses in respect of financial instruments used as hedges at the beginning and end of the year. It also shows the amounts of
such gains and losses which have been included in the profit and loss account for the year and those gains and losses which’ are
expected to be included in next years or later profit and loss account.

Deferred

losses

£000

Unrecognised gains and tosses on hedges as at 1 January 2004 1,807
Loss arising before 1 January included in current year expenditure {1,108;
Loss arising before 1 January not included in current year income and now deferred 499
Loss arising in current year not included in current year expenditure and now deferred 1,492
Unrecognised gains and losses on hedges as at 31 December 2004 2,171

af which:

Gains and losses expected to be recognised in 2005 916
Gains and losses expected to be recognised in 2006 or later 1,275
Total 2,191
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38 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRS

381

3e.2

383

Application of IFRS 1
In 2005 the Group adopted IFRS for the first time. Previousty the Group reported under UK GAAP,

The Group has applied IFRS 1 - First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards te provide a starting point
for reporting under IFRS, The date of transition to IFRS was 1 Januvary 2004 and all information in these financial statements
has been restated to reflect the Group’s adoption of IFRS.

The adeption of International Financial Reporting and Accounting Stendards has resulled in changes to the Group's accounting
pelicies, as stated in notes 1 to 4.

In preparing its opening IFRS balance sheet, the Group has adjusted amounts previously reported in financial statements
grepared in accordance with its previous basis of accounting, UK GAAP. An explanation of how the transition fram UK GAAP
to IFRS has affected the Group's financial position and financial performance i1s set out in the following notes, recenciliations
and notes to the reconciliations.

In preparing this restatement repert in accordance with IFRS 1, the Group has applied the mandatory exceptions and certain
of the optional exemnptions from full retrospective application of IFRS.

Exempticns from full retrospective application

The Group has applied the following optional exemptions from retrospective application;

a) Business combinations exemption

The Group has applied the business combinations exemption in IFRS 1.1t has not restated business combinations Lhat took
place prior to the 1 January 2004 transition date

by Exemption from restatement of comparatives far {AS 32 and 1AS 39

The Group elected to apply this exemption. It applies previous GAAP rules to derivatives, financial assets and financial
Liabilities and to hedging relationships for the 2004 comparative information. IAS 32 and I1AS 39 have been applied from
1 January 2003, the date of transition for 1AS 32 and 1AS 39. The adjustments required for differences between UK GAAP
and IAS 32 and IAS 3% were determined and recognised at 1 January 2005.

¢) Share based payment transaction exemption

The Group has elected to apply this exemption. The Group has applied IFRS 2 from 1 January 2004 to those options that
were issued after 7 Novernber 2002 but that have not vested by 1 January 2005

d) Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

The Group has elected to apply this exemption. 1AS 32 and JAS 39 have been applied from 1 January 2005, the date of transition
for |AS 32 and IAS 3%. Financial instruments were designated at the |AS 32 and IAS 39 date of transition as at fair value
through profit or loss or as available-for-sale.

Exceptions from full retrospective application

The Group has applied the following mandatory exceptions from retrospective application;

a) Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities exception

Financiat assets and liabilities derecognised before 1 January 2004 are not re-recognised under IFRS. The application

of the exception froem restating comparatives for JAS 32 and 1AS 39 means that the Group recognised from 1 January 2005
any financial assets and financial liabilities derecagnised since 1 January 2004 that do not meet the 1AS 39 derecognition
criteria. Management did not choose to apply the IAS 39 derecognition criteria to an earlier date.

b) Hedge accounting exception

Management has claimed hedge accounting from 1 January 2005 only when the hedge relationship meets all the hedge
accounting criteria under 1AS 39,

¢) Estimates exception

Estimates under IFRS at 1 January 2004 should be consistent with estimates made for the same date under previous
GAAP, unless there is evidence Lhat thase estimates were in error.

d) Assets held for sale and discontinued operations exception

Management has applied IFRS & from 1 January 2004 Any assets held for sale or discontinued operations are recognised
in accordance with IFRS 5 from 1 January 2004 The Group did nat have any assets that met the held-for-sate or discontinued
operations criteria during the periods presented
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38 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TQ IFRS (CONTINUED)

38.4  Reconciliations between IFRS and UK GAAP

{as set out below)

38.4a Reconciliation of consolidated IFRS balance sheet at 1 January 2004

Previousty
reported Effect of Restated
under transition under
UK GAAP* to IFRS IFRS
Notes £000 €000 £000
Non-current assets
Investment properties a b 882,442 36,279 218,721
Property, plant and equipment a 6,847 2,478 9325
Intangible assets a - 427 427
Investments in associates 3,225 - 3.225
Investments in joint ventures a 8,499 (8,499) -
Investrments 7 - 171
Deferred income tax assets ¢ - 14,458 14,458
Trade and other recevables a 3.695 71 3.766
904,879 45214 750,093
Current assets
Trade and other receivables a.d 7.976 4686 8,662
Investments 3,963 - 3,943
Cash and cash equivalents a 56,693 537 57,230
68,632 1,223 69,855
Total assets 373511 46 437 1019948
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 5,960 - 5,960
Deferred income tax liabilities C 5,680 102,117 107,797
Borrowings, including finance leases a b B23615 27,184 550,799
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 33 - 33
535,288 129,307 664,589
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables a 35,257 2,365 37,622
Current income tax liabilities 1.149 - 1,149
Borrowings, including finance leases a 16,843 500 17,343
53,249 2,865 56,114
Total liabilities 588,537 132,166 720,703
Net assets 384,974 (85,729 299,245
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the
Company's equity holders
Share capital 21,91 - 21,911
Other reserves ef g 330,739 (210,129) 120,610
Retained earnings a,c defg 33224 124,400 157,624
385,874 (85.72%) 300,145
Minority interest (00) - (700)
Total equity 384,974 (85,729) 299,245

* Reformatted to reflect [FRS reporting requirements
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38 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRS (CONTINUED)

38.4b  Reconciliation of consolidated IFRS balance sheet at 31 December 2004

Previously
reporled Effect of Restated
under transition under
UK GAaP* to IFRS IFRS
Naotes fooa £000 £000
Nen-current assets
Investrnent properties ab 981.560 40,979 1,022,539
Property, plant and equipment a, b 5,040 5,670 10,710
Intangible assets a.h - 3,357 3,357
Imvestrnents in associates h,i 3,010 - 3.010
Investments in joint ventures a 13,848 {13,848) -
Investments " - 171
Deferred income lax assets C - 13.813 13.813
Trade and other receivables a 3,094 67 3.163
1,006,725 50,038 1,056,763
Current assets
Trade and other recevables a, d 10,480 12146 11,696
nvestrments 10,497 - 10,492
Cash and cash equivalents a 56,680 691 57.37
77,652 1,907 79559
Total assets 1,084,377 51,945 1,138,322
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,279 - 1,279
Deferred income tax liabilities < 6,777 121174 127,951
Borrowings, including finance leases 8, b 592,439 28,028 620,467
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 301 - 301

600,796 149,202 749,998
Current tiabilities

Trade and other payables 3 39,472 4,606 44,128
Current income tax liabilities 02 - 902
Borrowings, including finance leases a 16,825 663 17,488
Provisions for ather liabilities and charges - - -
57,199 5.319 62518
Total liabilities 457,995 154,521 812514
Net assets 426,382 (102,576) 323,806
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributabfe fo the
Company’s equity holders
Share capital 21,374 - 21,374
Other reserves cefgh 374592 (252,522) 122,070
Retained earnings a,c.def g hi 32394 149,946 182,340
428 340 (102.574) 325,784
Minarity interest (1,978) - (1,978)
Total equity 426,382 {102,574) 323,806

> Relgrmatted to reflect IFRS reporting requirsments
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38 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRS (CONTINUED)

38.4c Recontiliation of consolidated IFRS income statement for the year ended 31 December 2004

Previously
reporied Effect of Restated
under  transition to under
UK GAAP* IFRS IFRS
Nates £000 £000 £000
Continuing operatians:
Rental and similar income a d 71,787 2,688 74,475
Service charge and similar income a 6,401 499 5,900
Total rental revenue 78,188 3,187 21,375
Service charge expense and similar charges 3 (13.293) (479} (13.772)
Net rental income 64,895 2,708 &7,403
Other operating income - net 4,151 - 4151
Administrative expenses a,e (9.850) (134) (9.984)
Net property expenses b (3,640) 9 (3.631)
Operating profit before net gain on investment properties 55,556 2,583 £8,13%
Net gain from fair value adjustment on investment property d.oh - 37,236 37,236
Profit on sale of investment properties 464 - 4b4
Operating profit 56,020 39,819 95,839
Finance inceme 1,801 - 1,801
Finance expense b (35,857) 9 (35,848)
Share of (loss)/profit of associates i (1,70 - (1,701}
Share of (loss)/profit of JVs a 2,491 (2,49 -
Profit before tax 22,754 79 50,073
Taxation ~ current {594) - (596;
Taxation - deferred ¢, h {1,097} (14,945} (16,0423
Tax (charge)/credit on prafit (1,693) (14,945) (14,538)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 21061 22374 43,435
Discontinued operations:
Loss for the period from discontinued operations - after tax (4,002) - 14,0023
Profit for the year 17,059 22,374 39,433
Attributable to:
Equity holders cf the Company ¢ deqghi 18,137 22374 40,511
Minority interest (1,078) - {1.078)
17,059 22,374 39,433

* Reformatted to rellect IFRS reporting requirements
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38 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRS (CONTINUED)

38.4d Reconciliation of consolidated IFRS balance sheet at 1 January 2005

Effect of
adoption of
\FRS 145 32 and |FRS
31 Dec 2004 1AS 39 1 Jan 2005
Motes £000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investment property 1.022,53% - 1022 k37
Property, plant and equipment 16,710 - 10,710
Intangible assets 3.357 - 3.357
investments in associates 3,010 - 3,010
Available-for-sale investrnents j - 22,671 22,6M
Investments ] VAl {171 -
Derivative financial instruments i - 938 938
Deferred income tax assels C 13,813 1,014 14,829
Trade and other receivables ] 3,163 (1,968) 1,195
1.056,763 22,486 1079249
Current assets
Trade and other receivables J 11.6%96 (599} 11,097
Investments 1 10,492 (10,492) -
Derivative financial instruments j - 541 541
Cash and cash equivalents 57.371 - 57,371
79,559 (10,550} 69,009
Tatal assets 1,136,322 1,934 1,148,258
Non-current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,279 - 1279
Deferred incorne tax liabilities 127,951 2,588 130,839
Borrowings, inctuding finance leases 620,467 - 620,467
Derivative lingncial instruments i - 1.063 1.063
Provisions for other liabilities and charges i 301 (307 -
747,998 3,650 753,648
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 44,128 - 44128
Current income tax liabilities 702 - %02
Derivative financial instruments i - 164 164
Borrowings. including finance leases 17,488 - 17.488
62,518 164 62,682
Total liabilities 812,514 3814 816,320
Net assets 323,806 8,122 33,928
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the
Company's equity holders
Share capital 21,374 - 21,374
Gther reserves c, 122,070 ? 774 131,844
Retained earnings € j 182,340 (1.652) 180.5688
325,784 8,122 333906
Minarity interest (1,978) - (1.978)
Total equity 323,806 8,122 331,928
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38 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRS (CONTINUED)

38.5  MNotes ta the IFRS reconciliations

a. 1AS5 31 - Interests in joint ventures

Under UK GAAP, the Group accounted for interests in joint ventures under the cquity accounting method. Under IFRS,
1AS 31 allows companies to make a one-time choice as to whether joint ventures will be accounted under the equity
method or proportionally consolidated.

The Group has opted for proporticnat consolidation of joint venture assets and liabilities as this mare closely reflects the
substance of the Group's joint venture arrangements, therefore the Group's share of individual assets and liabilities of the
joint venture are included within the corresponding tine of the balance sheet. Similarly, the Group's share of operating
profit of joint ventures is reanalysed to the corresponding lines of the income statement.

b.  IAS 17 - Leases

Under UK GAAP, leases to occupational tenants were almost invariably treated as operating leases, because the risks and
rewards in the underlying freehold were usually assessed as remaining with the landlord. However, while I1AS 17 is based
an a similar principle, it lists a number of situations that individually or in combination would require a lease to be classified
as a finance lease and, in particular, it requires an entity to consider land and buildings separately, even if the occupaticnal
lease is of the property as a whole and does not make such a distinction. This means that it is more likely that a lease term
could be viewed as being for the major part of the economic life of an asset, resulting in finance lease classification of the
huilding element.

The Group has carefully reviewed each of its leases and has concluded that the lease classification and treatment under
UK GAAP is consistent with IFRS,

Where an investment property is itself subject to a head or ground lease, that head lease must be treated as if it were a
fingnce lease and accounted for accordingly. In total anly two properties are aflected, leading to the recegnition ol a finance
tease liability and an increase in the carrying value of the Group's investment properties.

¢. 1A% 17 - Income Yaxes

This standard requires full provision to be made for deferred income tax on temporary differences. The main difference
cormpared to the deferred tax provided under UK GAAP is that provision has been made in full for the deferred income tax
arising from the revaluation of investment properties. The deferred income tax has been calculated on the basis that the
gain (or loss) on the properties will be realised through the income generated by holding the properties. The tax base for
each property in its local currency has been compared to the valuation for that property.

Since the deferred income tax liabilities have been calculated on the basis of continued use of the properties no account
has been taken of the way in which properties may be sold or of the tax which the Group would expect to be payable on

the sale of the properties. Indexation allowance which would be available to further reduce the taxable capital gains when
properties subject to UK corporation tax are sold has similarly not been taken into account.

Deferred income tax 1s provided as appropriate on the other adjustments which have been made to convert the UK GAAP
accounts to IFRS.

d. SIC 15 - Operating lease incentives

Under SIC 15, the cost of rent free periods and ather incentives given to tenanls under operating leases must be spread
over the term of the lease rather than, as under UK GAAP, to the first review to market rents,

Further, there are no transitional provisions sp that incentives granted before the UK standard came into effect have now
been brought back into account. This will therefore change the timing but not the aggregate amount recognised in relation
to lease incentives.

for the investment property business the changes amaunt to minor reclassifications between ‘Rental and similar income’,
and ‘Net gain from fair value adjustment on investment property’ in the income statement and ‘Investment properties’ and
Trade and other receivables in the balance sheet,

e. IFRS 2 - Share-based payments

Under IFRS 2, the fair value of share options and other share hased payments is recognised as an expense through the
income staterment over the vesting period

The Group has elected to apply the IFRS 1, share-based payment exemption, therefore the Group has applied IFRS 2 from
1 January 2004 to those options that were issued after 7 Novemnber 2002 but have not vested by 1 January 2005
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38 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRS (CONTINUED)
38.5  Notes to the IFRS reconciliations (continued}

f.  1AS 21 - The effects of changes in fereign exchange rates

Under UK GAAP revalustion movements on overseas assets were booked at the closing rate and retranslated at each
reporting periad. Since the revaluation movements are now posted to the income statement, they are translated at the
average rate. On transition to IFRS, all previous exchange gains held within the revaluation reserve have been transferred
back to the cumulative translation reserve.

g. |AS 40 - Investment property
Under this standard, investrment property will be recognised in the accounts at fair value, with revaluation gains and losses
being taken directly to the incarne statement rather than to the revaluation reserve as was the case under UK CAAP.

Accumnulated revaluation surpluses relating to the investment properties at the date of transition to IFRS have been
reallocated to retained earnings. This treatment does not, however, have any impact on the distributable profils

Full provision for tax on the valuation movements has been provided under |AS 12

h. IFRS 3 - Business combinations
Under IFRS 3, goodwill on acquisition is no longer amortised, but is held at its UK GAAP carrying vatue at the transition
date, or acquisition date, as appropriate, and is then subject to impairment review at each reporting date.
{FRS 3 uses a different term for ‘negative goodwill’ and requires it to be taken to the income slatement in the year of
acquisition. Previously recognised negative goodwill has been derecognised at the date of transition, with 2 corresponding
adjustrment to opening retained earnings.
Under IFRS, the acquisition of properties, whether by outright purchase or by corporate acquisition, are carefully
considered on a case by case basis to getermine whether they are, in substance, an acquisition of assets or a business
The Group has elected to apply the IFRS 1, business combination exemptien, therefore the Group has not applied [FRS 3
retrospectively to past business combinations. In the light of IFRS 3, a poertfolio acquired during 2004 has been reclassified
35 a business comhbmation rather than as a purchase of assets.

i, JAS 36 - Impairment of assets
Under IFRS, certain assets including goodwill are reviewed for impairment. An asset is carried at more than its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount exceeds the amount to be recovered through use or sale of the asset.

If this is the case, the asset is described as impaired and the standard requires the entity to recognise an impairment loss.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the assets’ carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount and
is recognised in the incorme statement.
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38 EXPLANATION OF TRANSITION TO IFRS (CONTINUED)

38.5  Notes to the IFRS reconciliations {continued)

J- 1AS 32 and IAS 3% - Financial instruments
Financial assets and lighilities such as interest rate swaps, caps, floors and ferward foreign exchange contracts have been
included in the balance sheel at fair value. Investments are carried at fair value on the balance sheet,

The Group has taken advantage of the IFRS 1 exemplion to not restate comparatives for 2004 under |AS 32 and 1AS 39
The impact of IAS 32 and |1AS 39 is therefore effective for the accounting period commencing en 1 January 2005.
The accounting policy adopted from 1 January 2005 is included in notes 2, 3 and 4.

There are a number of effects on the Group which will apply from 1 January 2005.

The IFRS balance sheet at 31 December 2004 has been reslated at 1 January 2005 for the adoption of IAS 32 and IAS 39,
and a recancitiation of this has been included above.

Hedge aceounting

Hedging instruments such as interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts will be included in the balance
sheet at fair value. Movements in fair value of these hedging instruments will be recognised in the income statement orin
equity, as appropriate. To the extent that such instruments are ineffective hedges, they will be included in the balance sheet
at fair value with changes in fair value being recognised in the income statement.

Investments

Investments will be carried at fair value on the balance sheet, with changes in the fair value being recognised either in the
income statement or in equity and recycled through the income staterent when the investrments are realised, as
appropriate. Under UK GAAP these investments were carried at the lower of cost and market value.

Qther financial instruments

Mgvements in the fair value of those derivalive financial instruments which are not accounted for as hedging instruments
are recognised in the income staternent and not by way of a note, as is the case under UK GAAP.

Borrowings

The version of IAS 3% adopted by the European Union prohibits the option to carry borrowings at therr fair values, and
conseguently the Group will continue te include borrowings in the balance sheet at amortised cost. The fair value of
borrowings will be disclosed under 1AS 32, as is the case under UK GAAP

38.6  Notes to the IFRS consolidated statement of cash flows

The transition to IFRS will not affect the cash flows of the business. The presentation of the cash flow statement for the Group
does not differ significantly from that under UK GAAP, except for the inclusion of short term deposits within the definition of cash
and cash equivalents. Previously these were shown separately from cash as liquid rescurces.

From 1 January 2005, due to the classification of investments as "available-for-sale’ financial assets, the movement in
investments will now be shown in the cash flow statement under cash flows frem investing activities rather than in cash
generated from operations

There are no other material differences between the cash flow stetement presented under IFRS and the cash flow statement
presented under UK GAAP.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF CLS HOLDINGS PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of CLS Holdings plc for the year ended 31 December 2005 which comprise the
Balance Sheet and the related notes. These parent company financial statements have bheen prepared under the accounting policies set
out therein. We have also audited the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of CLS Holdings plc for the year ended 31 December 2005,

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice) are set out in the Staternent of Directors’ Responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Repert to be audited in
accordance with relevant legal and requlatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, including
the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act
1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose cr to any other
person to whom this report is shown or inte whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give & true and fair view and whether the parent
company financial statements and the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985, We also report o you If, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent with the parent company
financial statements, if the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not receved all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transacticns is not disclosed.

We read other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the audited parent company financial
staterments. The cther information comprises anly the Chairman’s Statement, the Financial Review, the Property Review, the Directors’
Repert and the unaudited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report. We consider the implications for our report if we becorne aware of
any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend
to any other information.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Beard. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company financial statements
and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the direciors in the preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate
to the company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanaticns which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’
Remuneraticn Report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion we alsc evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited.

OPINION

in our ¢pinion:

» the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2005; and

» the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985

ﬁwmww Ly

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

24 March 2004
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

Year ended Year ended
31 Decemper 31 December
2005 2004
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings b 81,035 78,988
81,035 78,988
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 7 41,844 70,057
Cash and cash equivalents & 17 1,624
41,861 71,678
Total assets 122,894 150,664
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 964 7.758
964 7,758
Net assets 121,932 142,908
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity holders
Share capital g 21,382 21,374
Other reserves 10 84,334 86,195
Profit and loss account 10 14,214 35,339
Total equity 121,932 142,908

The notes on pages 110 te 117 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

109




NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards under the historical cost convention.
The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in retalion to the
Company’s financial statements.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

2.1 Investment in Group Companies
Investments have been valued at cost If the equity value of the investment is lower than the cost price, this valuation will be
adjusted accordingly, provided that the Management considers this to be a permanent diminution in value. Dividend income will
be recognised when received.

2.2 Turnover

Turnover comprises recharge of professional fees received by the Company but applicable to Group undertakings

2.3 Pension costs

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scherne for all eligible employees. The pension costs charged to the profit and
loss account represent the contributions payable.

3 PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the parent Company's profit and loss account has not been included in these
financial statements. The parent Company’s retained loss for the financial year was £2,152 thousand (2004: Profit of £37 910 thousand).

Audit fees for the Company were £35 thousand (2004 £44 thousand).

4  TENDER OFFER BUY-BACKS

See note 27 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

5  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

The Company has no tangible fixed assets.

&  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

2005 2004
E00O £000
At 1 January 78,988 62,072
Additions 2,047 16,916
At 31 December 81,035 78,988
A list of principal subsidiary undertakings is shown in nete 34 in the Notes te Lhe consolidated financial statements.
7 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2005 2004
£000 £000
Current
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 41,228 69,695
Prepayments 89 267
Other debtors 527 20
Total 41,844 70,052




NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10

"

12

13

14

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2005 2004
£000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 17 1,626

At 31 Decemnber 2005, the Cornpany cash at bank and in hand included £nil (2004; £nil) of cash deposits which are subject to either
a legal assignment or a charge in favour of a third party.

SHARE CAPITAL

See note 22 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

PROFIT AND LOSS5 ACCOUNT AND OTHER RESERVES
Other reserves

Share Capital
premium redemption Profit and
reserye reserve Other Total toss account
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2004 68,928 11,693 4599 85,220 13,223
Employee share option scherme:
- value of service provided - - 10 10 -
- proceeds form shares issued 356 - - 356 -
Cancellation of shares - 509 - 609 -
Purchase of own shares - - - - (15,674)
Purchase of own shares expense - - - - (118)
Retained profit for the year - - - - 37.910
At 31 December 2004 69,284 12,302 4,609 86,195 35,339
Employee share option scheme:
- value of service provided - - 6 6 -
- proceeds form shares issued 56 - - 56 -
Issue of shares 79 - - 79 -
Purchase of own shares B - - - {18.858)
Purchase of own shares expense - - - - (115)
Retained loss for the year - - - - (2.152)
At 31 December 2005 69,419 12,302 4,615 86,336 14,214
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2005 2004
£000 €000
Current
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - 7.080
Trade payables 17 (48)
Accruals and deferred inceme 947 726
944 7,758

DEFERRED INCOME TAX
No deferred tax liability arises relating to the Company (2004: £nil).

COMMITMENTS

See nole 30 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Sec note 33 of the notes to the consolidated financial staterments.




FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

for the year ended 23 December

IFRS UK GAAP
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Turnover and results £000 rooo £000 £000 £000
Turnover 85,039 81,375 79,658 70,682 56,697
Group net rental income 69,262 47,603 62,412 39421 50,178
Operating profit 54,180 58,139 45,293 452314 36,856
Fair value gains on investrent property 67,173 37,236 - - -
Share of profit of associate and joint venture undertakings (2,322) (1,701 1,085 790 873
Gain/{loss) from sale of investment properties 1,855 4bd 1,932 1153) 524
Protit on ordinary activities before interest 120,886 94,138 48,310 45,953 38,253
Net interest payable and similar charges {36,229) (34,065} (30.737) (28.886) (26,974)
Prafit before taxation 84,457 60,073 17,573 17,047 1M.27%
Tax on grdinary activities - current {1,304) (596) {476} {648) {938)
Tex on ordinary activities - deferred (21,856) (16,042) 591 (1,497 (3.273)
Oiscontinued operations (6,192) (4,002) - - -
Profit for the year 55,305 39,433 17,488 14,922 7,068
Share buy-backs paid and proposed (18,353} (15,676) (14,607} (14,007) (12,120
Net Assets Employed
Fixed assets 1,141,265 1,058,763 Q01,184 857,152 732,582
Net current assets 127,014 79,559 19,078 35,558 19,500
1,268,27% 1.136.322 920,262 892,710 752,082
Non-current liabilities (841,682) (749,998) (529.579) (507,735) (389.788)
Provision for liabilities and charges (72,817) (62.518) {5,713) (13,255) (11.,482)
Net assets 353,780 323,804 384974 371.720 350.812
Ratios
Adjusted net assets per share (pence) 407 52z 4Lbb 409 365
Statutory net assets per share (pence) 442 3846 439 395 353
Earnings per share {pence) 47.5 470 207 15.7 6.7
Gearing (%) 172 181 127 124 104
Interest cover {times) 1.48 1.67 157 159 1.42
Discontinued
operations ang
Fair value minority
Statutory  Deferred tax property gains interest Adjusted
Reconciliation of statutory to disclosed adjusted statistics figure Adjustment adjustment adjustment figure
Net Assets (£ million) 3538 1321 - - 4809
NAV per share (pence) 441.9 165.0 - - 606.9
Earnings per share (pence) 475 26.6 (81.6) 7.2 19.7
Diluted earnings per share {pence) 62.0 266 (81.6) 72 19.2
Gearing (%) 171.9 (L6 7) - - 1252
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